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SENATOR PETER INVERSO (CHAIRMAN): Good morning. I'm 

sorry to delay a few minutes the start of the meeting, but if 

there were more parking spaces in Mt. Holly, I would have been 

here a little sooner. 

This is another of· the meetings of the Senate 

Legislative Oversight Committee. As you all know, this 

Committee was given its opportunity by the vote of the people 

in November, enabling the Legislature to, in essence, review 

the rules and regulations promulgated as a result of· 

legislation that we passed, to ensure that those rules and 

regulations are in keeping with what the intent of the 

legislation was, and the intent of the Legislature in passing 

that legislation 

We look upon this Committee as a very, very important 

Committee, one that is able to respond and react to the public 

with regard to the concerns that they have, that perhaps what 

they' re confronting in dealing with the State bureaucracy and 

others is not in keeping with what the Legislature had 

intended. So it's a very I think, a very important 

Committee, and one that has had sessions and will continue to 

have sessions over the next legislative term. 

I'd like to just introduce the members of the 

Committee who are with us today. We have Senator Zane, who is 

a member of the Committee; and we have Senator Brad Smith, who 

is sitting in in place of a Committee member. I'm Senator 

Peter Inverso. Senator John Bennett is Chair of this 

Committee, and unfortunately he was not able to be with us 

today. He has a personal matter he's attending to involving 

his daughter, and I told him I would sit in in his place. I'm 

also pleased to have with us today, in attendance, an 

individual I just heard on the radio talking about whether we 

can eliminate the tolls on the Parkway -- Senator Haines, and 

we have Assemblyman Bob Shinn. 
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So with that, we will begin hearing the testimony. 

The first person we're going to call upon is Mr. Joseph 

Brancotta, of Georgia-Pacific, and I believe you're with a Jan 

Clark. 

Is it Ms. Jan Clark? 

JAN L. c LA R K: Good morning. 

SENATOR ZANE: Senator, before you begin, may I ask a 

question? The only notice that I have indicates that the 

purpose of the meeting is to take testimony of individuals or 

representatives of business 

that what we're doing? 

concerning State regulations. Is 

yes. 

SENATOR INVERSO: That's my understanding, Senator, 

SENATOR ZANE: Okay, okay. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Yes. 

SENATOR ZANE : So we• re not dealing with a specific 

problem, just in general? 

SENATOR INVERSO: That's my understanding, yes. 

Mr. Brancotta. 

JO S E PH B RAN CATO : Good morning, Senator. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Excuse me. I'm sorry. I didn't 

even ask if you two had an opening statement -- being we' re 

starting a little later. 

SENATOR SMITH: Well, I would just like to thank the 

Oversite Committee for scheduling this hearing this morning. 

I have had, basically, an open-door policy with 

businesses throughout the seventh legislative district -- and 

even beyond the district -- and over the course of the last two 

years have heard some very interesting, shocking, and strange 

stories about what is happening to business and jobs in this 

State with respect to their relationship with State agencies 

I think it's very important that this Oversight 

Committee has been created and is delving into the problems 
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that are occuring in the State because, quite frankly, we' re 

losing jobs like crazy, <: nd unless we I view this as a 

crisis situation -- and unless we start to turn things around, 

using this Committee as a tool and other tools in the 

Legislature, we are going to have a State that is a bedroom 

state. People will simply sleep here and go to work in other 

states. That's something that we cannot afford to have happen 

to New Jersey. 

So I look forward to the testimony today and the work 

of this Committee in the Legislature to start to make New 

Jersey, once again, a good place for people to live and work. 

Thank you. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Thank you, Senator. 

SENATOR HAINES: Senator, I have a comment too. 

I feel that this passing the idea of legislative 

oversight is one of the most important pieces of legislation 

that we've had since I've been in the Legislature. I know 

Senator Zane and others have started the legislation it's 

been a bipartisan process but I do think, as Senator Brad 

Smith has said here, that we have a situation in New Jersey -

we may be the most overregulated state in the nation. We have 

overlapping regulations; we have regulations that don't make 

any sense. We are, in fact, encouraging business to leave New 

Jersey, and we are encouraging businesses not to come to New 

Jersey. 

I have meetings with businessmen all the time, as well 

as other groups, but they all tell me the same thing, that 

we're vastly overregulated, and that this overregulation may be 

as important as the over-taxation that's causing them to leave 

the State and not to come into New Jersey. 

Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Senator Haines, those comments have 

elicited a request for a response by Senator Zane. 

SENATOR ZANE: No, not a r~sponse at all. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Okay . 
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SENATOR ZANE: I'd just like to thank the people of 

the State of New Jersey for finally passing my legislation, a 

battle that I began some fifteen or eighteen years ago, I guess 

with, at that time, Governor Byrne. I don't know anything-

And I would also indicate that at one time, when you were in 

the Assembly, you gave me a very key vote to put it on the 

ballot and the people didn't pass it at that time. This past 

year, it was finally passed. 

In my opinion, it's probably if not the most important 

-- and not because I'm the sponsor of it -- the most important 

piece of Legislation that has ever passed because, and I' 11 

give you a real good, quick example: DEPE, in my opinion, was 

clearly on their way this past year to doing the California 

fuel in New Jersey. It would have been typical of things that 

they would have done. Because of this legislation having been 

passed, approved by the voters amending the Constitution, and 

setting up this process, they had to come back to the 

Legislature, which was a courtesy that normally was not 

extended. They just went and did what they had to do. 

I think the overall economic climate-- The prospects 

for new jobs and attracting industry are greatly enhanced as a 

result of the power that we in the Legislature now have to, in 

my opinion, break the back of the bureaucrats and I don't 

mean that in the literal sense, but in a figurative sense -

because they were running this State. Far more responsibility 

should fall on their shoulders for the state of affairs in the 

State of New Jersey than it should on this Governor, any other 

Governor, or the Legislature. So I'm really pleased that we're 

moving ahead with this process. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Yes, sir. 

MR. BRANCATO: Thank you, Senator, and members of the 

Legislative Oversight Committee. I'd like to thank you for 

allowing me to take a few moments to talk. 
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My name is Joe Brancato, and I'm the Environmental 

Manager for Georgia-Pacific Corporation. We're in Delair, New 

Jersey. We are 100 percent recyclable and we make wallboard 

paper products at our Georgia-Pacific mill in Delair. We have 

about 80 people on our payroll. 

In the last few years last four years. since I've 

been there -- we have spent more on environmental and trying to 

meet the regs than we have on production equipment. We have 

spent close to a $1,000,000 in the last four years just to try 

to meet your regulations. We have an environmental emission 

statement. I would like to read that into the record, because 

I think it's kind of pertinent to this situation. 

It says that the Delair Paper Mill adheres to the 

Georgia-Pacific Corporation policy of manufacturing paper 

products of the highest quality, and being environmentally safe 

-- sensitive at the same time. The Delair Paper Mill will not 

knowingly violate any environmental law. We will stop 

producti.on and correct any situation that causes a pol lutable 

incident. 

The Delair Paper Mill community has a long history of 

eliminating all possible sources of pollution. The future will 

be no different from the past. We will not be followers, but 

leaders in the environmental compliance field. Along with 

that, we have done our best to try to meet every kind of 

regulation that comes to be, but as soon as one regulation 

comes out, another one comes out. We try to meet one; we 

can't meet that; we have to meet the other. So it's costing 

us quite a few dollars moneywise. 

We just can't afford a lot of the regulations that 

you' re putting on our back. One of the things-- Two examples 

I'd like to cite for you are: On our DMR permit, which is a 

Discharge Monitoring Report that we put out every month, we had 

an exceedance of -- in temperature of 32 degrees centigrade. 
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Our permit says we will be no higher than 30 degrees 

centigrade on the discharge to the Delaware River. On a Monday 

morning, we stopped the flow of water to the Delaware and we 

saved it for four days in our clarifier.. We had to let this 

water go because we had no place to put it in the mill. 

Consequently, the water that had been cooking in this hot 

weather went out and caused us a violation of 32 degrees. We 

don't think that was quite fair. We don't really have the 

facility right there to cool it down. In order to do that, it 

would cost us quite a few dollars, plus chemicals, and we may 

cause another pollutable incident with the chemicals that we're 

disbursing into the cooling system. 

Some of the regulations that you're putting on us are 

really outlandish and, from what I understand, just can't be 

met at any cost. The paper industry that I'm affiliated with-

As many meetings as I go to throughout the United States, they 

·know that you don't come to Jersey. You don't expand. You 

don't do anything in Jersey; you move. 

Thank you. 

SENATOR SMITH: Can we ask questions? 

SENATOR INVERSO: Yes, just give me-- Ms. Clark, do 

you have anything? 

MS. CLARK: I'm with Georgia-Pacific Government 

Affairs. I •ve worked with Joe extensively on the regulations 

and he is correct in that there are a lot of conflicting ones. 

In order for us to meet some environmental standards, we have 

to break others. What we would like is a streamlined process. 

SENATOR INVERSO: If you could supply us with any 

specifics where there are conflicts between requirements that 

are imposed upon you, that would help this Committee get more 

specific. 

MS. CLARK: We will this week -- written specifics. 

SENATOR INVERSO: We'd appreciate that. 

Yes, Senator Smith. 
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SENATOR SMITH: Mr. Brancato, your facility is a paper 

recycling facility? 

MR. BRANCATO: Yes, sir. One hundred percent 

recycling. 

SENATOR SMITH: So what, you take old newspapers --

MR. BRANCATO: We take everything that you put on your 

curb on trash day. We recycle it. All paper products, whether 

it's newspapers, magazines, envelopes -- you name it; we do 

it. We buy from a paper broker who has access to . a 11 the 

counties in the State. In turn, we get it from that broker and 

we process it into wallboard paper. 

SENATOR SMITH: Part of that process-- I guess you tise 

a lot of water in that process? 

MR. BRANCATO: We do, yes, sir. 

SENATOR SMITH: And this water that you were talking 

about going into the Delaware, that's excess water or--

MR. BRANCATO: It's treatable water that we can't put 

into the building. We have to discharge it someplace. 

that? 

$500--

SENATOR SMITH: Do you have to have a permit for that? 

MR. BRANCATO: Yes, sir. 

SENATOR SMITH: What kind of fees are you charged for 

MR. BRANCATO: Well, in 1989 we were being charged 

SENATOR SMITH: For a year? 

MR. BRANCATO: --for a discharge permit per year. As 

of right now, we're assessed $96,000. 

SENATOR SMITH: A year? 

MR. BRANCATO: A year, and we have argued that down to 

in the 70s. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Excuse me, are we talking apples and 

apples? You're ~aying that what cost you $500 in 1989--

MR. BRANCATO: Yes, sir. 

SENATOR INVERSO: --is today costing you approximately 

$96,000, and you're getting them to concede down to $70,000? 

7 



MR. BRANCATO: We've conceded down to $72,000 and some. 

SENATOR INVERSO: For the exact permitting situation? 

MR. BRANCATO: No, let me straighten out the 

situation. We have reduced our flow to the river. We've had-

Many times we've only had two weeks of discharge to the river, 

yet our increase in the permit fees is disastrous. 

MS. CLARK: May I? 

SENATOR INVERSO: Yes, please. 

MS. CLARK: The process has not changed. Our 

production has gone from full-time capacity at $500 a year, 

down to approximately ten days a mohth of production 

operating, and now we're being assessed 

assessed $90-something-thou~~nd it's 

$70-something-thousand for less production. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Senator Smith, there. 

wel 1, we 

·down 

were 

to 

SENATOR SMITH: Yes, I wanted to ask one more 

question. This was in 1989 that you were -

MR. BRANCATO: Yes, sir. 

SENATOR SMITH: --$500 a year? How many employees did 

you have at that point in time? 

MR. BRANCATO: At that point, we had about 150 

employees. We ran 24 hours a day. We ran four shifts for 

seven days a week. 

SENATOR SMITH: How many employees do you have now 

that you're paying $70,000 a year? 

MR. BRANCATO: We have approximately 70 employees 

right now. 

SENATOR SMITH: So your operation has essentially been 

cut in half? 

MR. BRANCATO: Yes, sir. 

SENATOR SMITH: What's the future of your facility 

here? 
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MR. BRANCATO: Well, from what I understand, it may be 

-- we may be sold, or the GP might say, "Hey, expenses are too 

much." 

SENATOR INVERSO: Senator Zane. 

SENATOR ZANE: If we were asking DEPE, "Kindly try to 

explain to us why, since 1989, at full capacity the fee was 

$500, and here we are in 1993 and there are 10 days per 

month." Isn't that what you said, "They are 140 times greater 

than that at $70,000"? What would they say the reasons were? 

What have they told you the reasons are? 

MR. BRANCATO:· They have a formula that they cook up 

and they design. They put these fees in -- these parameters in 

based on, you know, DMR's that they've read, things of that 

sort and--

SENATOR ZANE: What is a DMR? 

MR. BRANCATO: DMR, everybody that has a discharge 

monitoring report, excuse me --

SENATOR ZANE: Okay, I understand it. 

MR. BRANCATO: To flow to the Delaware, you must have 

a discharge monitoring report, and it must be submitted to the 

Department every month. This has all kinds of information on 

what your permit allows you to have. 

SENATOR ZANE: Does this increase from $500 to $70,000 

result from a fine --

MR. BRANCATO: No. 

SENATOR ZANE: --or an assessment to you? 

MR. BRANCATO: No, sir. 

SENATOR ZANE: It's just the increase in the fee? 

MR. BRANCATO: The privilege to discharge to the river 

and get nothing for it. 

MS. CLARK: From what we understand, when we 

questioned the increased fees and sat down, what was explained 

to us was that to run the program, the department comes up with 

"X" number of dollars ·and then allocates out the cost. Due to 
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a lot of businesses leaving the State of New Jersey because of 

the prohibitive costs, the overlapping regulations, and 

conflicting regulations, fewer and fewer businesses are picking 

up the total burden. The pie increased, but also the pieces 

did for fewer businesses. 

SENATOR ZANE: Have you ever looked at the cost of 

doing business in another neighboring state versus New Jersey? 

Have you made any analysis? 

MR. BRANCATO: Yes, Delaware has said to come. You 

know, "We'll throw money at you. Bring your business to us; 

we want you here." 

SENATOR ZANE : Would you have those kind of fees in 

Delaware? 

MR. BRANCATO: I don't know. 

SENATOR ZANE: You don't know. 

MR. BRANCATO: I don't know, but I've heard that 

Delaware's fee structure is a lot different and easier to get 

along with. The people from the department we' re working in, 

they really want your business. Our Pryor, Oklahoma mill who 

makes the same exact product, runs more often, has more 

employees, their fee was $500. 

SENATOR INVERSO : You know, we may seem shocked by 

that because this is one of the most extraordinary increases 

that I've heard of. But it's in keeping with what we have 

heard through the budget 

Committee. There seems 

process, as well as previews to this 

to be no relationship between the 

service being delivered and the associated cost, and I know 

DEPE is not going to a time and billing on some of their 

services, if you will. There are pro's and con's on the 

efficacy of that in terms of keeping sure the cost is what it 

should be, that industry and small businesses bear only what is 

appropriate to bear for whatever the activity that DEPE is 

doing. 
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But General Motors, in my district -- well, actually 

it's the fifteenth district outside the city of Trenton 

tells a similar tale. Just to renew a permit cost them 

$10,000. They were in competition with their sister plants in 

Michigan, and I believe the other one was Ohio. In Michigan, 

similar permitting was $100 cost, and there was no charge in 

Ohio. Obviously something is wrong. This is why we're--

Senator Haines? 

SENATOR HAINES: Yes, I'd like to ask you why you cut. 

down -- I know the answer, I think -- but why you cut down from 

running around the clock to ten days a month? Why did you cut 

back on that? 

MR. BRANCATO: Housing is down. Our end product goes 

into making wallboard--

SENATOR HAINES: Oh, okay. 

MR. BRANCATO: --and the housing market is way down; 

therefore, they' re not -- sales are down. In six months, we 

usually feel it. 

SENATOR HAINES: Do you think that if DEPE forces 

other businesses out of State and they seem to be almost 

telling you to leave with their attitude -- that the rates will 

continue to go up? 

MR. BRANCATO: That's an agency that has everything. 

I can't tell you that. 

SENATOR HAINES: Okay, you probably can't answer 

that. I want you to know that what they did has nothing to do 

with any legislation that was passed. This is not a 

legislative matter. That's strictly a decision that they have 

made on their own, and this is why we have this Committee, 

because that was a bad decision on their part, as far as I'm 

concerned, and it darn well needs to be corrected -- the fees, 

I'm talking about. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Yes, Senator Smith. 

11 



SENATOR SMITH: Mr. Brancato, 

answer to this question, but it raises 

today running at the same capacity that 

1989 when your fee was $500, what would 

you have any idea? 

you may 

a point. 

you were 

your fee 

not know the 

If you were 

running at in 

be today? Do 

MR. BRANCATO: I don't know. I couldn't tell you that 

at all. 

SENATOR SMITH: Because you're at half the capacity 

and you're at $70-some-thousand dollars. 

MR. BRANCATO: We're at-- We run-- Our dis.charge to 

the river is less than half of what we were. Our production--

Our discharge to the river many days is shut down; we flow 

nothing to the river. The river itself past our plant is the 

-- the Coast Guard estimated it at one million gallons per day 

going past our plant. We have discharged-- I figured out the 

maximum we could discharge without going over our permit would 

.be 175, 000 to 150, 000 gallons per day 150, 000 gallons as 

adverse to one million gallons per day. 

SENATOR INVERSO: It's obvious that this charge isn't 

volume driven, and it's obvious that with what's occurring in 

the private sector in this State with regard to reduced 

activity and reduction in the employment force, it doesn't send 

a message to Trenton that maybe we've got to tighten our belt, 

and we've tried to. You know, the Legislature is making 

attempts to do that to constrain the costs of government. But 

this is an agency that seems to have lost sight of the kind of 

reaction they should be having to what• s happening out in the 

private sector; that is, you don't just throw more costs at 

them. We have to see -- look within to see how we can keep our 

costs in line. 

MR. BRANCATO: What I've said-

SENATOR INVERSO: I'm sorry. 

MR. BRANCATO: Excuse me. What I've said before I 

could see this coming that in the next five years the 
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employment is going to go away from the industry, but to the 

State. There will be nobod1 to regulate. 

SENATOR INVERSO: I don't believe, for one, that the 

State is the employer of last resort, nor should it be the 

employer of last resort. Without a private economy humming 

along we know how bad it is out there now -- the State 

government can't exist either, so we recognize what needs to be 

done. 

I think this Committee, as well as the Joint Economic 

Recovery Committee, has taken steps to send a message out there 

that New Jersey once again could be· business-friendly both to 

large and small businesses. We want to keep what we have. We 

want to attract new busiitesses. It's not something that's 

going to happen overnight, but we've put several initiatives in 

place, none of them in and of themselves significant, but when 

pulled together, I think it sends a proper message out there to 

the New Jerseyans and to people throughout the country that New 

Jersey can once again become a good, business-friendly State, 

that we're trying. 

Inc. 

J 0 H N 

Thank you for your comments. 

MR. BRANCATO: Thank you, sir. 

SENATOR SMITH: Thank you. 

MR. BRANCATO: Thank you. 

SENATOR INVERSO: John Schroeder, of Sybron Chemicals, 

John. 

s C H R O E D E R: I was asked if I had anything to 

hand out, to bring it in. (distributes literature) 

SENATOR INVERSO: Yes, please. 

MR. SCHROEDER: I'm John Schroeder, Vice President of 

Manufacturing for Sybron Chemicals, Inc. Sybron Chemicals is a 

worldwide manufacturer of specialty chemicals, including ion 

exchange resins, which are used to purify water; and 

selectively adapted bacteria, which are used for environmental 

cleanup and things like that. 
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I'd like to thank the Committee for allowing Sybron to 

comment on both the nature and effect of the New Jersey State 

regulations on its business. In general, I'm going to comment 

on three different issues relating to the regulations of the 

Department of Environmental Protection and Energy. 

First will be the degree to which their regulations go 

beyond the Federal requirements. That's kind of some of the 

detail that I've handed out to you, but I'll talk about that 

also. Second is the proliferation of fees and fines relative 

to those regulations. Then, finally, I'd like to personalize 

it and discuss the huge cost to Sybron and probably other New 

Jersey businesses from these regulations. 

I'm going to use a variety of different regulations as 

examples, including the New Jersey Spill Regulations, the Toxic 

Catastrophe Prevention Act Regulations, the Clean Air Act, and 

a little bit about pollution prevention. Now, I also want to 

stress I'm not going to talk about less envi ronmenta 1 

protection. What I'm going to talk about is less paperwork, 

less command and control mentality. If we could achieve those 

things, business will have a lower cost, and we believe that 

the environment will also be better off. 

To start, I'd just like to show you an example of what 

happens when New Jersey takes over and runs some of its 

programs. This particular document (indicating documents) -- I 

only show you so you can take a look at its thickness -- is the 

Federal Spill Requirements. Here's New Jersey, a few trees 

killed in this one. In this reg, New Jersey regulates 

facilities storing as little as 20,000 gallons of 1700 

different substances. The Federal regulation requires 

f aci 1 i ties to store one mi 11 ion gallons, 50 times as much of 

only 400 substances, or only one quarter of the substances are 

covered. 

To 

inspections 

make this even 

to be documented 

worse, New Jersey 

before every time 
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material in our facility that's hundreds, if not thousands 

of times each week -- and the regs also require that we map 15 

miles downstream on the Rancocas, which is where we're located, 

for environmentally sensitive areas. That cost us, in our 

case, about $35,000, although I've heard ranges of $25,000 to 

$75,000 for other facilities. 

I'm going to talk a little bit more about these costs 

later. Obviously, in the 77 pages here, there are other 

requirements. There are extensive requirements in the areas of 

training, operating procedures, emergency procedures, and so 

forth. There also are some things that I view that really do 

have .something to do with preventing spills from reaching the 

waters of the State, which I think is the intent of those 

regulations, for instance, dikes, cement floors, and so forth. 

Those things we' re in agreement with. We believe that should 

be done. 

I'll show you another difference. OSHA regulates 

what• s called Process Safety Management. Process Safety 

Management, I guess, really relates to preventing catastrophic 

releases Bhopa 1, those types of releases. This is OSHA' s 

regulation (indicating); here's New Jersey's. 

New Jersey regs in these number of pages 

Obviously, the 

are incredibly 

prescriptive they lay out detailed requirements for every 

aspect of plant performance. 

What OSHA does is set guidelines and say, "Okay, meet 

the rough guidelines and perform", but New Jersey, again, 

covers every detail. Fifteen pages of this is an annual 

checklist you have to fill out, which is a preface to the 

annual inspection that you get. Essentially, a facility like 

Sybron has three chemicals that are covered by this. We, 

again, to comply -- to be ready for an annual inspection 

need to have somewhere between thousand's and tens of 

thousand's of pieces of paper at our fingertips for the 

inspection. Our .Plant has just over 100 hourly employees and 
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our inspection was four days, five-man DEPE team, so a huge 

amount of time-- It's absolutely impossible for a facility like 

cur's to comply with every bit of a regulation like this. 

Another example is pollution prevention. Industry 

fully supported the concept of pollution prevention. In fact, 

Sybron is one of three companies -- we joined two others 

that volunteered for and underwent a pre-pi lot program to go 

ahead before the law was even passed the Pollution 

Prevention Act and start working on the regs and to help 

out. So we were really involved and interested in this 

program, and very supportive of it. 

After the regs came out, we took a look and estimated 

that the paperwork you had to fill out before you started doing 

anything was about ten man-years worth of paperwork. We had 

kind of gone through a subtlety different process and said, 

"Wait a minute. We can get all this information and get to the 

business of pollution prevention with just over a man-year of 

paperwork." We made those comments, but unfortunately the regs 

have come out that will require the ten man-years worth, I 

think what that does is, people will spend that ten man-years, 

when they could have been spending one doing the paperwork and 

nine preventing pollution. 

So again, another big problem, and one other note: 

Right now there are no specific Federal requirements for 

pollution prevention, and New Jersey is sitting there with-- I 

could have shown another one just as thick for pollution 

prevention. 

One other example, I guess, is the Clean Air Act, 

where right now New Jersey has proposed some amendments that 

go, again, beyond the Federal requirements. Right now, they 

are I guess in their own words now regulating 1000 

chemical plants, or intending to regulate 1000 chemical plants 

in New Jersey that would not be regulated by the Federal act in 

terms of a leak detection or repair program. What this means 
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is that you must look at every flange, every valve, every piece 

of equipment in your facility and keep records, test to see if 

they' re leaking, and so forth. The Federal government requires 

that certain very specific manufacturers of large volume 

chemicals do this, but New Jersey, again, is going to go 

beyond. What I hope is good from these examples is that New 

Jersey regulations are so prescriptive and so detailed that no 

one, no matter how well-staffed, how well-intentioned, can 

really comply. 

One other note on this, because there is a way to deal 

with this: In South Carolina, where we also have a facility 

that manufactures special textile chemicals, when the 

regulations come out from the Fed's, South Carolina just takes 

them and says these are our regulations, so places do it. It 

can be done that way. 

However, this leads to my second issue, which is fees 

and fines. I think it's become pretty well-known that 83 

percent of the Department's funding comes from these fines. 

And just as another illustration, for the two regs I showed 

you, these were the Federal regs (indicating). The same length 

are the New Jersey fees and fines -- I mean, a part of the 

regs. I find this really quite incredible, and to be clear, 

most of these fines and fees they' re not for polluting. 

They're for things like missing a piece of paper. 

For example, missing training one person out of fifty 

in your facility, in the leak detection program, was talking 

about if you miss one valve, you'll be fined. Spill Regulation 

contains fines, for example, for almost every section of. the 77 

pages of the regulations. And, of course, you've already heard 

a little bit about fees. Many facilities, as Joe mentioned, 

have seen their waste treatment plant fees growing. Our story 

here is $12, 000 .was our waste water fee in 1989, over $85, 000 

in 1993, with, I would say, probably a 30 or 40 percent 

increase in production, so that there is some increase there 
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due to that, but largely it's due to the fact of balancing, I 

think, the DEPE's budget here and having to cover their costs. 

Application fees for air permits have also grown from about $50 

in the late '80s, to over $1000 today for air pollution 

applications. 

I'd like to turn just for a few seconds to Sybron 

itself. Relative to spill control, we've estimated that we'll 

be spending somewhere between $250,000 and $500,000 for capital 

improvement to satisfy the requirements of the regulation over 

the next year or two. This is for a site that has never had a 

significant discharge as defined by the act. 

Paperwork and administrative burdens are estimated 

that they' re going to take one ·to two man-years of effort each 

year to keep up with. This is in addition to the mapping that 

I mentioned earlier, where we spent our $35, 000, and also a 

major written plan will be required by the act. We weren't 

even covered by the rules prior to 1991. We weren't a major 

facility under the act, but the DEPE changed it. They changed 

it because of incidents like the Valdez and like the pipeline 

problem in the Arthur Kill. These were massive spills. Now 

they're covering spills down as low as zero to nine gallons. 

To me, again, I just find this incredible. These are orders of 

magnitude greater than Sybron could ever deal with. 

Process safety management: We spent over $1 mi Ilion 

so far to upgrade our facilities to meet the principles of 

process-safety management and are estimating that we' re 

spending two to three man-years every single year to maintain 

compliance. Of course, New Jersey has already changed their 

original 1986 rules -- recently issued a new set. These are 

even more prescriptive and cover more items than before. And 

of course, every time you have an annual inspection, things are 

found that are wrong. Right now we' re looking, typically, at 

$50, 000 to $100, 000 of extra expenses that stem out of every 

annual inspection. 
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We believe we really are an extraordinarily 

responsible small company. We've already, as I've noted, been 

one of the three companies to volunteer for pollution 

prevention. As many of you in this room know, we have a 

community relations program that we believe is second to none 

in the country, but the regulations that I talked about really 

don• t seem to take any of this into account. They set page 

after page of requirements and costs with too little regard for 

the benefit to be derived from these costs. 

I've shown millions of dollars, and man-year after 

man-year of effort that we have to go through to comply for a 

plant with just over 100 employees. I strongly urge that this 

Committee carefully review these and other similar regulations, 

and act to change them to require performance, not paperwork. 

Thank you. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Thank you. 

Any questions from the Committee? 

Assemblyman Shinn. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: Just a comment, Peter, if I may? 

SENATOR INVERSO: Sure. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: It just struck me as being 

interesting: Both these companies that testified are both in 

the environmental business. One is a recycler of environmental 

of paper, the other one is an environmental clean-up 

company, which we sorely need in this State. 

If we' re going to implement our recycling goals and 

our environmental strategies, you have to have local companies 

that: a), use a product so that you have a market to recycle; 

and b), I know Sybron does a lot of bioremediation for spi 11 

clean-ups and that's important. A quick response to a spill is 

absolutely critical with fuel oil spills, etc. So these aren't 

just normal companies we're hearing; these are companies that 

dea 1 in the envi ronmenta 1 field. I think that's particularly 

noteworthy. 
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The other thing that I thought just back to 

Georgia-Pacific for a moment-- I just did some quick numbers 

on-- I guess the Clean Water Act is how they're regulating your 

discharge, right? The NJPDES permit -- Clean Water Act? 

MR. BRANCATO: (speaking from audience) Yes, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: The background river temperature 

is 60 degrees or so, something like that? 

MR. BRANCATO: Depending on the time of the year. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: Right about now somewhere around 

60, 58, 56 and your normal discharge ·temperature is 30 

degrees? 

MR. BRANCATO: No, it's normally 20 degrees centigrade. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: Okay, so you were actually 

discharging warmer than your permit requires-

MR. BRANCATO: Two degrees warmer. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: --and in my rough calculations, 

that's like O. 0003 impact on background temperature. I mean, 

it's like ~.0003 of a degree, is that that's a minor 

violation under the Clean Water Act? 

MR. BRANCATO: We haven't got the word back from the 

State yet on that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: I think one problem we have to 

deal with legislatively is, we did the Clean Water Act Bill, as 

you recall, 

Department. 

Sybron or a 

jurisdiction; 

from the Legislature. We can't differentiate the 

If you listen to the inspector commenting to a 

Georgia-Pacific, they will .say, "We have no 

the Legislature has tied our hands. We have to 

fine you," bing, bing, bing, bing. Minor violations like 

the temperature violation-- I've heard violation after 

violation that people are getting fined. If you have, what, -

two minors, it's a major; or three minors, it's a major; one 

or the other, I think. 

MR. BRANCATO: Four, four is a crime. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: Four, okay, four. Even though 

it's a minor violation that has no significant impact like 

temperature, then you become a major violator. Then it can get 

~ into a whole new catagory of horrendous fines--

MR. BRANCATO: Fortune~. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: The bottom line, when you stretch 

all that out -- and it's complicated and it's hard to get a 

handle on -- but the bottom line is: These companies are going 

to expand elsewhere, and maybe sometime in the future, unless 

things change, aren't going to be here. That's going to be 

sad. 

I'm just thinking of where Sybron's located in 

Pemberton Township. They are about the only industry in 

Pemberton Township of any real size or employment volume. That 

loss would be horrendous to Pemberton Township, so I really 

think this thing is an area that we have to investigate 

legislatively, and really spend some time on the issues. Get 

DEPE back into a budget process and get a handle on this whole 

area. It has dynamic implications. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Excuse me. I'd like to: One, 

welcome Assemblyman Jose Sosa, who joined us; and Assemblyman 

Sosa does have a question; and then I'll get back to you sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SOSA: Thank you, Chairman. Welcome to 

the seventh district. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Nice to be here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SOSA: Mr. Schroeder, can you help me out 

in terms of where you see DEPE permits, regulations, fines, and 

so on, are? Have they plateaued? Are they still growing in 

size, in scope, and number at this point? 

MR. SCHROEDER: I think for sure they' re growing in 

size, scope, and number. Again, one of the reasons I showed 

those number of pages is because that didn't used to be the 

case. There wasn't ten pages of fines listed in the back of a 

regulation, and now there is. Of course, the numbers are going 

up as well in terms of the dollars. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN SOSA: I sit on the Joint Committee on 

Economic Recovery, and we had testimony a while back from a 

firm that is in the business of relocating corporations across 

the country. One of the observations that they've made about 

New Jersey is that governors, both Democrat and Republican, 

have been faulty in trying to recruit more companies into the 

State of New Jersey. 

Clearly, based on the testimony that we're hearing 

today, that has been understood for quite a long time. DEPE 

has been an impediment. I understand that The Wall Street 

Journal has just reported that New Jersey, I think, ranks 43rd 

in the country in terms of attractiveness to small businesses. 

The question I have for you is, what is your breaking point? 

When do you decide that you've had enough, and when do you 

decide, then, to make a decision about whether to stay or move? 

MR. SCHROEDER: It's very, very hard to do that 

because our business is extremely capital intensive; to pick 

up a facility and relocate it is almost impossible. But to 

give you an example, we recently made an acquisition of a 

product line of the textile business, and we manufacture 

products similar to this product line in both our New Jersey 

facility and in our South Carolina facility. 

We went down to talk with the environmental folks, the 

governor's staff, and so forth in South Carolina. Open arms 

welcomed us. They met with us; they expedited the process of 

permitting. Truly, in our minds this was a major factor in 

terms of deciding to take that product line and put it down in 

South Carolina. Again, it would be very, very tough to pick up 

our business and move it. But future decisions that are, 

"Where do we locate new lines," well, that's more an open 

question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SOSA: From a businessperson's 

perspective, I know that legislators and people in the 

administration have their own views about how to tackle this 
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particular problem of the operations and the scope of that 

department. Do you have _any particular feelings about how that 

should be at least preliminarily studied, reviewed, and then 

acted upon? 

MR. SCHROEDER: Yes, a couple. First, I think that 

something ought to be done to take the DEPE and essentially 

say, "If you're going to do something that's essentially the 

same thing that a Federal regulation or act does, then you 

should do it to that degree and no more." Most of the Federal 

acts take into account things like, "It's worse in our 

State," which is generally what you hear as a response to 

that. 

The Clean Air ·Act said if you're a severe 

nonattainment state, you regulate more harshly. So, again, you 

can still do exactly what the Federal acts say in New Jersey; 

you don't have to go beyond it. I think when it comes to fees 

and fines, one thing that has to be done there is, you can't 

continue to fine people for bureaucratic and paperwork types of 

problems. What you've got to do is say for those things you 

get some time. You get a chance to fix them, if indeed they 

had to be there. It was important that the laws be that 

prescriptive in the first place. Maybe if you don't do them 

after the second or third time, a fine is more appropriate. If 

you have a discharge, if you harm the environment -- that's 

where the fines and fees ought to be involved -- the fines 

ought to be involved. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SOSA: Well, how often does that happen? 

Isn't there a window of time that you have to fix your problem 

before you get fined? 

MR. SCHROEDER: In many, acts after an inspection 

you're just nailed right away. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Mr. Schroeder. 

Sorry, you had your hand up? 
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MR. BRANCATO: (from audience) I was just going to say 

that in places that we-- Our employees -- most of them are high 

school educated, and they've been around and been around 

learning our process and everything. If we were to close 

down-- I mean, it's not really hard easy to train these 

people into something else. So you don't really lose a good 

worker. 

SENATOR HAINES: Mr. Chairman. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Yes, sir. 

SENATOR HAINES: John, what's this is overhead, I 

guess. This is where yo.u put it. What does it do to your 

overhead? What percentage of your overhead do you put aside 

for this? It seems to me that, you know, it acts -- it sounds 

as if it's almost impossible to continue. 

MR. SCHROEDER: Well, it's impossible to keep up, 

that's for sure. We've never really stood back and calculated 

the costs of compliance as what is a percentage of our 

overhead. As !'ye indicated, we're talking not just about our 

environmental department, which is how a lot of companies have 

historically done this, but when I talk about five, six 

man-years of effort each year, it's extending fully into the 

operations. Jerry 

involved. We' re all 

Misner, our plant manager, is heavily 

involved. So everybody's spending time. 

It's probably a worthwhile number 

calculate, because it's huge as a 

overhead 

to sit back and try to 

percentage of our total 

SENATOR HAINES: You haven't done that? 

MR. SCHROEDER: No. 

SENATOR HAINES: To me there should be intent in terms 

of fines. I think I would like to see DEPE have to prove 

intent before they can make a fine. Would this make sense to 

you? 

MR. SCHROEDER: Yes. 
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SENATOR HAINES: I mean, you guys-- I know your 

company; I've been through it. You guys have bent over 

backwards to do the right thing. You really have. I don't 

think any other company has gone to the extent that you guys 

have bent over backwards to do the right thing, and then they 

fine you because you don't have the paperwork on a valve? I 

mean, that's -- that's asinine. 

MR. SCHROEDER: We didn't like it either. 

SENATOR HAINES: There's probably a worse word for it, 

but that was the only one I could think of. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Well, don't hold back, Senator. 

We' re· a completely open hearing today. 

Yes, Senator Smith. 

SENATOR SMITH: Mr. Schroeder, you indicated that you 

used one example of missing you missed training for one 

person out of fifty. What did that involve? 

MR. SCHROEDER: Yes, well I was using generic 

examples. In our specific case, under TCPA one of the things 

that is required -- or that you can write up plans as we did -

to do is to train your mechanics, for example, to work on the 

processes. We had one mechanic who was absent during the 

period that we did the training on vacation, I believe --

and that's out of 33 mechanics or not 33, about 20 mechanics 

in this case -- and indeed, we received a little fine after the 

inspection for that. Nineteen of the twenty were trained; one 

wasn't. We didn't have any releases. 

SENATOR SMITH: I'm not sure l.f this was related to 

Sybron or not, but I had heard that there was -- you had a pump 

problem; that you had to have some testing done on a pump and 

you had to get a permit because-- Maybe Jerry knows about that--

MR. SCHROEDER: That's our well pump, yes. I don't 

know that much about it. I think we had to get a temporary 

permit to discharge to the creek. 
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water? 

SENATOR SMITH: Your drink-- It was your drinking 

MR. SCHROEDER: No, it was our plant process water-

SENATOR SMITH: Oh, process water--

MR. SCHROEDER: --but it's a PRM deep well, and 

basically one that most towns use for their drinking water. We 

needed to flush and so forth, the well. We needed to pump at 

high volumes for a short period of time, so we needed to get a 

permit on an emergency basis to do it--

J E R R O L D M I T Z R E R: (speaking from audience) And 

the story--

SENATOR INVERSO: Jerry, go ahead. 

MR. MITZNER: The story was that when we called up and 

asked for permission to do this testing on this well -- after 

it had been prepared, the DEPE said we needed a special permit 

at one time. But we needed to conduct our priority pollutant 

analysis, which takes six weeks and costs $1200 to do. This is 

just to take well water and pump it right into the river for a 

couple of hours. 

SENATOR INVERSO: We're transcribing this hearing. 

Anyone that is asked to make a comment, or wishes to make a 

comment should come forward so we can pick it up, because the 

Office of Legislative Services staff is not able to pick up 

your comments. 

Would you care to repeat that -- forward, yes. This 

way we'll have a complete record. Just introduce yourself. 

MR. MITZNER: My name is Jerry Mitzner, from Sybron 

Chemical. After we repaired a well pump, we needed to test out 

the pump to make sure it was pumping at its rated 

requirements. So we called the DEPE to notify them that we 

were going to pump water out of the acquifer right into the 

river for a couple of hours. They said we needed a permit and 

we said, "Fine, we'd like to get a permit." They said, 

"Well, in order to do that, you need to obtain a priority 
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pollutant analysis," which characterizes all the pollutants in 

a water stream. This makes sense for most discharges, but when 

all you're doing is pumping water out of the acquifer, this is 

obviously irrelevant and expensive. It's a $1200. test that 

takes six weeks to get the analysis back from an independent 

laboratory, but this is what the administrator required of us. 

We said, "This is absurd. We don't have that time to wait, 

nor do we want to spend that kind of money." 

Finally, we went higher in the department and they 

did, indeed, grant the permit on a temporary basis without 

those costs. But it took somebody at a very high level in the 

department to make that judgement, and the people responsible 

for that permit would not make that decision. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Anything else? 

Okay, thank you, gentlemen. Thank you for coming in. 

Next we'll have Fred Hardt, from the Pemberton 

Township Board of Education; and Dennis Stann, from the 

Pemberton Township Board of Education -- Starr. I'm sorry, it 

looks like two N's instead of R's. 

F R E D E R I C K w. H A R D T, ESQ: I also have Mr. 

Curry here, who is our plant operator. I will pass on his 

information with some handouts which may be needed to 

understand what I'm going to say. (distributes literature) 

Senator--

SENATOR INVERSO: Yes, go ahead. 

MR. HARDT: My name is Fred Hardt. I'm the attorney 

for the Pemberton Board of Education, special needs district 

located in Burlington County. Our Superintendent, Dr. Elder, 

and the President of the Board, Mack Thatcher, had hoped to be 

here today. Unfortunately, they're in Washington with 

Congressman Saxton and the Department of Defense trying to come 

to grips with F.ort Dix, McGuire, and assorted problems that 

have to hold for our district, which has a primary function of 

educating Fort Dix's children. 
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We also operate a small sewer plant at the Helen Fort 

School. Mr. Curry is the l;censed plant operator for that 

system. He is responsible to our Superintendent of Plant 

Facilities -- or Building and Grounds, Dennis Starr. I can't 

ever get the title down pat. One of the schools that we 

operate out of the thirteen is the Helen Fort Middle School. 

The sewer plant operates for that system. We educate in any 

given year approximately 6900 students. It is not a small 

district. 

In October of 1991, a chlorinator at the plant broke. 

This led to a malfunction in the system ~nd a discharge into a 

tributary of the Rancocas. We attempted to rebuild the 

chlorinator. It broke again, leading to another discharge, all 

of which was corrected between the months of October and 

December of 1991. I think it's in-- We were subsequently 

fined, and the matter was resolved. Our tale of woe is what I 

am here to elaborate on. I think it's important to know what 

we were fined for and how that process worked. Before you, 

you will see a series of definitions. They are from a manual 

which is used by the Department. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Well, there's one set. Just one set 

that you've made available to us. 

MR. HARDT: Now, there are a series there are 

copies for everyone, Senator. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Oh, there are? 

MR. HARDT: Yes, and I'm not sure I didn't leave the 

manual with you. Yes, I'm going to need that back. 

SENATOR INVERSO: These people charge you to get this 

back. (laughter) 

MR. HARDT: They are from this manual, which is for 

the Discharge Mani to ring Report. This is the form which is 

filled out and submitted monthly. You have a copy of a sample 

which is applicable to Pemberton's plant. In March, I think it 
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was, we were assessed a penalty in the amount of $50, 000 for 

violating not the standards of a district, not for discharges, 

but for exceeding the standards set forth in the DMR. 

SENATOR SMITH: This was the school district? 

MR. HARDT: The school district. If you take a look 

at the penalty on the second page. This is this document. 

(indicating) 

SENATOR INVERSO: Oh, I have a different document. 

MR. HARDT: On the second page, you will see--

SENATOR INVERSO: If you could just give us ~ moment, 

maybe we can catch up with you on the distribution of the 

documents. 

MR. HARDT: Sure. 

SENATOR INVERSO: 

referring to this document 

Township?" 

It will just be a moment. Are you 

here, "In the Matter of Pemberton 

MR. HARDT: Yes, it's an Administrative Order and 

Notice of Civil Administrative Penalty. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Right. Okay, I think that's the 

last one we circulated. 

MR. HARDT: On the second and third pages, you wi 11 

see a listing of the nature of the violation. You will note on 

the third page that under pH and FC, which is fecal coliform 

and so forth, you are dealing with weekly averages, monthly 

averages, and items along that line. The district engages in 

monthly testing. A test-- The report reflects a monthly test. 

If you conducted a series of tests, you could average them and 

put that information in the form. But we didn't do that, we 

reported the one test result. 

When you had a discharge that one test, because it was 

in close proximity to the discharge, meant it's in violation of 

the regulations. It wasn't that the violation was particularly 

serious in and of itself, but that in a statistical averaging 

of only one test, you ended up with a significant excess of the 
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parameters under the permit. In addition, although the form 

manual suggests that you are to average such things as test 

results on pH factoring, the DMR, which is the basis upon which 

penalties are assessed, requires that _you put the minimum 

requirement down on the form. 

What do I mean? If at six o'clock in the morning you 

test a plant effluent for pH and you get a reading of 5.5, and 

then later in the day you test the pH of that effluent and get 

a 7, the instructions suggest that you are to average the two 

to get an average result, put it on the form, and send it. 

That's not the way the form is to be filled out. You must use 

the 5.5, not an average, but the minimum result that you 

achieved. Some of the violations that we are achieving are the 

result of putting down the minimum number rather than average. 

Had we averaged, we would have been in compliance with our 

permit limitations. 

In any event, this matter went to to a hearing. We 

resolved th~ issue. We ended up paying a fine of $10,000 based 

on my recommendation, which was in part premised on the fact 

that we would be spending more money than $10, 000 to litigate 

this, because I had no hope that we would be successful. The 

administrative operations would probably have to go to the 

Appellate Division for success, and success at the Appellate 

Division is not necessarily guaranteed. 

As part of the settlement of this matter, we were 

required to prepare an operations manual. This is an 

operations manual for the sewer plant. (indicating) The 

settlement agreement suggested that this was to be submitted by 

April 1. The settlement, or the Administrative Order was 

approved by the Pemberton Board of Education on March 8. The 

Board had hired a consultant to prepare the manual at a cost of 

' approximately $5,000. It was delivered to my office in a local 

district on March 25. I suggested that these two gentlemen 

review it because they had to live with the resulting 

document. 
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Through inadvertance and stupidity on my part, this 

did not make it to the DEPE until April 13. In June, several 

months later, we received back from the Department its review. 

It recommended very minor changes in the manual, which were 

subsequently made and incorporated in the manual which is now 

on file with the district. It also suggested, because we were 

thirteen days late in filing the manual which they took two 

months to review and approve as to sufficiency, we should pay 

them $17, 000, or approximately $7, 000 more than what it was· 

initially -- we were initially fined. That is because--

SENATOR SMITH: Mr. Hardt, can I stop you for a second? 

MR. HARDT: Sure. 

SENATOR SMITH: You're saying that the DEPE assessed a 

fine against the school district for $17,000 because this 

manual was twelve days late? 

SENATOR INVERSO: Two pieces, $10,000 was the original 

fine, and $7,000 was for a late submission. 

went up. 

$17,000. 

MR. HARDT: No, sir, $17,000 exclusive of the $10,000. 

SENATOR INVERSO: I thought I heard you say that it 

Did you hear it that way also? 

SENATOR ZANE: No. 

SENATOR INVERSO: I thought I heard you say it was 

MR. HARDT: As set forth in the letter of June 21 

which is before you, DEPE assessed a fine -- actually they sent 

along a receipt. We could send the money into them. 

SENATOR ZANE: Are you saying that the whole thing 

cost $27,000? 

SENATOR INVERSO: $27,000. 

MR. HARDT: Exactly. We have not paid this. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Okay. Sorry, sir, but I thought I 

had heard the opposite, the same as Senator Zane had heard. 
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MR. HARDT: Ten thousand dollars initially, and 

seventeen thousand dollars more because the manual did not 

reach them. Now, we did some investigation, and our 

investigation--

SENATOR SMITH: How late was the manual? 

SENATOR INVERSO: Thirteen days. 

MR. HARDT: Our investigation suggests had we called 

on March 30, it is routine for the DEPE to grant extensions. 

We did not call. That is our fault. We should have. I don't 

think that lack of a call is worth $17,000. We have·asked for 

consideration of this matter at the DEPE. We have not gotten 

relief on this point yet. There is a petition before the 

Commissioner asking to amend the Administrative Order -- since 

the fines are built into the order -- to change the date from 

April 1 to May 1. If that is granted, then these fines 

disappear. There is no guarantee we will get that. 

SENATOR SMITH: I have a question for you. I'm 

looking at this consent order here, and it talks about 

stipulated penalities of so many -- $1000 per day for the first 

seven days, $2000 for eight to fourteen days. Is that the 

provision under which you were assessed this $17,000 fine? 

MR. HARDT: Yes, sir. 

SENATOR SMITH: So it was in the order that they could 

do this. 

MR. HARDT: Yes, and the order is really, I don't 

believe, negotiable. I think these are boilerplate orders 

which the department utilizes uniformly. I would hope that 

they would have used some reason in the assessment of penalties 

under it, but apparently if you are in violation of any 

provision, the penalty flows naturally from that consequence. 

SENATOR SMITH: Are there statutes that permit the 

DEPE to fine for late reports? 

MR. HARDT: Not to my knowledge. If you exceed NJPDES 

discharge limits, obviously there is a penalty provision. 
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SENATOR SMITH: Well, that's talking about discharges, 

but we're talking about a late report. 

MR. HARDT: That's correct. 

SENATOR SMITH: Is there any statutory approval for 

them to fine for late reports? 

MR. HARDT: I would also note that there is a 

difference between the DMR's. We have just been notified that 

we' re in violation of our permit. The DMR requires that we 

submit what is called a "daily grab", which I assume is when 

you collect effluent. Our permit says you're supposed to use-

HOWARD CURRY: A four-hour-deposit/composite. 

MR. HARDT: There is no place .on this form to put the 

four-hour deposit. If we d-on' t do the four-hour deposit test, 

we're in violation of the permit. If we don't fill out the DMR 

containing the correct information -- that is, the daily grab 

-- we are in violation of the DMR regulation. We are about to 

place a call to the DEPE to ask what do they want us to do, but 

we have been cited for a violation for not complying with the 

permit when the DMR reporting requirement is inconsistent with 

the permit. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Excuse me. Is this the first time 

that that inconsistency has arisen? 

MR. HARDT: This is the first time this particular 

inconsistency has arisen. There are numerous inconsistencies. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Have they been resolved to your 

satisfaction in the past? 

MR. HARDT: We have been operating upon a continued 

expired permit since 1989. To my knowledge, the DEPE is 

undergoing a review of the regulation and standards to-- Until 

we know what those new standards are, I can't tel 1 you the 

extent of the inconsistencies. I can tell you that as you go 

through this there are a variety of inconsistencies. Between 

the permit standards and the reporting requirements, you can be 

violated for either offense. 
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SENATOR INVERSO: I guess what my question was driving 

at the heart of whether or not they have been cooperative in 

working with you when you bring to their attention something 

that is an inconsistency that has been generated by them, as 

opposed to anything that you've had in terms of compliance? 

Have they been resolved satisfactorily? 

MR. HARDT: I have to say no in the following 

context: We were told to report it one way in the DMR's, did 

that, and have just been recently notified of a violation 

because we did it that way. 

SENATOR INVERSO:· Did it that way. It's a real 

catch-22. 

MR. HARDT: Yes, sir. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Senator Zane. 

SENATOR ZANE: Mr. Chairman, I have a meeting in Salem 

at one o'clock and I'm going to have to leave, but just one 

thing I'd like to add to what they're talking about: 

There is a county that I'm very familiar with; it's 

one of the counties within my district. They were requested by 

a municipality to perform a particular service within that 

municipality, one that they offered to everybody, and the only 

activity of the municipality was to request that service. They 

didn't provide any man-power; they didn't provide any money; 

they didn't do anything else. They said to this agency, 

"Would you come in and do such and such?" In fact, as I 

recall, the county actually offered to do it. Then the 

municipality said yes, and sometime later the service was 

performed. 

In the opinion of DEPE, 

properly by this particular 

the service was 

county, and 

not performed 

because the 

municipality's total involvement was to request the county 

agency to ·do that, they were fined $105,000. That will show 

you what kind of nonsense the people are putting up with in the 

State with DEPE. The worst thing that was ever done, in my 
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opinion, for all of us in this State was for DEPE to be 

self-funding by 83 percent of its fees, etc. I mean, it's 

incumbent .upon them to harass the hell out of people and drive 

them nuts. It keeps them gainfully employed for long periods 

of time. But that is an absolute true story about a 

~ municipality. 

~ SENATOR INVERSO: Yes, well that's incredible. 

DENN I S ST ARR: Senator, can I say something? 

SENATOR INVERSO: Sure, Mr. Starr. 

MR. STARR: Just to let you know a little bit of 

history about our plant, it's approximately 35 years or older. 

I've ·been in this business since March of '91, and I've had 

three different representatives of the DEPE. Each one of them 

complimented me on the condition of my plant and the 

maintaining of it because of the age and everything that we've 

done. Every time they would come out and they'd request this 

or that, I had made sure that we had followed their suggestions 

even before the violations had come out, and done everything 

possible to meet what they wanted. It seemed every time I 

turned around, a couple days later, or about a week, two weeks 

later, I'm getting violation reports sent to me about-- I'm 

under the impression with them that they' re happy with what's 

going on with our plant. 

This is very confusing and stuff on our part. Some of 

these suggestions, and some of the stuff we had done to meet 

the violations that were requested-- _We spent $28,000 in 

purchasing equipment; we built a building out there; we alarmed 

our system. Everything they have suggested, the school 

district has done. It just seems every time I turn around, I'm 

getting hit with something different. I have 14 buildings that 

I have to maintain, which means that I have to pull people off 

other jobs and other buildings to come into compliance to what 

they want. I feel partly, with the school board, the 
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superintendent, and everybody else involved, we had done 

everything in our power to try to passify them. But it just 

seems like a no-win situation on my part. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Frustration, !_suppose. 

MR. STARR: Yes, very. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Senator Haines. 

SENATOR HAINES: I just want to make a comment. I 

mean, this agency apparently is doing two things. They're 

chasing business out of the state, and in your case, they' re 

lowering the quality of education in the state. Because the 

money doesn't come from -- you don't just pick it up out of the 

air; it comes from somewhere. If they were reasonable with 

you-- I mean, a 13 day delay in issuing a manual is 

ridiculous. If they were reasonable, that $17, 000 or $27, 000 

could be spent on teacher's salaries, instead of being spent on 

something that's totally arbitrary. I think it's disgusting. 

SENATOR INVERSO: You' 11 let us know how you fare in 

that process. 

MR. HARDT: Will do, Senator. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Okay. Thank you. 

Tom Bates, Huntsman Polypropylene Corporation, and 

Hal Bozarth. 

HAL 

Are you together? (affirmative response) 

Okay, Hal, Chemical Industry Council. 

B 0 Z AR TH: Good morning, Mr. Chairman. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Good morning. 

MR. BOZARTH: Senators and Assemblyman, it's a 

pleasure to be here in Bur 1 ington County. We've decided to 

come as a panel because I thought it would be a good idea if I 

could hit four or five broad, overall points, and then let Mr. 

Bates talk about his specific situation with regard to his 

plant in the southern part of the State. 

I think what you've heard today is something that, for 

all of you sitting around the table, is not new. I mean, I 
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know those people in the Legislature who have been actively 

involved in this issue. They're all right here. I give you a 

lot of credit for doing more of this, because frankly, 

something' s got to stop. It's just not that Pemberton can't 

hire another teacher or part of a teacher for that extra 

money. It's the people that I represent that can make 

improvements in environmental protection or stay in business 

with that money; rather feed the private sector and public 

education than a bureaucracy that is, frankly, doing nothing 

positive for either the environment in many cases, or for the 

public good. 

I represent people in the chemical process industry. 

That's flavors and fragrances, pharmaceutical companies, 

chemical companies, and precious metal companies, pretty much 

the Fortune 100 and 200 type of companies that you would all be 

familiar with. They have in their employ around the State 

about 115,000 to 119,000 people. That's a significant base to 

the manufacturing in the State of New Jersey. 

Now, those numbers are down significantly from where 

they were five years ago, or eight years ago, but they are 

still significant. Without a vibrant manufacturing sector -

and you've all heard us all on this many times -- we run the 

risk in New Jersey of having continued significant budget 

problems. 

Let me just tell you: In 1992 the chemical process 

industry lost 6000 jobs, not an insignificant number; not much 

compared with the general manufacturing sector as a whole, but 

still significant to those 6000 people. 

You all remember that there was a budget deficit in 

New Jersey in 1992 of $300 million to $400 million at one 

point. Those 6000 who lost their jobs in that year alone, had 

they continued to work and pay taxes, would have closed that 

budget deficit with not one extra thing being done -- totally. 
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That's the kind of impact we' re having here. And I 

should say at the outset of my little talk here, we try not to 

be personal about the folks in the DEPE. I know there are good 

people working in the Department, with good intentions, with 

good education, trying to work within a system that, for 

whatever reason, doesn't happen. And there have been good 

people in the Department in all the 13 years that I have been 

doing this. 

But I watched what happened with the Department, and 

it just goes on and on and does not get better. I'm not going 

to get into the business of how many people are in the 

Department, but I am going to hit on that· 83 percent funding 

mechanism that Senator Zane and others talked about. That's an 

incredible business. We've testified in front of both 

Appropriations Committees, for the last two years running, that 

all of those fees and fines ought to be taken from below the 

line and put above the line. 

You folks who drive the policy in the State of New 

Jersey ought to have a say in how that money is collected and 

how it's spent. Right now, you don't. The policy makers in 

the State of New Jersey have absolutely no input to that, and 

that's not right. 

I have some quick facts that I want to talk about. 

I'm going to gloss over for a second the job loss. But I want 

to tell you that it's not-- We shouldn't gloss it over for 

those individuals involved. We lost $285 million in yearly 

payroll in 1992, 18,000 jobs in the chemical process alone from 

'80 to '92. The resulting loss was $855 million less to the 

State of New 

else, to the 

The 

it's such a 

Our average 

some of the 

Jersey to the State of New Jersey, not anybody 

State. It goes on and on. 

real interesting thing about manufacturing is that 

high-paying occupation for people who are in it. 

salary including everybody is about $47,000 for 

chemical processing industry. That's significant. 
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You can't replace a job, when 

somebody in the service economy. 

you lose it at $47, 000, with 

And I don't care whether it's 

working for somebody in an insurance company, or it's working 

for a fast-food restaurant, or it's working for_ practically 

anybody. Those people cannot find commensurate jobs; $47,000 

is a lot of money to people to be put at risk by the kind of 

things that you heard this morning, and the kind of things that 

you've heard over the last couple of years. It's incredible. 

I won't even te 11 you much about the fact that the 

exports from our industry total $2.7 billion. The only 

industry in the State ·of New Jersey with that kind of positive 

export numbers is the chemical process industry -- huge numbers 

of tax dollars going into the system. 

But let's talk about some of the specifics. I know 

that John Schroeder from Sybron has done that, and he mentioned 

Right to Know, as Tom Bates will, and he mentioned pollution 

prevention. Let me just talk for a second about one of my 

favorites, and I have a lot. 

Let me talk about the NJPDES Program, and I've talked 

to all of you about this. But just to give you some basic 

facts about the NJPDES process: The NJPDES water program of 

the Department of Environmental Protection and Energy charges 

$14 million a year in total fines. It employs 177 people, and 

in 1992, the last year for which I have figures, they processed 

exactly 87 permits. That wasn't too bad, except there was a 

660 permit backlog as of June of that year. 

So that means, if they do 87 a year with 177 people 

charging $14 million, to reduce the backlog from 660 down to 

zero, it would take 20 years to eliminate that backlog. And 

then the question would be: "Well, I guess we need more money 

to hire more people to do more permits." And you get into that 

situation where although it sounds good on the surface, what 

happens is that the Sybrons pay more, the Huntsmans pay more, 
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the DuPonts pay more, the Hoffman-La Roches pay more, and 

pretty soon you get to these kind of figures, that I'd like to 

go down the l~st real quickly. 

The NJPDES budget, again, totally went from $7 million 

in '88 to $15.3 million in '92 -- about 119 percent increase. 

Our figures and I think they are reflective of what the 

Department has -- show that close to 31 percent of the NJPDES 

budget went to indirect charges, and 30 percent for fringe 

benefits. That's equal to about $5.5 million not directly 

related to the Program. Those are not insignificant numbers. 

It's interesting that the folks in the Department will 

tell you that their fee structure is based for a simple reason; 

and that is, to make the polluter pay. So the more pollution 

you have, the formula theoretically kicks you out a higher fee. 

It's just not so. There is a facility here in 

Burlington County, along the river, that Senator Smith is 

familiar with, that closed half of its facility down, and its 

fee doubled. the following year. Half of its discharge was 

eliminated when it closed that facility. 

Annual fees and fines collected by the Department have 

risen totally from $12 million in '82 to $112 million in '92. 

And the permit backlogs continue, not only in water, but in 

air. But let me just stick with the NJPDES for a second. 

I'll give Commissioner Weiner some credit here. He at 

least-- After four or five years of this constantly escalating 

problem, he at least said, "Let's put togeth~r a task force and 

try to figure out what a new formula is that we could put 

together." That task force has been working for over the last 

year, and according to the Department• s timetable, in two or 

three years we'll have a new formula. 

Meanwhile, one of my members, DuPont, in Senator 

Zane's district down in Salem County, will pay for its NJPDES 

permit; for one year of a five-year permit, $750,000; for a 

total for the whole five years of the permit of $3.2 million. 
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Now, ironically ironically -- directly across the 

Delaware sits the Chambers Works sister plant. And that sister 

plant in the State of Delaware which is about· the same size, 

approximately the same discharge, roughly the same number of 

people and the same products, pays $10,000 a year for each of 

the five years of the program. 

Now, my skeptics would say, "Wel 1, that's because the 

State of Delaware subsidizes the cost of doing the permit 

work." And I'll admit, there is probably some truth to that. 

But the DuPont plant on the Delaware side is not in the same 

precarious position to have its processes taken elsewhere as 

the one in New Jersey is. I think the State of New Jersey must 

recognize that, as it did for 20 years, and find some way in 

the appropriations process to recreate a balance of what the 

industry pays -- manufacturers pay -- and what the State pays 

for the process. 

I used to believe that you should pay exactly what it 

costs to do your permit work within the Department; no more, no 

less. I still pretty much believe that, with the exception 

that because of the way the permit fees go through the budget 

process, there is absolutely no control over that money, and 

therefore there is no control on the cost of the permit. So 

I'm not even happy about saying that now, although from a 

concept point, if somebody was watching costs, I could go for, 

"You pay for the amount of effort that the Department puts into 

the permit." 

I'm always attacked by my friend, former Commissioner 

Weiner, when I do this, and he says, "It's all anecdotal 

information. You're not looking at this in an objective way." 

Well, he's right. We're not looking at this in an objective 

way. It may be anecdotal, but I have to tell you, those 

anecdotal stories impact real people's lives, not folks like 

me, but real people who are out there working for a living. 

I've got a very good example. 
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SENATOR INVERSO: You just set yourself apart from the 

rest of us. (laughter) 

MR. BOZARTH: I know, I know. 

I don't consider this work. It's almost a mission. 

I've been doing these NJPDES things for I don't know how long, 

Senator Haines, and you've heard me practically every time. 

But in this one case with Tom Bates and Huntsman -- right next 

door, or to my left -- you can see the potential impact of not 

only the fines and the fees, but the duplication that John 

Schroeder talked about -- the excesses that he talked about. 

On and on 

anecdotal, 

the parts. 

and on, examples that, yes, individually are all 

and yet the sum is larger than the addition of all 

It's incredible. I hope you will listen to Mr. Bates 

with not only an open mind, but an open heart to try to do 

something about his specific situation, because there are 

people at risk here. 

Tom? 

THOMAS A. BATE S: Thanks. 

Senator, thank you for the opportunity to speak. My 

name is Tom Bates. I'm Plant Manager of Huntsman Polypropylene 

Corporation. We' re located in Gloucester County, and this is 

Liz Vanek. She's our Environmental Engineer. 

We're a 30-year old plant. 

SENATOR HAINES: Excuse me. Where is your plant 

located in Gloucester? Is it in Pureland? (phonetic spelling) 

MR. BATES: No, it's right at Exit 19 on Rte. 295 in 

West Deptford. And it's a 30-year old plant. It was a Shell 

Chemical plant originally built in the early '60s. Five years 

ago it was purchased from Shell by Huntsman Chemical 

Corporation, a privately held company. 

As such, we're one of the oldest polypropylene plants 

in the country. We've got old technology, and frankly, it's 

outdated technology. We had to modernize this plant to get it 
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more efficient to survive. The margins in polypropylene are 

very small, and new plant_s are much more efficient than ours, 

so ours was really a fight for survival. 

The initial plan was to expand with new technology on 

the site, as well as modernize the old. The first thing that 

happened was our raw material supplier was a refinery in the 

north end of the State here the Exxon Bayway. And when we 

talked to them about supply and securing a long-term supply 

this was a year-and-a-half or so, or two years ago -- they 

really couldn't give us any kind of commitment on supply. 

We did some-- The second thing was, with the issues 

on-- We did a rail expansion. It took.us about two-and-a-half 

years' much longer than anybody believed possible because of 

different types of red tape. Most of the polypropylene plants 

are located on the Gulf Coast. We also looked at the 

possibility of the expansion going there, and considered 

Texas. It was a world of difference in terms of raw material 

supply, that the industry there was confident they were going 

to be around. They were willing to make long-term commitments. 

We took our preliminary plans down there and met with 

their environmental--

SENATOR SMITH: Excuse me a second. Is that why you 

couldn't get a commitment from the supplier in North Jersey, 

because they weren't sure they were going to be around? 

MR. BATES: Right. And the two points I wanted to 

make on that: First, the Texas Air Quality Board gave us a 

preliminary permit approval on a major grass-roots expansion -

this is a major grass-roots expansion in 30 days. The 

second thing is the uncertainty that faced Exxon and the Bayway 

plant at the time. 

running. 

They weren't sure they were going to be 

There are probably people here that know a lot more 

about. that issue than I do, other than they really couldn't 

talk to us about any kind of long-~erm supply. Since then, it 
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has been resolved with the Kosco purchase, but meanwhile we've 

gone ahead and made a commitment for that expansion outside the 

State. 

Two states we looked at had talked about and gave us 

preliminary permits in 30 to 45 days, and almost seemed 

apologetic that it took that long. 

SENATOR SMITH: Well, what would it take here? Do you 

have an idea? 

MR. BATES: I have no idea. We went in--

An example: I was trying to make a small improvement 

in a plant, to put some improved equipment in that would 

actually improve our efficiency and reduce pollution, and I was 

hearing permit times of 12 to 18 months to get approval on 

doing something that would reduce pollution and improve 

efficiency. And it was just-- This uncertainty was just 

paralyzing. You can't make commitments. 

So really the second phase of it was, we had to 

modernize our factory here -- our plant here -- or it no longer 

was going to compete. So we set about putting those plans 

together. That's really the critical issue because if we can't 

get more timely permits, if we can't get more timely decisions--

We' re not asking for different standards than any 

other state. The plant we build here to the best available 

control technology would be the same plant that we build 

somewhere else. What we'd like is to get reasonable decisions, 

in a reasonable amount of time, at a reasonable cost. That's 

critical. 

I would say that we have joined, voluntarily, the new 

pilot program on the facility-wide permitting, and we are 

working with the DEPE on streamlining that process. We've just 

begun that process, so we have volunteered for that as a way to 

help us through the process. 

In our efforts to stay competitive and survive, some 

of the things that struck me as being real impediments to doing 
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that: First is the regulation, which to the extent that it is 

result producing, I don't mind. To the extent that it is 

absolutely not result producing, it doesn't improve the 

environment; it doesn't do anything other than just. load us up 

on paperwork and bureaucracy. That I do mind, because I have 

people who are working on these reports and forms, and 

diverting my energies there instead of doing what I need to do 

to redesign my process. 

The first example is Right to Know. We appreciate all 

of-- There are a lot of people here I know who have done a lot 

to try and reform that, and have made progress. Assemblyman 

Shinn; I understand, has been a key part of that. But this is 

just awful. Some examples: I mean, we certainly have some 

chemicals that deserve to be handled through Right to Know, and 

who can possibly not be for something called "Right to Know." 

You just have to be for it; you can't be against it. 

But it's taken-- Instead of a few chemicals, it's 

applied to a 40-page list of chemicals in fine print that is 

just phenomenal. If you just go to the first page: adhesives, 

alcoholic beverages, compressed air, aerosol dispensers. We 

end up just getting tied down in a report that ends up 300 

pages; that then has to be distributed to not only the DEPE but 

local police department, local fire department, the county 

Right to Know, the local emergency planning committee. They 

get a stack this thick that-- I'm a degreed chemical engineer, 

and it makes no sense to me. 

Now, when they get a 300-page report that-- I don't 

know what they do with this. Here's an example of a chemical 

inventory page listing ammonium hydroxide and butoxyethanol, 

and this is a form we have to fill out for one of our chemicals 

that we're required to report. This is Windex. So that's for 

Windex. (laughter) 

SENATOR HAINES: That's toxic. 

SENATOR SMITH: It sounds nasty, doesn't it? 
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MR. BATES: Yes. 

And nowhere on it does it say Windex. It's just-- I 

mean, you read this and you think, "My God, this is awful." 

This is an example. This would be the required Right to Know 

label for a container which contained a mixture of toluene, 

ethyl acetate, butyl acetate, nitrocellulose, and propanol. If 

we have a container of nai 1 polish in our plant, that's the 

label that we would have to put on it. And on and on and on. 

SENATOR SMITH: How do you do that? 

MR. BATES: Well, you don't. 

SENATOR INVERSO: You put the nail polish in a larger 

container. 

MR. BATES: And I think, and you've probably heard all 

these stories-- But the point I want to make on this is, it's 

not just that I have to have our creative people spending their 

time doing this each year instead of something more 

productive. It's that this also has further impediments to 

business. This is insidious because now once I go through all 

of this for a chemical, suppose a new supplier wants to come 

into the State and introduce a new product. What are the 

chances that for anything but maybe the one or two most 

significant things that we buy, are we going to consider new 

materials? I mean, the paperwork alone would prevent us from 

considering new suppliers. It drives our cost up because we 

don't look for a competitive material, and discourages people 

from doing business in New Jersey. 

SENATOR SMITH: Are you trying to say that other 

states don't do it this way? 

MR. BATES: I've worked in a number of other states. 

This is unique. 

And if I thought for a minute that this improved 

anything in my plant; that if it contributed any good, I'd have 

a different attitude. But it absolutely contributes nothing in 

my opinion, because when somebody gets a 300-page report of 
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this, it's actually doing harm because the couple of things 

that are significant in that are totally obscured. 

SENATOR HAINES: Are you trying to say this is the 

most overregulated state in the nation? (laughter) Because 

I've said it. 

MR. BATES: What I can say is that it's strangling our 

ability to compete, and it's diverting people who could be 

doing things that really reduce pollution, that really 

modernize facilities. If we went ahead with our plans, we 

would generate less waste, we would be more efficient, and we 

would have a chance at survival, instead of spending time doing 

this. 

The other example was in the TCPA. And again, I• m 

very sympathetic. How could anybody be against preventing 

toxic catastrophes? I mean, that's just -- you've got to be 

for that. The concept is good, but it's extended far wider 

than what makes sense. 

I think John mentioned some of the examples. If you 

have a material that applies under the TCPA, that area is not 

only captured, but anything then around that area. So even 

though the bill is intended to prevent toxic catastrophes, you 

may be regulating in that bill in an area where they have parts 

per million levels that there is absolutely no chance of any 

kind of toxic catastrophe, but it's been pulled into that 

regulation. So this thing is expanded far beyond anything that 

makes any sense. That just drives up the cost, requires more 

people. More people require more fees, and it just you 

know, the effort just goes on and on. 

There are Federal laws that cover these things and do 

it well, and the duplication would save us a lot in terms of 

the effort that we put in. 

The other thing that has struck me as 

counterproductive on something like the TCPA is, once you get 

to that trigger point, and you have to get into that system, 
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that system is so onerous that a company -- I'm sure if they 

had a choice -- would rather ~et up shop outside the State than 

inside the State. Well, the way it has affected us is, a lot 

of the chemicals -- not a lot, but we have a chemical that 

applies under that that we used to have local suppliers, and 

they' re all gone. Those supplies of those chemicals now come 

from outside the State. We've had to increase our inventory 

because there is no longer any local suppliers, and the 

supplies are coming into the State. That puts us-- Then we're 

in--

SENATOR SMITH: A higher category. 

MR. BATES: --into the category, and we fall into the 

TCPA, so it's a catch-22. And the irony is that in the final 

analysis, the total inventory of the chemicals in the State 

probably hasn't changed except for companies have left the 

State. And it's actually driving us to higher levels because 

the local suppliers are gone. 

Finally, on the-- And I think a lot of 

been touched, but in the areas of fees and fines: 

are excessive, and they're not in areas that 

significant. 

these have 

The costs 

really are 

One example is, we had a system that had a pressure 

gauge mounted in a line. There was a concern because of the 

location, were we getting an accurate reading on a pressure 

gauge, so a second pressure gauge was added to that line six 

inches away from the first one. We did a hazard analysis on 

that change. Unfortunately, we didn't do a haz-op on that 

change, and by not following the proper protocol, the haz-op -

that cost us $1000. 

SENATOR SMITH: What is a haz-op? What's that? 

MR. BATES: Excuse me. That was $5000? 

E L I z A B E T H A. v A N E K: It was originally proposed 

as $5000 -- first offense fine -- and after we presented our 

arguments, that did reduce it to $1000. But on the day they 

reduced it to $1000, they hit us with another fine. 
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SENATOR SMITH: What is the haz-op? What is that? 

MS. VANEK: That's a hazard and operability study. 

That's a formal hazard analysis that goes above and beyond. 

SENATOR SMITH: That you had to do before you put the 

valve--

MS. VANEK: Yes. 

MR. BATES: Put the pressure gauge in. I mean, you 

have to understand, a pressure gauge is a fairly innocuous type 

of change. 

SENATOR HAINES: Mr. Chairman, I think that you 

brought up a subject here that we need to consider very, very 

seriously. You' re telling us that your suppliers are leaving 

because of the same problems that you' re having. You know, 

I've seen this happen before. The DEPE and Health really 

chased the process industry out of New Jersey the food 

processing industry. And it was, at one time, the biggest 

industry in the State. You can go down the list of all these 

plants that have left. And of course, the second thing that 

left was the glass industry 

So we lost the food processing industry and we lost 

the glass industry. I think what has been said here -- Hal 

said that you folks are paying a very high salary rate. Maybe 

you have a little more resistance to this type of thing than 

maybe the food processing industry did, or the glass industry. 

But to me, when you see some of your · suppliers leave -- and 

that's one of the things we fear in agriculture. When all of 

the tractor dealers leave, agriculture is going to be done, 

because you just can't have a tractor that breaks down and have 

to drive to another state to get the parts. You don't do it 

too long. It's not the cost. It's just the aggravation. In 

the long run, it's the cost. 

This thing seems to be multiplying on itself. And 

that's exactly what you're saying; that it's multiplying on 

itself. 
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MR. BATES: Yes. 

SENATOR HAINES: And that is a double disaster. It's 

not a single disaster; it's a double disaster. 

I thank you for those comments because I think this is 

terribly, terribly important. 

MR. BATES: We just had a supplier that 

warehousing. It's a distribution operation that was handling a 

material -- HCL. They were informed that because of the levels 

they had in the warehouse, it may trigger them into the TCPA 

level. Their own tale of woe would provide an interesting 

meeting. But the bottom line, they came to talk to us, and it 

was a lot easier and less expensive for them to open up a 

second warehousing operation across the river and just not 

handle that material than to just even go through the whole 

process. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Assemblyman Shinn? 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: The real irony in all this is that 

when you make the most environmental quality advancement, it is 

in the best economic times. That's the real paradox. If you 

look historically back when you had the big Green Acres moneys 

and etc., etc., you do it on a high point of the economy. The 

environmental laws in this case-- I don't think it's the laws 

themselves so much, but the implementation is a large part of 

this, is really having an effect on the business community and 

jobs. 

The thread that I hear running through this is that 

you have a chemical industry that has a big investment in New 

Jersey and they'll be here. But if you're looking for 

expansions, they're going to go somewhere else. The basic 

footprint will stay here and they'll do the minimum, but 

they're going to expand in other areas. With DuPont, the 

answer to that is to take a pipeline under the Delaware and 

bring it up in Delaware and discharge over there. I mean, 
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they're right across the river. They can amortize the cost of 

that pipeline in five years as the cost of the NJPDES permit. 

(laughter) 

The speaker brought up the Right to Know. . I happen to 

be the sponsor of that in the Assembly. It's probably one of 

the worst bills that I've ever sponsored since I've been a 

legislator. I get beat to death routinely that our Right to 

,~ Know is ridiculous. It's absolutely-- You pointed out a few 

items that-- You can go on and on. 

It's not that business doesn't want to identify the 

chemicals that are a problem. I'm not talking just about 

business. I •m talking about schools and government. And the 

amount of time that you spend talking about Windex and 

Fantastic and, you know, common things that you' re giving a 

chemical analysis-- And somebody looks and says, "Oh boy, 

these things are really terrible," until you find out what it 

is. 

SENATOR HAINES: How about Diet Pepsi. I mean, if you 

had to do a thing on Diet Pepsi, My God. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: I think it just points out that 

it's really incumbent upon us-- The worst thing a politician 

can do is sponsor something that appears to be antienvironment 

on the surface, and have somebody beat you to death on that 

issue. But these are some of the areas that we're caught up in 

this process. 

You've got a Federal Clean Water Act; you've got a 

Federal Clean Air Act. They're minimum standards of 

implementation. I think where we went off the track~- We 

ought to go back and look at those areas; they're going to be 

very, very difficult to look at. But I think to rectify some 

of the problems -- I think, Pete, you're more involved than I 

am-- But somehow we've got to get those funds back on line. 

Maybe you won't cut the fees the first year you put them back 

under the budget, but I think you've got to anticipate those 
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revenues, bring them back under the budget process. We've just 

got to get some reasonability, because we're killing the goose 

that laid the golden egg, really. 

MR. BOZARTH: Mr. Chairman, if I can just add to what 

Assemblyman Shinn said, and give you some specific things that 

we would suggest you all consider doing, some of which are much 

easier than the process that you've outlined, but yet start the 

process going. 

There are a couple of bills, some of which you· all 

have sponsored, that I'd like to just note for the record that 

are extraordinarily important and go to the heart of the 

matters that John Schroeder and Tom Bates and I have been 

talking about. 

One is Assembly Bill No. 1660, with bipartisan 

sponsorship. It prohibits the DEPE from increasing permit fees 

without prior approval by the Joint Budget Oversight Committee 

-- period, simple. That's something that ought to be done just 

from a public policy point of view. 

The second one, again with bipartisan support -- Doria 

and Catania -- Assembly Bill No. 1163: The NJPDES fees would 

reflect only the cost incurred by the DEPE in process and 

review of the permit. 

Another one, Senate Bill No. 1986, Senator Smith's 

bill: We've dubbed it the Fast Track Compliance Bill. What it 

would say is, if you have a violation that does not impact on 

the environment -- it is not an incursion into the environment 

but a violation, obviously, of the regulations and the 

paperwork involved, you would have 30 days within which to 

correct that without a fine. If you don't correct it within 30 

days, you get a fine. But why hit people with $2000 here, 

$5000 there, and the $10,000 here, given the fact that in many 

cases there is no impact on the environment, there is no threat 

to workers, or safety, or anything? Give the company the 

chance to make that change. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: And I would submit, Mr. Chairman, 

with a 11 due respect, that you would have to amend the Clean 

Water Act in order to-- That last bill that you talked about 

is in direct opposition to the Water Act. 

MR. BOZARTH: You' re exactly right, Assemblyman. I'm 

.just trying to give you some easy ones because the Clean Water 

Enforcement Act will make the battle over the Right to Know 

reform look like a picnic, although it should be done unless we 

want to send jobs elsewhere. 

this if 

circle, 

economy. 

Let me leave you with one more. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: But who is 

you take this full circle? If 

who suffers? The environment 

really suffering in 

you take this full 

suffers from a down 

MR. BOZARTH: Sure, because the companies like the 

Sybrons and the Huntsmans that are trying to do the right thing 

environmentally aren't going to be here anymore. 

Let me leave you with one more, Assembly Bi 11 No. 

2013, again bipartisan sponsorship, Doria and Shinn; and then 

there's a Gaffney/Wright companion, I guess, Assembly Bill 

2124: It establishes a payment schedule for permit 

applications so the companies don't pay unti 1 the Department 

processes their permit. They pay 25 percent of the fee upon 

filing, 25 percent again goes to the DEPE as the Department 

finishes its review of the application, and then the final 50 

percent of whatever the fee is is not paid until the final 

determination of the permit has been made. 

So, if you get your permit, you pay your money. 

That's how it works in real life. That's what happens to all 

of you in your businesses. Why should we be paying up-front, 

and then at the end, oversight costs on top of that? Let's pay 

for work that's done. If we' re going to pay $745, 000 for one 

year of a five-year permit, then let's pay it when it's done, 

not when it's three years in arrear, or five years in arrear 

and you're in your second iteration. 

53 

New J8'9ey State Library 



Those are just some easy ones that I would think that 

this Committee and the other committees that all of you sit on 

can start to take a look at as we get back from the election 

cycle, because I think we do have to make some strides and some 

progress in this area. We've been crying about this and 

complaining about it for a decent amount of time. We're at a 

critical junction here. I mean, literally the manufacturing 

base of the State is at more risk now than ever I've seen it in 

13 years. 

Thank you, Senator. 

SENATOR INVERSO: - Well, everything that has been said 

seems to be right on target. Fortunately, we have this 

Committee, as I indicated in my opening remarks, to effectuate 

things that we believe are more appropriate and are truly what 

the intent of the legislation was. I know I've read articles 

and read horror stories on the Right to Know. And the list of 

chemicals covered has been expanded well beyond what was ever 

imagined, certainly by Bob in your case, sponsorship of the 

bill or in any other case. We've let the bureaucracy just 

kind of add and add and add, and grow and grow and grow as a 

result of all the--

SENATOR HAINES: Bob, I hope you'll get that Diet 

Pepsi in there, too. That's pretty--

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: If you leave a bottle around, it's 

in automatically. Quite frankly, if you're doing an audit of a 

classroom or of a room in this building, then-- Do you have to 

list the five -- Mary Pat, correct me if I'm wrong the five 

top chemicals, right? The five, and if it's cleaner or it's 

Diet Pepsi, I mean that's what you list. If it's a case in the 

refrigerator-- Seriously. 

SENATOR INVERSO : It depends on where you get your 

water from~ 

With regard to the application of Right to Know and 

providing information to emergency response people, firemen, 

etc., do you feel that it's serving that purpose; that they are 
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alerted to the location and types of chemicals, and therefore 

can better protect themselves and the people who they are 

seeking to rescue? Or do you feel that with the filing of 

reports and the movement of chemicals throughout a plant that 

"'" it has no pragmatic value anymore once the report is filed? 

MR. BATES: I really think-- We conduct annual drills 

with local emergency response -- full blown drills and we 

have all the fire response and we go through those drills. I 

really have trouble seeing where they' re served by this over 

the more conventional and standard methods of placarding 

vessels. 

You know, if a fireman comes in and there's a tank, 

and he's fighting a fire-- I mean, is it important to know 

that it's butoxyethanol in that tank? He needs to know, is it 

flammable, is it explosive, is it reactive? This is what he 

needs to know. 

Having this long list of chemicals, I don't see does 

him any good if he's in fighting a fire. 

SENATOR HAINES: That's a very good point, I think. 

MR. BATES: And this isn't mine. I mean, you have to 

talk to them. When we have our drills, we talk to them, and 

it's a similar kind of discussion. They don't see value in 

this, at least in my discussions with them, but you ought to 

talk with them. 

Certainly, if you've got a tank of water, if it's not 

labeled properly with the right kind of registration number and 

everything else, I mean, so what. 

water. 

He just needs to know it's 

MS. VANEK: There are some additional errors with that 

because in-plant, trying to enforce this-- One of the 

requirements is to label water as water. Well, if you-- We 

have steam lines, and our steam lines are about 50- to 

100-pound steam lines. But if I'm labeling it for Right to 

Know, I have to put "Water CAS." Now, there is significant 
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danger to a 600-pound steam line that is not a water line. So 

we had to fudge around with some of the things to get the right 

amount of warning to a person that you would not get under the 

general rule. 

SENATOR INVERSO: So there are things that could" be 

done to enhance the safety d lower the risk to people like 

firemen and emergency response personnel that really isn't 

being effected with the Right to Know requirements. 

MR. BATES: But again, from my standpoint as a 

businessman, the real issue is that things that I could invest 

in that would reduce pollution, modernize my plant, reduce 

waste, and make me more competitive are taking 12 to 18 months 

to get done, whereas all of this this is where all the 

at tent ion is being spent. I think this 

opinion, that can't be fixed by turning 

is something, 

a sma 11 di a 1. 

needs more than just trimming around the edges. 

in my 

This 

SENATOR INVERSO: Well, that NJPDES backlog tells a 

tale unto itself. Hal, I know you appeared before the Budget 

Committee prior to us going into the Department and reviewing 

the budget in detail, and you have been an advocate for us 

starting to chip away and whittle away at that 83 percent of 

their budget that is off budget. And I think by us whittling 

away at the other 17 percent, we 

looks like we 

were 

have 

fortunate to bring on 

to be a little more budget. But it 

proactive in seeking to whittle away at this, because some of 

the information we've gotten today is just alarming. It's just 

ridiculous. 

Thank you. 

MR. BATES: Thank you. 

SENATOR INVERSO: John McClain, from Capital Pizza 

Huts. John? 

ASSEMBLYMAN SOSA: Did he bring some with him? 

SENATOR INVERSO: It's about lunchtime. (laughter) 
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J 0 H N M c C L A I N: Good afternoon Mr. Chairman, and 

Senators. My name is John McClain, and I am the operator of 

Capital Pizza Huts at the.level of Regional Vice President. We 

curr~ntly operate in New Jersey 27 full-service restaurants and 

11 delivery units, for a total of 38 restaurants. Our company 

operates in the states of Vermont, Maine, and in Tennessee, for 

a total of 85 units. We're in the top 10 in size of ny of the 

Pizza Hut franchisees in the system. 

Currently, we're employing about 1200 full-time and 

part-time employees in the southern part of the State. Our 

counties are Mercer County, Ocean County, and south, so we have 

approximately half of the State. My. payroll this year is 

approximately $7.8 million. 

What I'm going to talk about today is just some 

inconsistencies and problems that I've had over the last 10 

years of development in New Jersey. And it's going from fair 

to very poor over the last couple of years. 

The planning boards: I guess to start the process to 

go and develop a restaurant or any other business in the State 

requires you to go to a planning or a zoning board. At that 

point, you hire an engineer to draw plans. The engineer sits 

down in committees with the city or county engineer to go over 

those plans before you go to the planning board. Today it's 

taking anywhere between three and six trips to the planning 

board just to get approval -- if you get approval to go to the 

planning board -- to continue building. 

It's my opinion that in the planning board process, 

the people who sit on these planning boards are appointees from 

the local townships, and in most cases aren't qualified to be 

on the planning boards, and have no comprehension of what it 

takes to own or operate a business or get a business started. 

You go in and it's just carte blanche. They may say, "Do this, 

and do this," and it absolutely makes no sense to do that. And 

having built 27 of these in the last 10 years, I've really got 

some horror stories. 
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The next part after this is the bonding procedures, 

that you go and have to submit a surety bond for 120 percent of 

what the engineering cost is going to be. And that's anywhere, 

in our case, on an average of $120, 000. On top of that, you 

have to post a cash escrow to pay f orthe engineering department 

or a representative of the engineer to come out and inspect the 

property. 

Now, he is-- And in most cases, he uses all the 

money, and it could be anywhere between $7000 and $10,000 that 

you're paying an outside engineer from the city. It's not in 

most cases a city engineer, but it's a·n outside engineering 

company to come out and inspect the property. He'll drive by. 

He'll stand on the property, arid he'll look at it. It would 

make sense if he signed some documentation saying that he had 

actually been there, because in some cases he's bi 11 ing you 

time that you don't know if he's been there, or you have no 

proof that he's been there. 

At the end of the process, when you get your 

certificate of occupancy, he should be required at that point 

to come out and do a final inspection and return all of your 

money. In several cases, Absecon being one, it was nine months 

to a year before he finally released all of our money. He 

continued to come stand on the property, continued to bill us 

at the rate of $150 every time he pulled into the parking lot, 

which makes absolutely no sense to us. 

To talk about operating expenses for a few minutes: 

As I said before, we operate in Maine, Vermont, and Tennessee. 

The utility costs in New Jersey run approximately l percent 

higher on a P & L statement than they do in Maine. Labor in 

New Jersey runs approximately 2 percent higher than it does in 

the other states that we operate in. So we're looking at just 

total operating expenses of 3 percent greater to operate here 

-- that's just a rough guess -- than it does to operate in the 

other states that we operate in. 
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The next thing I want to talk about is the building 

permitting process. There is absolutely no consistency between 

township, city, and county.in this whole process. For example, 

you can go to one township and it may be all in-house. The 

next town you go to, it may be an outside source where there is 

a group of inspectors who do eight or ten townships. I 

understand the reasoning in the costs, but there is no 

consistency in the process. 

The big concern that we have, and just went through 

doing was one that we opened up in this ·county in Mt. Laurel, 

where we applied for a building permit and went through the 

process that you go through to get a building permit, and they 

give us our permit back; we go into construction -- and this is 

a 1200 square-foot delivery unit -- and the Health Department 

hadn't signed off on the plans. Now, it is our opinion that 

when we got our permit that the Health Department had fully 

approved the plans, and we were in a go-forward position. 

Well, t~ey hadn't approved the plans, so the inspector's 

attitude, who knew that we were under construction there, "It's 

not her position to tell us that we need to do this. We should 

have figured it out ourselves." Now, it is our position that 

somebody should have told us up-front, when you go hand your 

packet to the township. 

Well, that little fiasco cost us three weeks in 

operating time before we could get our certificate of occupancy 

before we could open the restaurant. It's totally 

uncalled-for. It was a personal grudge because we didn't 

follow the procedure correctly. 

Another example would be, townships have 21 days to 

approve your building permit. If it's an in-house staff, that 

usually happens and you get your permit within 21 days, or at 

least you get a written correspondld just as soon not have you 

there. 
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ADA law. 

but we 

doesn't 

One of the other inconsistencies is the new Federal 

I'm not aware, and I don't know if you all 

have had it brought to our attention that 

participate in the new Federal. ADA law. 

are aware, 

New Jersey 

They sti 11 

operate under the barrier free laws. I don't know which one is 

more stringent, but when you're drawing plans and going by the 

new laws and you go-- In Princeton they held us up for four 

months just to work out the language on the blueprints between 

the two laws. 

SENATOR SMITH: Mr. McClain, do you· have these kinds 

of problems in the other states that you operate in? 

MR. McCLAIN: It's interesting. We can buy property. 

We can go through the planning board process, start 

construction, and open the doors in Maine in about nine 

months. In New Jersey it's up over two years now. 

In Lawrenceville we just built, and it took us 

there were some other circumstances, landlord related. He had 

a list of wprk to do. But it took us five years to build a 

Pizza Hut in Lawrence Township. 

SENATOR HAINES: I had--

SENATOR INVERSO: I'm glad it's not in my district. 

(laughter) Your Princeton Pizza Hut, is that the one on Route 

1, in the new shopping center there? 

MR. McCLAIN: Yes. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Okay, that's also West Windsor. 

SENATOR HAINES: I had the opportunity to give loans 

and grants in three states for various projects like hospitals, 

sewer and water projects, housing, industrial things, in New 

Jersey, Deleware, and Maryland. In Deleware and Maryland they 

would assign somebody from the Governor's staff to help you go 

through the permitting process, and it usually took maybe a 

·month, maybe six weeks. In New Jersey -- here I had loans and 

grants to give away a minimum of two years, and they 

wouldn't give you the time of day, and you had to fight your 

way all the way through it. 
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We've had meetings with New Jersey people where you 

have the Department of Health there, and they have one guy who 

is .sitting at the end of the table, and he said, "All the 

hallways have to be so that the doors and the stairs are at the 

end of the hallway." And the guy sitting on the side said, 

"No, we have to have it on the side." We had that argument 

going on for half a day between bureaucrats. So it ' s not new 

in New Jersey that we're overregulated. It just continues and 

gets worse. 

Wi 11 Rogers said a long time ago -- in the '30s he 

said: "We've got more government than we need or can afford." 

I'll tell you right now, it's a heck of a lot worse, and you're 

pointing it out. This is very true that it just takes longer 

and longer and longer in New Jersey. 

I had to get a permit to do some work in Mt. Laurel 

myself. It took forever. What you're saying is exactly true. 

I sent a letter to the engineer and said, "Why did you charge 

$2000 when you came out and spent 15 minutes at the project"? 

It took him about a month to get the answer back to me, and he 

~aid, "Well, he had to do a lot of ~esearch." It's nonsense. 

MR. McCLAIN: It's amazing. In part of the process 

there is a catch-22; that is, to get your certificate of 

occupancy, you have to have a Health Department approval. Now, 

the Health Department is out in left field. They are not tied 

into the process at all, and they ought to be. They ought to 

have input and they ought to be ·part of the staff for the 

process. Well, the construction official will not issue a 

certificate of occupancy, or even come in and inspect the 

facility until it's clean, until you're ready to open up. 

But you cannot allow any employees into the 

restaurant. You can't have product in the restaurant. So you 

have a catch-22. You can't get the things done that the Health 

Department wants because you can't bring people into the 

restaurant. And then you can't get your certificate of 

occupancy until you have your Health Department inspection. 
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SENATOR HAINES: I've been through this myself, and I 

know exactly what you say. It's absolutely true. You're right 

on the money, and it's wrong. It's absolutely wrong. 

Do you have any suggestions? I mean, we can't tell 

the towns down here what to do. Do you have any suggestions in 

terms of legislation? That's what we're here for, really. 

MR. McCLAIN: Well, I think the number one -- the key 

point is to tie it all together. Somebody in every 

township, or there should be some required township to take the 

processing permit being processed and be in charge of it. You 

have nobody who is in charge. You've got construction 

officials; you've got the bui !ding inspector under him, and 

then they have all the other inspectors who are under him. 

It's like nobody is in charge. The Health Department, number 

one, has to be tied into it. You have to take some of the--

I don't know what you take away from the planning 

board. To go through that process it's just-- You can't 

imagine. My suggestion for the last two townships I've been to 

is, you ought to go to the town next door and go through this 

process, because if you did, you wouldn't do it again. 

Unfortunately, we're required by our franchise agreement to 

build "X" number of restaurants in so many years. And 

fortunately, we've completed our goal this year, and probably 

won't build another one for another two years. 

I don't know how you get to it. It's so 

overregulated. The key part would be just to have somebody in 

charge in every township. I don't know if it's the mayor, if 

it falls under his jurisdiction. But you've got to tie--

SENATOR INVERSO: Kind of a one-stop-shopping 

situation would get you through all the maze. 

MR. McCLAIN: It is. An example would be, I used to 

have restaurants in. Colorado, and we were going to build a 

deli very unit there. We had our permit in an afternoon. We 

hired an architect; we drew the plans; we took the permit in. 
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The guy .sat right there, approved it, and signed off, and we 

were under construction the next day. Here in Mt. Laurel, for 

example, it took us four months to get our permit. 

Something is wrong with the system, and !---

SENATOR HAINES: It took me that long to get a permit 

·-- just about. I agree, and I've seen exactly what you're up 

against. It's a little bit like down in Deleware, if you drive 

two miles over the speed limit, there's a guy at the end of the 

town that picks you up, and there is instant justice. You pay 

a fine right there, and they support the town on the stupid 

people who drive through two miles an hour over the speed 

limit. I've done it myself. (laughter) 

It almost comes back to this: It's a way of raising 

money--

MR. McCLAIN: Sure. 

SENATOR HAINES: --by being an obstructionist. 

MR. McCLAIN: When we bui 1 t to go back to Mt. 

Laurel -- the building inspector there, and I don't know his 

name, after he discovered that 

Department permit, he was calling 

was coming by the restaurant every 

the door, and he even had the 

we didn't have our 

the restaurant every 

day and sticking his 

police lookig out 

Health 

day. He 

head in 

for our 

delivery cars to see if we were going to open without-- Now, 

if this guy doesn't have anything any better to do than that, 

then something' s wrong with it. 

process. 

Something is wrong with the 

And then he fined us $150 cash before he would give us 

our permit. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Well, one of the things you touched 

on with the escrow account--

MR. McCLAIN: Yes. 

SENATOR INVERSO: There is an escrow accountability 

bill that has been introduced. I sponsored on the Senate side, 

and I think it's been sponsored on the Assembly side, and we're 
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looking to provide more accountabi 1 i ty, and 

accountability for the charges that are levied 

escrow accounts. 

appropriate 

against the 

MR. McCLAIN: Those guys ought to be required to sign 

on and off the site when.they come on site. 

SENATOR INVERSO: So that's one where I think we' re 

making some headway, hopefully. 

But as Senator Haines said, a lot of this is difficult 

with home rule, but I think--

SENATOR HAINES: Can I be a co-sponsor of that bi 11? 

· I didn't know you had it. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Yes, absolutely. As long as you-

That's right. We've worked very well together on the 

S-Corporation bill. The trouble is "H" comes before "I," and 

he always usurps me. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SOSA: Did you say "H" or age? 

SENATOR INVERSO: Good point. Let me think about 

that. (laughter) 

We appreciate your input, and we know 

frustrations and experiences have been probably 

many, many times throughout the State, and it's 

Hopefully the message will get out there that 

that your 

replicated 

not right. 

we're at a 

crucial juncture in this State. I mean, our economic health is 

at high risk, and if we don't take some steps to put things in 

motion that make this State more what is it?-

user-friendly, business-friendly, we are in big trouble. 

MR. McCLAIN: If not, we were just awarded another 

franchise for another restaurant chain. You know, my first 

question was, "Well, will you come to New Jersey?" And the guy 

who owns our company says, "Why in the world would I want to do 

that?" 

SENATOR INVERSO: See, that's the problem. That's a 

problem. It's reality and perception, and we've got to deal 

with both of those. 
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MR. McCLAIN: We're building 50 of these in five years 

in Maryland. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Staff says that you should have 

brought some pizza with you. (laughter) 

MR. McCLAIN: Thank you. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Thank you. 

Is Mr. Buckman here? On-Site Agency Association of 

New Jersey? (affirmative response) 

Mr. Buckman, would you have an extra copy we can give 

to our staff? 

C H A R L E S A. Bu c KM AR: Yes, I'll give you this 

copy when I'm done. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Super, thank you. 

Before you begin, is Mr. Bradley here yet? 

UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF AUDIENCE: He left. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Okay. Well, you'll be the last 

speaker. I' 11 stay for that. I have another appointment, and 

I was going to leave if there were two. 

MR. BUCKMAN: Gentlemen, thank you for the hearing 

this morning. I' 11 have to apologize in advance for being a 

little unprepared. I wasn't aware until about 9:00 this 

morning that I was going to get to see you folks, so I have 

done what I can and provided you with some information that 

perhaps might be helpful to my position. 

I'm employed as the National Vice President for the 

National Elevator Inspection Service. We perform elevator 

inspections across the country, indeed, in the White House. My 

avocation is that I'm the Chairman of the On-Site Agency 

Association of the State of New Jersey. 

We represent the privatized section of building 

inspections in the State, and our concerns are as deep as your 

concerns in so far as the bureaucracy that we have to deal with 

in getting inspections in people's homes on people's elevators,_ 

and perform the permitting process in the various towns. 
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But our major concern at this point in time, and the 

reason that I'm here before you this morning is that there has 

been a bill signed by Governor Florio on February 18, 1993, 

which is the culmination of Senate Bill No. 1227, which 

initially was Assembly Bill No. 1838 coming out of Assemblyman 

Kelly's Housing Committee. 

That bill, gentlemen, modified Public Law 1983, c. 

338, which mandated that fees charged by on-site inspection 

agencies in the State of New Jersey be exactly those of the 

Department of Community Affairs in the State of New Jersey. 

And in speaking of this being the most overregulated state in 

the nation, we are the folks who carry that burden because we 

work under the aegis, and under the control of the Department 

of Community Affairs. 

We took a 36-page manual, which was the Uniform 

Construction Code, NJAC 5: 23-23, and made it into a 356-page 

manual in 10 years. 

The thrust of the bill was to alter the requirement 

that P.L. 1983, c. 338 established that we charge the same fees 

as the Departmjob -- basically, tho~e of our companies -- is to 

apply the various codes that are called reference standards by 

the Building Code in the nation -- the BOCA Code; that is, we 

apply the plumbing code, the elevator code, the electrical code 

-- NEC -- to the buildings that builders erect. 

The Uniform Construction Code 

administrative code which controls how we do 

is merely 

that, and 

an 

it's 

kept in place and supported by our firms, who have committed 

over $3 million in the last 10 years to the support of the 

Department of Community Affairs. 

Our position has been, and shall continue to be that 

our focus should be on inspecting outlets, plumbing fixtures, 

and elevators for the compliance of the national codes so that 

the builder who installs them does it properly, and that it 
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doesn't provide a hazard to the individual who buys the house 

or the building. It shoulc1 not be on trying to make the most 

dollars we can out of a bidding process. 

Public Service Gas, American Telephone and Telegraph, 

and electrical services are all controlled in this State. We 

feel that we need to give the control of the fee structure to 

the State and not let it seek its own level by bidding in 

individual towns for dollars. Right now what one bids for a 

contract in a given town, the only criteria is what we can 

provide to the building owner in the town and to the building 

department in the town; that is, how qood can we do our job is 

the only criteria, . the fees being established by schedule and 

required by Public Law 1983, c. 338. We maintain it should 

stay that way. 

The reason Public Law 1993, c. 47 came into being was 

that the Builders' Association in the State of New Jersey was 

groaning under the high level of fees established by the 

Department of Community Affairs. We are on record, almost 

every year since 1985, as objecting to the uncontrolled 

escalation of fees by the Department of Community Affairs. We 

don't believe they need to be at the level they're at. By 

yards, gentlemen, the Department of Community Affairs raises 

the fees at a whim. What they need is what the schedule 

states. We don't need those dollars; we have objected to that 

level of dollars. 

But the Building Officials' Association has objected 

now, and also quite strongly. I'm sorry, the Builders' 

Association has objected quite strongly to that level of fees, 

and quite rightly so. I submit to you that the answer to that 

is not to ignore the requirement of the Legislature of this 

State that those fees be set in a schedule by the Department of 

Community Affairs. You have in front of you Senate Bill No. 

1227, which has been converted to Public Law 1993, c. 47. 
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You• 11 see on the second page, a third of the way down the 

column, that it continues to ~n~quire the Department to set the 

fees, and only says they need not to be identical. That should 

be so. 

Our suggestion and our plea to you is that the 

Department be required to do as we have asked them to do; that 

is, establish a panel by which we can evaluate the level that 

fees should 

documentation, 

be set at 

and then go 

by supporting 

ahead and say, 

that 

"It's 

with cost 

all right, 

gentlemen. You should, in 

important to stay in business." 

fact, make a profit. That's 

It could perhaps even be cost 

plus 10 percent, which is very common in the Federal 

government.nto effect, the Department assumed 3000 elevator 

uni ts in the State, out of the some 20, 000 that there are 

available. They billed all of those elevator owners in advance 

to have two inspections performed in the year 1993; that is, 

July to July -- July '92 to July '93. Eighty percent of those 

inspections were never performed, yet the State still has the 

money. The Department of Community Affairs still has the money. 

Those owners paid for something, gentlemen, they 

didn't get. And the people they paid it to were the Department 

of Community Affairs of the State of New Jersey. So they have 

since hired 11 more inspectors, and have said, "Well, our 

inspectors are only going to perform three inspections a day." 

Well, I have to tell you that three inspections a day is 

ridiculous. We do this across the United States, and we do 10 

a day. You're going to pay more for less. 

In the meantime, the private sector, which would like 

to eliminate all this nonsense, would like to speed up the time 

in which you get your permits, reduce the prices involved here, 

i being pushed into a position where our only focus has to be 

on making a dollar from every inspection that we perform. And 

we don't believe that that's where the focus should be. We 

think that we need to be regulated ju~t like the other public 

service industries. 
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Yes, Senator? 

SENATOR SMITH: I have a question on S-1227. I think 

the intent behind that wa.s. to allow private inspection agencies 

to charge less--

MR. BUCKMAN: That's correct. 

SENATOR SMITH: 

they charge. 

--than the State was reql)iring that 

MR. BUCKMAN: Exactly so. 

SENATOR SMITH: Now, what you' re saying is that the 

provision in there that still allows the ·Department to set the 

fees is still causing a problem? 

MR. BUCKMAN: What I'm saying, Senator- You're 

on page 2 I paragraph 2 • 

of fees to be charged by 

and plan review services, 

talking about line 40 

setting of the amounts 

agency for inspection 

however, that such fees shall be I tt and eliminate 

to," and insert, "not more than." 

"That the 

a private 

provided, 

"identical 

SENATOR SMITH: Right. That was the change, right. 

MR. BUCKMAN: But you see, it says, "set"; "the 

setting of the amounts of fees," is still requisite. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Sir, your argument is that they are 

now utilizing a percentage, saying that the fees cannot be 

greater than a certain percent of the fees that DCA charges? 

MR. BUCKMAN: The regulatory amendment which they have 

put in place, or have proposed to put in place -- and there was 

a hearing on that at which I spoke on July 23, 1993 -- was that 

the individual on-site agencies charged a percentage of the 

State schedule of fees, and that percentage is to be determined 

town by town, agency against agency, on a bidding process. My 

position, and our Agency Association's position is that that is 

an uncontrollable process which will strongly denigrate the 

quality of the inspections that are being performed, and that 

we instead request that the Department continue, as it is 

required here, to set a schedule of fees, but less than that 

set by the -- charged by the Department of Community Affairs. 
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You see, it's not generally known, but the epa rtment 

performs inspections, too. 

SENATOR INVERSO : So we understand, you would like, 

for instance-- You mentioned elevator inspections. You would 

like DCA to develop a specified fee that would apply to all 

elevator inspections done in the State of New Jersey by a 

private agency? 

MR. BUCKMAN: That's correct. 

SENATOR INVERSO: As opposed to what DCA is proposing 

now, and that is, to establish on a percent of their fee or 

scale that would be different from municipality to municipality 

in New Jersey, based upon some criteria or rationale that they 

haven't made known to you or to anyone else? 

MR. BUCKMAN: That's correct. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Okay. I'm just trying to understand 

what you're talking about. 

MR. BUCKMAN: So we would like to establish--

I'm. sorry, sir? 

SENATOR SMITH: So your problem is not necessarily 

with the wording of the statute, but how the DCA is 

implementing it through regulation? 

MR. BUCKMAN: That's correct. Our problem is that--

I'm sorry. 

SENATOR HAINES: I would like to get rid of the 

Department of Community Affairs. 

MR. BUCKMAN: You're speaking very close to my heart. 

SENATOR HAINES: Why can't we turn that over to the 

counties? I mean, you know, really, I don't think we need a 

Department. 

MR . BUCKMAN : Wel 1, here's a very good question for 

you, Senator: Why is the Department of Community Affairs, in 

'competition with the privatized sector, performing elevator 

inspections or any other kind of inspections? How is it that 

the agency that regulates us is in competition with us? 
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SENATOR HAINES: Well, the reason the Department is 

there, it gives 

buddies to run 

taxp~yers' money. 

the Governor a chance to appoint one of his 

the Dep_artment. I think it's a waste of 

MR. BUCKMAN: Well, I've been a private businessman 

for 40 years, 

philosophy of 

and I'm a strong believer in the capitalistic 

this society. I believe that private industry 

can do it less expensively and more better, gentlemen, than the 

bureaucracy can. 

SENATOR HAINES: I agree 100 percent. 

MR. BUCKMAN: What is going to happen here if this is 

permitted -- and the Legislature's sense of setting the fees· is 

not required by the Legislature is that our agencies are 

going to go out of business. We have been this route before. 

It's not news; it was before 1983. This was exactly the 

climate in which we operated, and it destroyed a lot of--

You see, there are some agencies that operate out of 

the trunk of their car, out of the basement of their home. 

There are others that have -- as mine does -- four off ices in 

the State of New Jersey that employ inspectors which they send 

out of the State to have lectures and seminars performed 

throughout the year. There is a vast spectrum of available 

services. Those available services are what should be 

emphasized, not the dollars. The dollars should be controlled. 

I have a little thing from Senator Kelly (sic) I'd 

like to read to you, if I may, just for a second. It's in your 

brochure, but I' 11 hit just a couple of high spots. Senator 

Kelly is the Assemblyman from whose Committee S-1227 eventually 

became law. In other words, it was Assembly Bill No. 1838, 

then 1227 on the Senate side, and then it became Public Law 

1993, c. 47. 

He says, "With the enactment of 1227, A-1838, Public 

Law 1993, c. 47, the Legislature intended to eliminate the past 

requirement that the private agency fees be identical to DCA's 
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as it relates to inspection and plan review services. In so 

doing, we take into consideration the fact that the costs 

incurre~ by the private inspection agency and the DCA are not 

the same. Thus, this healthy competition uld potentially lower 

costs in many instances. We are writing you to inform you that 

many members of the Legislature received correspondence, and/or 

have been contacted by a regulated public with concerns over 

the proposed regulation the Department of Community Affairs 

issued in the 'New Jersey Register,' on June 7, 1993 -- that's 

PRN 296. 

"In our own review of the proposal, we' re concerned 

with the many new requirements imposed on these private 

agencies performing inspections and plan review service3 such 

as the detailed information requested for monthly reports. 

There are also concerns with other requirements that appear to 

be regulatorily overburdensome, costly to business operation, 

and an attempt to micromanage private businesses performing 

these services. 

"We believe that some of the provisions of NJAC 

5:23-4.4 et al. go far beyond the law's intent, and amplify the 

recurring problems of overexpansive regulatory discretion into 

areas not necessarily essential, in order to implement the 

law's provision. 

"At this juncture, we are more concerned with the 

ability of the Department to account for its own productivity 

and efficiency in procedures and inspections, rather than 

myopic management of private businesses whose natural 

inclination is to keep its costs down in order to survive in 

today's economy." 

Gentlemen, I think that if we were to do it as the 

Legislature requested it be done, establish a schedule of fees 

that evolved from ~ task force created by one of your 

Committees whose sole purpose was to determine what the fair 

value of an inspection of anything an electrical outlet or 
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an elevator is concerned, and apply that to the using 

public, we would vastly improve the quality of services in this 

State. 

SENATOR SMITH: I think it's ironic what you're 

telling us here, because I was a sponsor of this 1227. You 

·know, the intent was to create lower fees, more competition in 

the private sector -- boost the private sector take it out 

of the public sector. And what you're telling me is that the 

way the agency has handled it with their regulations is 

threatening the very existence of the private sector. 

MR. BUCKMAN: The agency that I support, Middle 

way, there's a Department 

letter in 

Inspection 

here for 

Agency and by the 

you gentlemen to read from their vice 

president -- has been in this business 110 years in the State 

regulations initially created by 

evolved in a great degree from 

Department Inspection Agency 

of New Jersey. In fact, the 

the Uniform Construction Code 

the manner in which Middle 

performed its inspections. 

Middle Department 

to continue in business in 

go into place. And the 

exception, have the same 

Inspection 

New Jersey 

rest of 

position. 

Agency has no intention 

if PRN 296 is allowed to 

the agencies, with one 

They cannot continue to 

exist at a driven-down income and an increased cost according 

to regulation. 

We have 500 employees and we will be no more. The 

bureaucracy will totally control the inspection business in 

this State if this continues. We can start with establishing a 

schedule of fees, and the rest of the new regulations will not 

be necessary because the rest of the regulations revolve around 

whether or not you charge too little, and therefore have to 

give too little. 

Sir? 

SENATOR INVERSO: Mr. Buckman, maybe I'm still a 

trifle confused. 

standard fee--

What you would like to see established is a 
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MR. BUCKMAN: Yes. 

SENATOR INVERSO: --for the various inspections that 

applies throughout the State, so long as that fee, according 

the the legislation -- 1227 -- is less than the fee charged by 

DCA? 

MR. BUCKMAN: Precisely. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Fine. But what you don't want is, 

you don't want the condition where there would be competitive 

bidding for that service? 

of it. 

MR. BUCKMAN: That's true. Now, that sounds odd. 

SENATOR INVERSO: · Well, to me it does on the surface 

MR. BUCKMAN: Sir, why don't we have a lot of 

electrical companies that bid competitively? Why don't we have 

a lot of telephone companies that bid competitively? It drives 

down the quality of the service. 

SENATOR HAINES: I understand what you're saying. 

MR. BUCKMAN: We are not a producer. Our job is 

simply to apply building codes to a builder who installed 

equipment in the house or in the building. And we feel that it 

should be quite obvious -- it's not rocket science -- to evolve 

what that should cost. 

SENATOR INVERSO: But would you concede that the cost 

to do the service in Hudson County, for instance, might be less 

than to do it in Salem County? 

MR. BUCKMAN: I certainly do. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Okay. Doesn't that put Salem County 

at a disadvantage if the fee were to be one that doesn't 

recognize the economic differences from one area of the State 

to another area of the State? 

MR. BUCKMAN: I don't think I offered the percept ion 

that it should be generic. I don't see why the Department 

shouldn't work at it a little bit and say what should the fees 

be in Cumberland County, or what they should be in Union County? 
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SENATOR INVERSO: Okay. So you don't have a problem, 

then, if there were a differentiation among counties or sectors? 

MR. BUCKMAN: Certainly not. I'd very much agree with 

it. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Okay. That's something we have to 

pursue a little more. We will keep this on the agenda for 

staff, and we'll discuss this with the Chairperson. But 

initially when you were speaking, I was saying, "Wait. This 

is, in my way of thinking, going contrary to what I would· 

perceive to be the direction we should go in." You know, the 

legislation said, "You can't charge any more." Now you're 

saying, "I want the fee to be locked in so that competitive 

bidding won't take place," which I think is contrary -- not in 

every instance, but generally competitive bidding is supposed 

to be good for the public interest. We know that it isn't 

always that way. 

But if we can develop this a little more, I would need 

a little more input from you on this. 

MR. BUCKMAN: I would like to-- I have a construction 

official, if I might, Senator -- a construction official from 

the Town of Seacaucus who was terribly hurt by the situation 

prior to 1983, and who has been fighting with us to see that it 

doesn't ever happen again. Prior to 1983, it was a cost-based 

bidding process. You see, you'll be exchanging quality bidding 

for quantity bidding for dollars. 

Personally, our-- Don't get me wrong, we're 

businesses; we're businesspeople. But we're also in the 

business of applying something that should be sacrosanct. Now, 

we recognize the inequities of our humanness amongst our 

agencies, and we don't feel that that should be applied to the 

public. 

SENATOR SMITH: You know, this is odd. I think you 

talk about a system that was charging the fees were 

escalating too much under the DCA. They were too high. They 

were higher than you needed to charge . 
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MR . BUCKMAN: Exactly, sir, and we complained about 

that. 

SENATOR SMITH: So we changed the law to say that, 

"Okay, you' re not going to have to charge us as high as the 

State." The State didn't like that, so they turn around and 

they introduce a system of regulations designed effectively to 

put you out of business. 

MR. BUCKMAN: That's exactly so, sir. That's exactly 

our position and that of our attorneys. 

SENATOR SMITH: So it's precisely contrary to the 

intent of what the Legislature wanted when we changed the law. 

MR. BUCKMAN: It's very simple. The Legislature said, 

"Set the fees at a lower rate." It's not rocket science. 

That's all it said. 

SENATOR SMITH: But the DCA didn't like that? 

MR. BUCKMAN: No. 

SENATOR INVERSO: So I understand, are you saying that 

the competition will put you out of business? 

MR. BUCKMAN: The history of this prior to 1983 was 

that people were bidding for -- at cost or below cost, just to 

get the town. 

SENATOR INVERSO: 

situation, professionals, 

understand that. 

Sure. Everybody has a 

accountants, attorneys 

loss leader 

do it. I 

MR. BUCKMAN: Absolutely. But in order to 

business, these people who are making those offers 

decrease the services they can apply; that is, "We' 11 

stay in 

have to 

have to 

accumulate 10, 12, 14 inspections in a given town in order to 

go there." 

SENATOR INVERSO: I hear what you're saying. 

SENATOR HAINES: It's an inspection service, which is 

a little bit different than construction because, basically, if 

they don't do a good job of inspection, somebody can get 

killed. I think this is what we're after. 
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You 

inspects your 

don't think 

wouldn't want your electrical the 

electrical. work to be done on a bid 

the guy that inspects what the 

contractor does. I think you want that guy to be--

guy that 

basis, I 

electrical 

You might 

want to set his fees, but you don't necessarily want him to be 

the lowest bidder. 

SENATOR INVERSO: The problem is, we just heard about 

DEPE being an overgrown bundle of cost. DCA, in my opinion -

and I think you would support that -- is similar. 

SENATOR HAINES: Sure. 

SENATOR INVERSO: So now we' re saying that the fee 

should be set at a percentage of DCA's· cost. I don't know if 

DCA's cost is representativ~ of real cost. 

MR. BUCKMAN: It's not representative of anything. 

SENATOR SMITH: The intent of the legislation was to 

get away from that. 

SENATOR INVERSO: I understand that. But what they 

are addressing is that they want the fee to be set, so long as 

it's below DCA's. I can't make judgment now as to what level 

that percent should be set at, because I have no comfort in 

dealing with DCA as an appropriate accumulator of costs that 

are reasonable costs. I mean, as far as I know, DCA has been a 

political dumping ground for years. We probably could whittle 

away a lot of costs out of DCA. 

What I'm saying is, maybe I don't know enough about 

the nature of the business, nor about the relative value scale 

of the service and costs, and that cost compared to what DCA 

would be paying. So I think we have to pursue it a little 

further. 

SENATOR HAINES: That's why I say, Peter, if you did 

away with the agency up there, assign the duties to the county, 

you'd probably get it done for a quarter of what the State is 

doing it for. 

That's my feeling. I ~hink that's something that 

should be looked at . 
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SENATOR INVERSO: Yes, I agree. 

MR. BUCKMAN: Don't you think it's odd that I'm 

sitting here telling you gentlemen I'd like to work for less 

money? 

SENATOR INVERSO: Yes. 

MR. BUCKMAN: But I want you to control me so I can't 

denigrate the product. Isn't that strange? 

SENATOR HAINES: If it were assigned to the counties, 

the counties could set the rates. You would probably go to 

Salem County, and because they only have one elevator, it would 

have to be a higher rate than it would· in some other county 

that has a whole bunch of elevators, right? . 

MR. BUCKMAN: No. Iri fact, the smaller county-

Perhaps elevators is a poor example, but electrical circuits 

and electrical outlets-- It would cost me less, perhaps, to 

house somebody there. 

SENATOR HAINES: I'm saying that some counties 

that's not a good example. Some counties might be less than 

others. 

MR. BUCKMAN: It would rise and fall. And I don't see 

anything wrong with that, saying, "In this county it should be 

this, and in that county it should be that." It's just a 

matter of getting us all together and saying what should it be. 

SENATOR HAINES: But the county would say, "We want 

you to do the work because you've got a good record." And 

another county might say they want somebody else to do the 

work. But that would be their prerogative. 

MR. BUCKMAN: That's track records as judgments, and 

that's how it should be. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: Mr. Speaker? 

SENATOR INVERSO: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: One brief item that I'd just like 

to put on the record that's aside from this particular issue, 

but I think it's significant statewide. 
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It happened, I guess, about a month ago, and I don't 

think a lot of people paid much attention to it. But the State 

has been trying to locate hazardous waste facilities. It has a 

Hazardous Waste Facility Siting Committee, etc., etc., and also 

there is a Radioactive Waste Siting Committee. (sic) DuPont 

has been a significant participant in siting and implementing a 

hazardous waste facility at the Deepwater facility for the past 

half-a-dozen years, I guess, in planning and permitting. 

The day following the announcement that New Jersey, I 

guess, from a regulatory standpoint, adopted the most stringent 

mercury standards in the nation -- the following day, DuPont 

threw· in the towel on its hazardous waste facility. I forget 

the exact investment DuPont had in that -- between $30 million 

and $40 million -- but they invested private money in that 

facility. I think it was the straw that broke the camel's back 

that it was a significant loss to the State of New Jersey. We 

generate a tremendous amount of hazardous waste . 

. That was one of three facilities: Rawlins is 

existing; the Linden facility is in permitting; DuPont was on 

the horizon. DuPont has called it a day, and I think it's 

strictly the result of that regulatory action that took away 

that facility which would have meant New Jersey would have been 

closer to self-sufficiency in that waste area, and I think that 

was a significant regulatory result. 

I just want to put it on the record, because I think 

it is larger than it got credit for being. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Good. 

Mr. Buckman, thank you very much. 

coming out. 

We appreciate you 

MR. 

would like 

telephone 

letterhead. 

BUCKMAN: 

to talk 

number is 

My 

to me 

on 

SENATOR INVERSO: 

to you also . 

pleasure. If 

one-on-one, 

the On-Site 

any of 

I'd be 

Agency 

you gentlemen 

glad to. My 

Association 

Right. We may have staff reach out 
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MR. BUCKMAN: I'd like to have that happen. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Because this was slightly different 

than some of the other information that we got today. 

MR. BUCKMAN: It's kind of a unique situation. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Yes, very much so. Thank you, sir. 

MR. BUCKMAN: Thank you for hearing me, gentlemen. 

SENATOR INVERSO: Does anyone else wish to be heard on 

any matter? 

Thank you. 

(no response) If not, the meeting is adjourned. 

(MEETING CONCLUDED) 

80 



APPENDIX 

• 





• 

Premise: 

Background: 

FEDERAL VERSUS NJ REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

PROGRAM COMPARISONS 

New Jersey environmental regulations, as adopted by 
NJDEPE, impose significantly ·more prescriptive 
requirements on NJ-industry than do corresponding 
Federal regulations, and at a substantial cost of 
time and capital. What is really important is to 
reduce pollution in an enlightened manner, fairly 
to NJ industry, and cost effectively, and to avoid 
all needless paperwork and bureaucracy. 

Federal agencies can delegate to a state 
authority to administer regulatory programs. 
state must demonstrate: 

o Implementing legislation 

0 An administrative agency staffed 
appropriately qualified personnel 

the 
The 

by 

o A source of funding (General Fund, Fees or 
Fines) 

Regulations adopted by a state may be no less 
stringent than the federal rules. However, nothing 
in the delegation procedure mandates the state 
agency to adopt more stringent requirements. • 

In New Jersey, the Department of Health has~hosen 
not to administer programs developed by the 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration; the 
Department of Environmental Protection and Energy 
has sought/received delegation for most of EPA' s 
programs. 

Ix 
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1. Air Pollution 

( Federal ( New Jersey j 

The Clean Air Act as amended 

Title V: Hazardous Air Pollutants, 
Operating Permits, Leak Detection 

EPA must regulate those facilities 
which emit Congressionally defined 
hazardous air pollutants {the 
approximately 180 MACT chemicals). 

Draft rules relating to control of 
fugitive emissions have been published. 
EPA will require Leak Detection and 
Repair {LDAR) programs to be 
implemented only by the facilities 
which manufacture SOCMI {a list of more 
than 400) chemicals. 

.. 

'II' 

The Air Pollution Control Act, as amended 

Subchapters 16 and 17 of the Air Pollution 
Control Code 

Subchapter 16 and 17 impose specific 
requirements for emissions of VOC's {volatile 
organics and TVOC's, {Toxic Volatile Organics) 
respectively. There exist thousands of such 
chemicals. 

In its current draft regulations to amend 
Subchapter 16, NJDEPE adopts EPA's limitations 
for SOCMI chemicals, but has added "chemical 
plants emitting 25 tons per year of any 
volatile organic or more" to the list of 
facilities for which LOAR programs will be 
required. In its own words, NJDEPE is adding 
at least 1000 facilities to the regulated 
community beyond EPA's mandate. This involves 
at a minimum, for example, annual testing of 
the thousands of valves in the typical batch 
chemical plant, and the concomitant 
recordkeeping to prove it was done. 

The penalty matrix covers 8 pages in the draft 
regulation . 
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2. Process ::>atety Management. 

( Federal I .. New Jersey I 
OSHA PSM Standard 

Length of regulation: 6 pages in Federal 
Register (13 columns) 

Program focuses on prevention of release 
through administrative and procedural 
changes to minimize the risk to 
employees. 

Regulation presents general statement of 
requirements·, leaving most of the detail 
to the facility. Company need to provide 
an audit of compliance every 3 years. 

.. 

The Toxic Catastrophe Prevention Act 

Length of regulation: 101 typed pages 
(amended document not yet published in NJ 
Register) 

Program focusses ·on prevention of release 
of 104 legislatively-defined 
Extraordinarily Hazardous Substances 
(EHS's). 

Regulation lays out detailed technical and 
administrative requirements. Incredible 
amounts of paperwork - the "Annual Report" 
includes a audit checklist 15 pages long. 
Thousands of pages of backup required to be 
able to prove compliance during an audit. 
As an example, OSHA requires the site have 
an emergency response plan, including 
drills. DEPE requires this, plus written 
assessments of the drill for a list of 
specific items; 3 1/2 pages of the 
regulation spells out even more paperwork 
required to be in the plan. OSHA requires 
a review of the hazards of a process every 
5 years, with a qualified team addressing 
hazards as it deems necessary. TCPA 
requires, in addition, expensive computer 
modeling for an undetermined number of 
release scenarios, "state-of-the-art" 
analyses to determine a list of potential 
hazard reduction items, and justification 
to DEPE for anything on .the list not done. 
Just one sentence of TCPA regulation 
requires a system to maintain "accurate" 
record of all breakdowns and repairs, to 
allow studies of these later. Considering 
the need to build data files, etc., for 
piping, valves, and similar items, this is 
a massive task . 
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Facility will presumably be required to 
demonstrate the effectiveness of its 
program during an OSHA audit at some 
point. 

.. 

-

Facility is inspected on a schedule 
determined by NJDEPE. (current annually; 
might be reduced) These might typically be 
4-5 day (or longer) inspections and involve 
3-5 inspectors. The review is designed to 
uncover minute deficiencies with respect to 
provisions of the written regulation 
without particular regard to whether these 
may or may not actually impact the 
environment in any significant way. 

Regulation provides a penalty matrix (8 
pages) corresponding to each section of the 
regulation. 
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3. Spill Control 

( Federal I New Jersey I 
Clean Water Act (Sect. 311) 

List of approximately 400 hazardous 
substances. 

Definition of discharge reflects release 
to navigable waters of the United States. 

Current implementation federal regulations 
(OPA-92) set forth minimum facility size 
of 1 million gallons. 

Requires preparation of the Spill 
Prevention Control and Countermeasure 
Plan. Guidelines for plan preparation for 
all kinds of facilities, including off
shore oil drilling rigs, are contained in 
4 pages of the Federal Register. 

.. 

The Spill Compensation and Control Act 

List of approximately 1700 hazardous 
substances. 

Definition of discharge reflects release 
to waters, incl~ding groundwater, and to 
the lands ·of the state. 

Regulation affects facilities storing 
20,000 gallons or more of hazardous 
substances, in tanks or drums. 

Requires preparation of a Discharge 
Prevention Control and Countermeasure 
Plan, a Discharge Cleanup and Removal Plan 
and the Environmentally Sensitive Areas 
Plan. The contents required for each of 
these Plans are presented in ~O pages of 
regulations. Requirements include 
administrative issues such as training, 
standard operating procedures, etc., that 
are exactly the same as those under TCPA, 
thereby effectively "elevating" 
administrative procedures for handling the 
1700 substances to the level required for 
the 104 TCPA "Extraordinarily Hazardous 
Substances". Also requires very expensive 
mapping of "environmentally sensitive 
areas". Also, daily, weekly, and as used 
inspections, with documentation of such 
inspections, for all valves, pipes, 
equipment, etc. (which could be hundreds 
if not thousands of items) . 
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[ Federal I New Jersey \ 

The Pollution Prevention Act (U.S.) 

Addresses the reduction in the release of 
hazardous substances to the environment. 
No specific regulations. 

• 

The Pollution Prevention Act (N.J.) 

Addresses the reduction in the use of or 
generation as nonproduct output of 329 
SARA 313 hazardous substances. The Act 
does not specifically address reduction of 
releases to the.environment. 77 pages of 
regulations. 

The Act and NJDEPE regulations require 
submission of extremely detailed process 
information which industry has 
demonstrated is unnecessary for the 
identification of pollution prevention 
opportunities. For example, several 
companies have gone on public record as 
suggesting that to follow the regulations 
exactly, would require over $500,000 of 
manpower just to acquire data and 
information, anywhere from 2 to 10 times 
as much as should be needed to arrive at 
an effective plan. This includes 
inventory data, production data, expensive 
financial data, etc., by the plant as a 
whole and by each process, no matter how 
insignificant a plant wide usage level is 
met. 

Submission of annual process report is 
required; regulations also require the 
annual revision of the process data 
developed initially as supplemental to the 
Pollution Prevention Plan, information 
which, by statute, was to remain on site . 

r 



SCott I\. Welner 
Commissioner 

Mm of New Janey 

TO ;738617 .. 

Department or f.IWlromnaauJ Pr01leatoa ad lneray 
Enrorcament 

P.0'41'10 

IN 'I'BE HATTER OF THE 

PEMBERTON TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF EDUCATIOH 

P:EJlreERTON TOWNSHIP., 

BURLINGTON COUNTY 

ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER 

AND 

NOTICE OP CIVIL ADKINIST~TIVE 

PENALTY ASSESSMENT 

This A~inistrativ• Order and Notioe of Civil Adminiatrativo 
Penal~y Assessment is issued pursuant to the authority vested in 
the Commissioner of the New Jeraoy D•part•ant of Environmentai 
Protection and !nerqy (hereinafter "NJDEPE" or the "Departmene") 
by N.J.s.A. 13:10-1 et soq. and tha water Pollution control Act, 
("the Act") N.J.S.A. 58:10A-l et seq., and duly dele9ated to the 
Bureau Chief of tbQ central Bureau of Water and Hazardous Waste 
Enforcement, Division of Faci:ity Wide Enforcement pursuant to 
N.J.S.A. 13:18-4. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

lI'PDtQI 

Pemberton Township eoard o! Education (hereinafter 
"Pembarton"), owns and operates a wastewater treatment 
tacil1~y (hereinafter •Faeilityn) located at tho Helen Fort 
Middle School, Block 944l lot 2, Fort Dix - Pemberton Road, 
Pemberton Township, Burl n9ton County, Now Jersey. 

The Dep~rtment issued a New Jars•y .Pollu~ant Discharqe 
Elimination System (bereinarter'"NJPDES") Di5chaX'9e to 
Surfae• Wator {harainarter "DSW") Permit No. NJ0022438 
hereinafter (•the Permit") to Pemberton en May 9, 1984. Tho 
affective date of the Permit was June 15, 1984, and the 
expirat1on date wa~ June 14 1 1989. The Buroau of Information 
systeins received a NJPDE$ permit renawal application for the 
Permit on February 9, 1989. 

Pursuant to th• Permit, Pemberton discharges poilutante,·ae 
defined by N.J.A.C. 7:l4A-l.9, into the surface water of the 
Stato of Naw Jersey. The Permit governs one dicchar9a, DSN 
001, consistin9 of treated effluent which is discharqed into 
an unnam~d tributary to North Branch, Rancocas Creek. 

Pleax Respond To: Tel. f 
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4. 

s. 

6. 

7. 

s. 

70 2738617 

• 

No person sh~ll discharqe any pollutant except in conformity 
with a· valid NJ?DES Permit issued pursuant to the New Jersey 
water Pollution Control Act, N. J. S. A._ 59: lOA-l et seq. 

Part I, Page g of 20 of the Permit requires that di~oharqe 
monitoring results o~tained durinq the previous reporting 
period shall ~e summarized and reported to the oepartlllen~ on 
Discharge Monitoring Report (hereinafter "DMR") forms. DMRs 
a..-e to be po~tmarked and •ul:>mitted to the Department no later 
than the 28th of the •onth followinq the c01Dpleted reportinq 
period. 

Part I, Paqes 2 and 3 of 20 of the Permit sets forth limits 
on specific parameters at DSNOOl. · 

Part I, Page a of 20 of the Permit requires that Pemberton 
monitor the discharge at DSNOOl for specific parameters, and 
seta forth thca monitoring frequencies for these __ parameterc. 

Pmnborton baa s'l1bmittad DMRs to the Department for tha pario~ 
of octo~er i, 1991 to December 31, 1991. Tbe DMRS 
aemonstrate th~t Peml:>erton has violated the effluent 
limitation• of the Permit. Liate4 below are the effluent 
li~itAticns which were violated durinq tha gpaoi~iad 
~onitorin9 periods. 

AJ>~reviatiou ~~1• 

u: - percent excursion 
Ser Fae :;:: seriousness factor 
pH - hldrogen ion conccmtration 
SU min - s andard units minimum 
SU = standard units 
% = percent 
Mi • minor 
TC - fecel coliform 
ml - mi 11 il i ters 
Mo moderate 
Mo Avg - monthly average 
Ma - major 
Wkly Avg - waekly averaqe 

11QnitQE;l.11g J>i1;)a&n• ~ R•l!0'31t ll ~ 
b~iR4 lll:laltt• B1olt1 l.G 

10/91 pH 6 su min 5.55 SU ai Mi 

10/91 FC 2001100 ml Jle .,8, Mo 
Mo Av9 

l.1/91 pH 6 su min 4.4 li:U 27t Ki 

8 )( 



TO 2138617 .. 

. 12/91 pH 6 SU min 5.89 SU 2% Mi 
12/91 .re iooo;100 ml 68,0 585% Ma 

Wkly Ave; 

12/91 FC 200;100 ml 
Mo Avg 

907 **3~3 ·'' Ma 

• Denotes that Pemberton has incurred a serioU$ violation as 
defined by N.J.S.A. 58:10A-3(V) and N.J.A.C. 7: 14-8. 2. 

•• DenotaG that Pemberton haa incurred a aeriou• violation which 
has caused Peml:>erton to become a si9nif icant noncomplier as 
dafinQd by N.J.S.A. 58~10A-3(W) and'N.J.A.C. 7t14-8.2. 

9. Baeed on the facts eet forth in these FINDINGS, the 
Department haa determined that Pemberton has violated the 
Permit, the Water Pollution Control Act, N.J.S.A. 58:10A-1 et 
seq., spaci~ically H.J.S.A. SS:lOA-6, and the re9ulatione 
promulqated pursuant thereto, N.J.A.C. 7:14A-l et s•q., 
specitically N.J.A.c. 7:14A-1.2. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

OBDll 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

Pel1l:>erton shall discharqe pollutants only in conrormity with 
NJPDES PeillLit Ne. NJ0022438, the New Jersey water Pollution 
control Act, N.J.S.A. 58:10A-l et seq., and the requlations 
promul9ated pursuant tnereto, N.J.A.c. 7:14A-1.l et seq. 

Th• Permit remaina in full forca and effect pursuant to 
N.3.A.C. 7:14A-2.l(d) until the effective dato of the new 
permit. 

This Order shall be effective upon receipt. 

~OTiQB or CIVXL .a.DIUB%STR7.TJVll ••lmLTJ a•allSHIRl' 

13. Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 58!10A-10d and N.J.A.C. 7:14-8.1 ot 
saq., and based upon tne above FINOINGS, NJDEPE; has 
de~ermined that a civil administrative penalty shoUld be 
asaes5ed aqainet Pemberton in the amount of $50 1 250. . 
NJOEPE's rationale for thie Civil Adminietrative Penalty ie 
set forth in Appendix A which ie attached hereto and 
incorporated horGin. 



Commissioner "'' 

" 

St.Ate of New Jersey 
Deputment of Envtronmenttl.I Protection md Energy 

Enforcement 

JUN 21 1993 

CERTIFIED MAIL 

JUL I 4 Km 

Diane K. Weeks 
Assistant Commissioner 

Scott A-Weiner ~ ' 

~I RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Robert D. Elder, Ed.D., Superintendent 
Public Schools of Pemberton Township 
P.O. Box 98 
Browns Mills, New Jersey 08015 

RE: Administrative Consent Order dated January 13, 1993 
Pemberton Township High School #1 - STP O&M Manual 
NJPDES No. NJ0022438 - DSW 
Pemberton Township, Burlington County 

Dear Dr. Elder: 

This letter serves to respond to the draft Operation and 
Maintenance manual ("O&M") with cover letter dated April 13, 
1993. 

By exeqution of the above referenced Administrative Consent 
order ("ACO") Pemberton Township Board of Education ("PTBE") 
acce~ted the responsibility for meetinq all re~irements in the 
ACO including the enforcement compliance schedule specified in 
paragraph 12. 

Based on the cover letter submittal date of April 13, 1993 
received by the Division of Law's Environmental Enforcement 
Section on April 19, 1993 (see attached letter), PTBE submitted 
its draft O&M manual 12 calendar days late. Pursuant to 
paragraph 17 of the ACO, the Department has determined that PTBE 
violatea its ACO's enforcement schedule as outlined below: 

1 - 7 days at $1,000.00 per calendar days= $ 1,000.00 
8 - 14 days at $2,000.00 per calendar days = $10.000.00 

TOTAL PENALTY 17,000.00 

Therefore, PTBE's failure to compl¥ with the enforcement 
compliance schedule of the ACO subJects PTBE a stipulated 
penalty of $17,ooo.oo. This amount is now due and payable to the 
Department. 

Accordingly, the Department directs PTBE to submit to the Bureau 
of Revenue, New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection 
and Energy, CN 417, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0417 a certified 
or cashier's check made eayable to the "Treasurer, State of New 
Jersey" for $17,000.00 with the white copy of the Form DEPE-062A 
(copy enclosed) within 14 calendar days after receipt of this 
written demand letter. 

rtease Respond To: Tel.I 

New /et'HY Is .,, ~ Oppofftlnlry lmplayer 
R«yd«I P~r · 
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Please be advised that payment of these stipulated penalties 
-·shall not be construed as a waiver of the Department's right to 

compel PTBE to specifically perform its obligations under the 
ACO . 

In addition, the Department has reviewed your O&M Manual and 
~ requires the following modifications: 

1. On page 16, paragraph 3, The operator shall notify the 
Department and the PTBE of an upset, bypass or laboratory error 
within 24 hours of the occurrence, or becoming aware of the 

· occurrence, and, within 5 calendar days thereof, PTBE shall 
submit written documentation, including copies of properly 
signed operating logs, or other relevant evidence, on the 
circumst~nces of the NJPDES permit violation. 

. 2. On page 16, paragraph 4, PTBE should incorporate NJDEPE's 
ENVIRONMENTAL HOTLINE NOTIFICATION LINE at (609) 292-7172 and 
the Central Bureau of Water and Hazardous Waste Enforc~ment at 
{609) 584-4200. Furthermore, enclosed please find, post and 
incorporate the Department's communication "NOTICE". 

3. On page 16, para9raph 7, PTBE shall maintain the Chain of 
Custody with its certified laboratory analysis reports. 
Furthermore, if the certified laborator¥ aavises PTBE of an 
invalid, improper or other sampling deficiency, and if the 
sampling period has not elapsed, PTBE shall immediately 
collected additional samples in an effort to comply with the 
NJPDES permit's sampling schedule. 

4. On page 19c paragraphs 4 and s, the operator shall 
instruct all pertinent PTBE employees in emergency cases with 
the proper methods of contact, specifically in the absence of 
the operator of license. These notices and procedure will be 
clearly posted at the site and other PTBE administrative 
facilities. 

To prevent the possibility of injury, or loss of life, all 
gualif ied persons entering confined spaces must have up to date 
confined space entry training that outlines the permit entry 
process, the spaces atmosphere monitoring, emergency retrieval 
equipment, first aid assistance and mechanisms for lock out & 
tag out processes, as a minimum. All PTBE confined spaces must 
be clearly posted, identifying the hazardous space and area. 

In conclusion, failure to comply with the above will subject 
PTBE to civil administrative penalties for violations of the 
ACO's conditions. The Department reserves the right to assess 
the maximum civil administrative penalty amounts allowed by the 
New Jersey Water Pollution Control Act, N.J.A.C. SS:lOA-1 ttt 
~· if stipulated penalties are not paid in accordance with the 
ACO provisions. 

II~ 
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If you should have any questions, please contact Michael 
Abramowicz, of my staff, at (609) 584-4200 or by letter through 
this off ice. 

ENCLOSURES 

Ve~ ;ru;y yours, J 
~ /. /l1 

Charles L •. Maack, Chief 
Central Bureau of Water and 
Hazardous Waste Enforcement 

c: Robert J. Genatt, Deputy Attorney General 
Frederick w. Hardtc Esq. 
Howard E. curry, Licensed Operator 
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DEFINITIONS 

Section 1 

LISTED BELOW ARE DEFINITIONS USED IN THIS MANUAL, WHICH ARE 
• SPECIFIED IN N.J.A.C. 7:14A-l.9. 

"Average monthly discharge limitation" means the highest allowable average of 
"daily discharges" over a calendar month, calculated as the sum of all daily 
discharges measured during a calendar month, divided by the number of daily 
discharges measured during that month (DMRs shall be calculated based on a 
calendar month basis). 

''Average weekly discharge limitation" means the highest allowable average of 
"daily discharges" over any seven consecutive days, calculated as ·the sum of all 
daily discharges measured during any seven consecutive days, divided by the 
number of daily discharges measured during that week. 

"Daily discharge" means the "discharge of a pollutant'' measured during a 
calendar day or any 24-hour period that reasonably represents the calendar day 
for purposes of sampling. For pollutants with limitations expressed in units of 
mass, the "daily discharge" is calculated as the total mass of the pollutant dis
charged over the day. For pollutants with limitations expressed in other units of 
measurement, the "daily discharge" is calculated as the average measurement of 
the pollutant over the day (For purposes of sampling, "day'' means an operating 
day or 24-hour period). 

"Maximum daily discharge limitation" means the highest allowable "daily 
discharge" during the monitoring period. 

"MGD" means million gallons per day. 



Section 2 

LISTED BELOW ARE DEFINITIONS USED IN THIS MANUAL WHICH ARE 
NOT CURRENTLY COVERED IN ANY REGULATIONS. 

11 Aliquot'' means an individual sample of specified volume used to make up a 
total composite sample. 

11col/100 ml" means the coliform colonies per 100 milliliters. 

11Composite sample" means a combination of individual (or continuously taken) 
samples (aliquots) of at least 100 milliliters, collected at-periodic intervals over a 
specified time period. The composite should be flow proportional; either the 
time interval between each aliquot or the v9lume of each aliquot should be pro
portional to either the flow at the time of sampling or the total flow since the 
collection of the previous aliquot. Aliquots may be collected manually or auto
matically. 

11EDP" means Effective Date of Permit. 

11Grab" means an individual sample of at least 100 milliliters collected over a 
period not exceeding 15 minutes. 

11kglday'' means kilograms per day. 

11Maximum Value" means the highest value measured during the monitoring 
period. 

11MF" means the membrane filter technique, used to analyze for members of the 
coliform bacteria group. 

11mgll" means milligrams per liter. 

11Minimum value" means the lowest value measured during the monitoring 
period. 

11ml/l" means milliliters per liter. 

11Monthly minimum BODs percent removal" means the lowest percentage 
obtained for any single sampling event performed during the calendar month 
(minimum percent removal limitation). 
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"MPN" means most probable number. This term is used for reporting results 
from· the multiple-tube fermentation technique, a technique to analyze for mem
bers of the coliform bacteria group. 

"Seven day average value" means the greatest sum of all daily discharges mea
sured during any seven consecutive days, divided by the number of daily dis-

~ charges measured during that week. Results may be expressed in loading (kg/ 
day) and/ or concentration (mg/I) . .. 

r 

11Six hour composite sample" means a combination of individual aliquots ob
~, tained at a minimum frequency of one aliquot at 30-minute intervals over a 6-

hour period. 

"Thirty day average value" or uMonthly average value" means the sum of all 
daily discharges measured during a calendar month, divided by the number of 
daily discharges measured during that month. Results may be expressed in 
loading (kg/ day) and/ or concentration (mg/I). 

"Twenty-four hour composite sample" means a combination of individual 
aliquots obtained at a minimum frequency of one aliquot at hourly intervals over 
a 24-hour period. 

1'ug/l" means micrograms per liter. 
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On-Site Hgency Hssociation of N.J. 
P.O. Box 568 • Cedar Knolls, N.J. 07927 • 800-886-8558 

Chairman: 
Vice Chairman: 

Charles A. Buckman 
Patricia M. Daub 

Treasurer: Melvin Firth 
Secretary: Richard Acosta 
Recording Secretary: Maureen Castelone 

22 June, 1993 

Michael L. Tlcktln, Esq. 
Chief, Legislative Analysis 
Department of Community Affairs 
CN 802 
Trenton, N.J. 08625 

Subj: 
. i. 

Proposed Amendment to N.J.A.C1 5:23: PRN 1993-296 

Dear Mr. Ticktin; 

The proposed amendment sha 11 put our 12 member firms out of business 
placing our 2,000 plus employees on the unemployment rolls, and killing 
another New Jersey cottage Industry. It would appear that the Department 
of Community affairs herein is usurping the powers of the St ate 
Legislature, "inter alia" to micro managing the On-site Agencies. 

We are appa 11 ed to note that In the Proposed Amendment the Department 
has blatantly Ignored the first portion of P.L. 1993 c.47 Section 6i(2) 
wherein the Department continues to be admonished to set fees, not, as the 
Department proposes, to require all off er lngs be expressed as a percentage 
of the DCA fee schedule, thus do Ing away with Qua I ity based contract 
offerings in direct contravention of the "Local Public Contracts Law," P.L. 
1 ~71, c.198 CC. 40A: 11-1 et seq.) and of CP.L. 1983, c.338). Th Is is "free 
wheeling", not setting, fees, exactly the opposite of the legislative 
requirements, which our members have enthusiastically endorsed. 

We believe that the legislature was quite clear, when passing·senate Bill 
1227, In modifying only that portion of P.L. 1983, c.338 which required 
agencies to charge fees at a rate wh I ch ref I ected the needs of the 
Department", not the business community. The .Q11ly mod if icat Ion permits 
On-site Agencies to charge fees at a more equitable level than those 
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charged by the Department, a cha'1ge most agencies have encouraged for 
some time. 

If the Department were to comply with the law, It would avoid the major 
threats to public safety posed by the cost based contracts extant prior to 
1983 which resulted In the emplacement of many hidden, Irreversible, code 
violations Indigenous to hurried inspections which shall eventually harm 
the building users and which, we fear, would revisit the industry as a 
consequence of the plan offered by the Department In the Proposed 
Amendment. 

In 1 983 the I eg Is I a ture moved to correct the harm done by such cost based 
contracts by enacting A619 (P.L. 1983, c.338) ~hlch removed bidding for 
dollars from the contract equation and substituted bidding for qual lty code 
inspections. The On-site Agency Association believes strongly that this is 
the only method by which the public might be assured of safe dwellings and 
public facllltles when Inspected by On-site agencies and have commended 
the Leg Is I ature in the past for I ts' percept ion in th is regar~. In the 
summary of A619 (P.L. 1983, c.338) legl slators put it most succinctly: 

Economic Impact 

"The establishment of the uniform fee schedule will prevent 
abuses such as bidding below cost to drive out competition and 
overcharging in municipalities for whose business there is little 
or no competition." A619 (P.L. 1983, c.338) (Summary) 

In other words, the last time the Department of Community Affairs tried 
"cost based bidding", the legislature discovered it contravened the very 
purpose of the existence of the Department. It Is Inconceivable that the 
Department would be so misguided as to try again, this time by ignoring 
the clearly stated intentions of the legislature. 

It Is Interesting to note that In the summary portion of Proposed 
Amendment the Department of Community Affairs makes the following 
statements: 

"the Department is authorized to adopt rules setting the amounts 
of fees to be charged by the private agencies, ........ Page 2 Lines 5-7 

"the proposed rule requires that the bid be expressed In terms of a 
percentage of the fees charged by the Department as enforcing 
agency." Page 2 Lines 17-19 
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"The Department recognizes that competitive pressures could 
conceivably result in excessive cost-cutting by private agencies, 
with consequent harm to the health, safety and welfare of the 
pub 11 c" Page 2 Lines 26-29 

It would seem that these statements Indicate that the Department Is: 

A. Aware of its responsibility as imposed by the legislature; 
8. Has its' own agenda; 
C. Is aware of the consequences of its actions for the public. 

In lieu of the "wheel of fortune• proposed by the Department we would 
encourage . the es tab I ishment of a task force comprised of On-site. 
agencies, members of the various sub-codes and knowledgeable members 
of the pub I le for the express purpose of es tab I ishing a pr iv ate agency fee 
schedule of lesser cost to the public In compliance with P.L. 1993 c.47. 

In other Issues, we be I ieve the change In rule 4.14, adding the word general 
to the liability insurance protection provided the consumer, runs contrary 
to public Interest. General liability Insurance provides protection against 
loss only during the performance of the inspection. It has no value once 
the lnsp_ector has left.the premises. The DCA Is creating a condition where 
the claimant would have to recover from the assets of the agency. The 
code, as originally Interpreted, required Professional Llablllty Insurance, 
commonly known as Errors and Omissions. The comment made by the 
Department that this change would ease costs for the On-site Agency is 
both incorrect and Irresponsible In that responsible agencies would 
continue to provide Professional Liability protection to their consumers as 
they have In the past whl le Irresponsible agencies would continue to 
gamble. Agencies should be encouraged to provide this essential coverage. 

The requirement stipulated in 4.SA (j)S., wherein the agency s_hall be paid . 
within 30 days of bl I ling elevator Inspection charges (which shall be>° due 
on Issuance of cert if lcates of compliance or notice of unsafe structure, 
penal lzes the agency and encourages I iberal issuance of certificates of 
comp I lance. The Agency must compensate the Inspector during the week of 
the inspection, It ts conceivable that violations exist which prompt the 
Issuance of a temporary cert If lcate of comp I lance pending abatement. It ts 
also conceivable that abatement would take six months as provided by 
code. It would therefore seem logical that this requirement would extend 
the cost of the Inspection by seven months white the company waits for 
payment. An additional concern Is that the agency has no control over 
whether the Construction Off iclal ever Issues a notice of unsafe structure. 
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Payments should be due the agency 30 days subsequent to the inspection 
bil I Ing date. 

Much of the. remainder of the Proposed Amendment is given to unwarranted 
and, we believe, In some cases illegal intrusions on the rights of the 

~ private agency as well as the ability to perform and continue to make a 
.L profit . 
. .... 

The perception, by the Department, that there is something wrong with a 
private enforcing agency profiting through the temporary appointment of 
an employee as an acting subcode off iclal as the DCA comments in the 
Economic Impact section, is frightening. Desp-ite some perceptions to the 
contrary, in this country making a profit is a requisite to the American 
way of. I ife. If there is concern for the term of the appointment, say so and 
limit It. Anything else limits the town's facilities and punishes the 
agency. 

We bel I eve the change in paragraph 4.SA(d)6. to be i I legal .. Government 
cannot regulate the manner In which a business compensates its employees 
as a means to resolve an issue which Is properly the responsibi I ity of the 

. governing agency. It there Is a concern for the number of inspections 
required ·of an Inspector by an agency, freewheeling the chargeable fees 
will exacerbate it. The Department is supposed to be the regulator here, 
not private industry. 

In summation, one cannot force the agencies to dramatically decrease their 
income while mandating increased administrative cost and expect the 
agencies to stay in business. Considering that the Department performs 
the same functions as an On-site agency and that self-perpetuation seems 
to us to be its major goal, it occurs to us that it is possible the 
Department's intention is to "drive out competition in municipalities for 
whose business there is little or no competition" A619 (P.L. 1983, 
c.338) Ecc;momlc Impact 

We resent being treated as second class citizens Several of our agencies 
predated the Department, in one case by 95 years. We have been active in 
all phases of the development of N.J. Building Codes. 

Very tru I y yours, 

Charles A. Buckman 
Chairman 
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On-Site Ogency Rssociotion of N.J. 
P.O. Box 568 • Cedar Knolls. N.J. 07927 • 600-886-6558 

ChalrmMl: Chnrle9 A. 6uckmtm 
Vice Chetrmitn: ratrlcia M. Daub 
Tru~rnrer: Melvin Firth 
Secretary: Rkhard Acosh 
Recording Secrelary: Consllmtine Oe1Gresso 

t 7 October, 1993 

Senator John o. Bennett, Chairman 
Senate Legislative oversight Committee 
Eatontown, NJ 

Re: Proposed Regulatory Amendment 
PRN 1993-296 

Dear Senator Bennett: 

Both Mrs. Daub and myself are deeply grateful to you for your interest' tn 
our concern for the usurpation of the powers of the New Jersey Legislature 
by the Department of Community Affairs. . 

As we have discussed the Department of Community Affairs has proposed a 
Regulatory Amendment (PRN 1993-296) to the Uniform Construction Code 
of the State of New Jersey (N.J.A.C. 5:23 et seq.) which, It would have the 
leglslature believe, Is the Implementation of P.L.1993-c.47 
(S1227/A1838). In fact it runs counter to the express Intention of the 
statute by falling to set a schedule of fees for private inspect Ion agencies 
to follow, thus piecing the focus of the On-Site Inspection Agency on 
!Uccessful competitive bidding end al I of the maneuvering Inherent In that 
process rather than where It properly belongs, on the proper pert ormance 
of Inspections for bul I ding code comp I iance as est ab I ished by P.L. 1983 
c.338 (5619). 

Our m@mbers have en thus last ically supported the passage of Senate Bl II 
number 1227 CP.L. 1993, c..47) which revises Legislation enacted In 1983 

(' as A619 CP.L. 1983, c.338) as follows: 



r "(2) The setting of the amounts of fees to be charged by a 
private agency for Inspection and plan review services; 
provided, however, that such fees shall (be identical to) not be 
more than those charged by the department." 

We believe that the legislature made It's Intentions quite clear: to make It 
requisite for the DCA to establish a reduced fee schedule for private 
Inspection agencies so as to reduce costs for the bul I ding Industry and the 
general public by establishing a fee schedule chargeable by the private 
agencies at a more equitable level whlle avoiding the major threats to 
public safety posed by the cost based contracts extant prior to 1983. The 
Department Amendment proposes, Instead, to require all offerings be 
expressed as a percentage of the DCA fee schedule, thus doing away ·with 
Quality based contract offerings In direct contravention of the "Local 
Public Contracts Law: P.L. 1971, c.198 CC. 40A:11-1 et seQ.) and of (P.L. 
1983, c.338). This 19 •tree wheeling", not setting, fees. 

In 1 983 the I eg is I a tur e moved to cor r1ct the harm done by such cost based 
contracts by enacting A619 (P.L. 1983, c.338) which removed bidding for 
dollars (read bidding for cash flow while driving out competition) from the 
eqvat Ion and substituted bidding for Quality code inspections. The On-site 

f'· Agency Association believes strongly that this is the only method by Which 
the public might be assured of safe dwellings and public facilitles w~en 
Inspected by On-site agencies and have commended the Legislature In the 
past for Its' perception in this regard. In the summary of A61 g (P.L. 1983, 
c.338) leg ls I a tors put it most succinctly: 

Economic Impact 

''The est ab II sh men t o t the u n If or m fee sch e du I e w i II prevent 
abuses such as bidding below cost to drtve out competition end 
overcharging In municipalltles for whose business there Is· I lttle 
or no competition." A619 (P.L. 1983, c.338) (Summary) 

In 1983 the DCA's sense of the requirement of P.L. 1983, c.338 to set fees 
was that It was mandatory to establish a fee schedule, why Is It not now 
when the .2.DJ.t mod if icat Ion P.L. 1993, c.47 made to P .L .. 1983, c.338 was 
that such fees no longer needed to equal that of the DCA. 

Our On-Site Agencies have the benefit of decades of experience In the 
admlnl!tratlon of the various building codes. We have no desire to revert 
to a business cllmete where the focus was on survival, not, more properly, 
on the adm lnlstratlon of the Uniform Construction Code, nor an atmosphere 
where the larger of us would survive the Impact of this regulatory 
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amendment, outlasting the smaller of us In the tnevltable price war which 
would result from the Implementation of the cost based bidding section of 
this amendment (5:23-~tsA (b)3. We remember the days when agencl es 
would seek to acquire large towns and then "low bal 111 the surrounding 
communities to create a low cost revenue base. On the occasion that the 
key town was lost to a lower bid, the agency could no longer afford to 
perform In the surrounding towns resulting In delays, general chaos and th• 
eventua I death of the agency. 

We would encourage the Leglsleture to require the DCA to consider an 
alternative to the proposed percentage system of creating fees 
re9ponstble for the majority of the remainder of the proposed regulatory 
amendment. The simple act of Impaneling a task force charged with the 
creation of an equitable fee schedule would save our Industry and resolve 
the commissioners problem of complying w Ith P.L. 1 gg3 c.47 sect ion 6 i(2). 
The task force should consist of those with "real world" experience In 
enforcing the bulldlng codes as a private industry. together with members 
of the Department staff. 

We cannot be certat n of the cost to our sma 11 businesses to do it the DCA 
way rather than that of the Leglsl1ture because the DCA has not supplied 

(·· the fol lowlng information as is required by the Administrative Procedures 
Act: 

The kinds of professional services needed to comply with the 
requirements (1:30-3.1<04 lv(2) 

An estimate of the lnltlal capital costs, and an estimate of the 
annual compliance costs with variations according to types and 
sizes of 9mall businesses ( 1:30-3. 1 (f)4 lv(3) 

How the rule Is de9igned to minimize any adverse economic 
Impact on small businesses (1:30-3.1Cf)4 lv(4) 

This Information Is Important to our sm111 businesses and In particular to 
our minority owners. We cannot afford. however, to perform an evaluation 
of this type to f Ind out how badly they are going to hurt us and how to 
minimize the Impact. 

In summation we believe the Department has made a poor decision to 
ignore the intentions of the legislature and to require agencies to revert to 
bidding for dollars and have then had to construct an elaborate system of 
addltlonal regulations to protect against the inevitable consequences of 
their decision to publlc health, safety and welfare. Unfortunately those 
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pr Iva te a gene I es who have been there before must bear the burden of th 1 s 
error In judgment again, but many shall not survive this time. 

Our agencies have long been reel Ing under a massive regulatory and 
report Ive structure unprecedented in Amer I can Industry. Dur Ing a t lme In 
our history when Privatization has become the answer to government 

• waste end mismanagement, the Department of Community Affairs has 
elected to massively Increase the bureaucracy at the expense of those who 
have contributed mort than 3 mllllon dollars to their budget in the last ten 

- years. It Is obvious that tht Department shall require significant more 
funds for staff Ing at a time when the very regulatory amendment creating 
the need shall cause Its 5" private agency contribution to shrink. Where 
shall the9e additional moneys come from. Who shall pay the OCA costs 
when we're gone? 

Several of our members have of ten petitioned the DCA In the past for rel lef 
from the unsubstantiated and baseless inspection fee Increases. The level 
of fees to which the Builders Association objects Is a consequence of the 
Department wentlng the money, not of the private agencies asking for It. 
There would have been no need for the amendment of P.L 1983 c.338 had 
the Department malntai ned a reasonable fee schedule. 

The consequence of this proposed regulatory amendment shall be to set .us 
one against the other to the detriment of the administration of the system 
of codes we apply. It would provide a vehicle for one or two large agencies 
to eliminate all competition. The load Imposed by the Department would 
become so on1rous as to result In the f lnal destruction of the remaining 
agencies and shall put our 500 workers on the street. 

Very truly yours, 

Charles A. Buckman 
Chairman 

Patricia M. Daub 
Vice Chairman 
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Middle De~<,rtment Inspection Agency, Inc. 
l 33 7 West Chester Pike 

West Chester. Pennsylvania 19380 
(215) 696-3900 

'"I l'llf c,1(1f 1,1 l'(lN1 h< ; l f IO 

GLENN G BEAVER 

Mr. Michael L. Ticktin, Esq. 
Chief, Legislative Analysis 
Department of Community Affairs 
CN 802 
Trenton, New Jersey 08625 

July 2, 1993 

Re: Proposed Amendments - N.J.A.C. 5:23-4.4, 4.5, 4.5A, 
4.12, 4.14, 4.18 and 4.20 

Dear Mr. Ticktin: 

The following comments represent MDIA's position regarding the 
above captioned proposed regulatory amendments as published in the 
"New Jersey Register" on May 31, 1993. 

Tbe Proposed Regulations Fail to Comply witb a Specific 
I,,egislative Directive and Ignores Legislative Intent 

The legislative intent of S-1227 is not met by the proposal of 
the Department of Community Affairs. S-1227 repealed the 
requirement that fees charged by private enforcing agencies be 
identical to those charged by the Department of Community Affairs 
when the private enforcing agency serves as a local enforcing 
agency. The only stipulation is that the fees charged shall "NOT 
BE MORE" than the current schedule. The Legislature continues its 
direction to the Commissioner to "adopt rules setting the amounts 
of fees to be charged by a private agency". The original 
Legislative requirement that private enforcing agency fees be 
established by and equivalent to the Department fees was enacted of 
P.L. 1983, c.338 (Assembly Bill 619). The underlying requirement 
of the Legislature to "(set) the amount of fees" has not changed . 
. Creating a rule whereby any percentage may be charged, does not 
fulfill the responsibility of the Commissioner. The Regulatory 
Flexibility Analysis states "the fees will be allowed to be set by 
each municipality". The Uniform Construction Code Act clearly 
specifies the Commissioner is the only responsible party for 
setting agency fees. 

~t..X 
"C:::t:lr\lif"D le: n, 1r Prim:::ar\/ Prnrl1 ,,.., .. 
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Mr. Michael L. Ticktin, Esq. 
July 2, 1993 
Page 2 

; As outlined in the Social and Economic Impact statements which 
~accompanied the proposed amendments published in the January 3, 

1984 New Jersey Register, for the implementation of A-619, the 
rationale was concisely set forth. A-619 clearly recognized that 

-cost based bidding for subcode inspection services ran counter to 
·the public good. Enactment of S-1227 does not alter or repudiate 
~these findings of the Legislature. One could discern a sole 
negative in this legislation which is the establishment of a 
ceiling for private agency fees, while creating no floor. S-1227 
recognizes the economies of scale inherent to private enforcing 
agencies and their abilities to serve the public good. It is 
inconceivable that the Legislature would open the process to "free
wheeling" bidding for critical safety inspections, a dangerous 
practice eliminated by the Legislature almost a decade ago. 

S-1227 continues the requirement of the establishment of a 
separate fee schedule by the Department for 
inspection agency when serving as a local 
Reversion to the environment remedied by A-619 
interest of the citizens of the State and is 
authorized by law. 

use by a private 
enforcing agency. 
is not in the best 
not permitted nor 

When the regulations promulgated .. by the enactment of A-619 
went into effect, the primary motivation was to improve the quality. 
of inspection services. The legislature then found that if a 
uniform but reasonable fee basis was established, the quality of 
subcode inspection service would be the primary consideration in 
the selection process. MDIA believes that a standard fee schedule 
for private inspection agencies is required under S-1227 to ensure 
that the quality of inspections is maintained. Using a standard 
private enforcing agency fee schedule together with the currently 
established guidelines in use by local government for selection of 
third party agencies, the public good will continue to be served. 

There are options for establishing a fee schedule, other than 
a free falling percentage bid. A primary one would be to establish 
a panel of on-site agency and Department representatives to create 
a cost effective fee schedule. Establishing an arbitrary percent
age, without public input, would not be a solution. We believe it 
is of paramount importance to have a consensus of involved parties, 
with the expertise gleaned from years of working in the field of 
code enforcement, to produce an equitable schedule. Given that the 
proposal requires that competitive cost based bidding be 
reinstituted, there can and most probably will be a serious 
detrimental long term impact on the citizenry of New Jersey. 

Code enforcement is not analogous to.sales of tangible goods 
where firms who bid for cash flow shortly go out of business with 
no impact on the public. When revenue becomes the controlling 
factor, defi~iently performed inspections inevitably result and 



Mr. Michael L. Ticktin, Esq. 
July 2, 1993 
Page 3 

• •' t ~ _, '-. t.. L.,. l I _, • • J 0 L 0 ; 

continue in place like ticking bombs waiting for the unwary 
public. MDIA believes that our primary goal is to preserve the 
health, safety and welfare of the people. To do so, an adequate 
amount of revenue is necessary to ensure that sufficient time and 
resources are committed to the achievement of that goal. The 
enactment of S-1227 guarantees that revenue available to third 
party agencies will decrease. Due to the competitive nature of the 
business, the lack of a standardized pricing_ mechanism could 
negatively impact on the quality of service since the potential for 
serious cost cutting for the purpose of revenue generation would 
result. 

Another consideration is the impact of the Department's 
proposed regulations on other statutes. Prior to the passage of A-
619, the bidding for onsite construction code inspection services 
was subject to the requirements of the Local Public Contracts Law. 
Subsequent to the implementation of the regulations precipitated by 
A-619, the Local Public Contracts Law was amended to except 
contracts for certain onsite construction code inspection services 
from the public bidding requirements contained therein. The 
rationale for the exception was that the Department of Community 
Affairs was required to adopt regulations setting private enforcing 
agency inspection fees. Since pricing was removed from the private 
inspection agency selection process the Local Public Contracts Law. 
was no longer germane. The Uniform Construction Code Act is 
intended to govern the fee structure of private enforcing agencies 
by the establishment of a uniform fee schedule by the Commissioner. 
MDIA believes that the Legislature intends to maintain a uniform 
fee schedule for private inspection agencies, albeit on a reduced 
level as compared to the structure maintained by the Department. 

Private enforcing agencies are profit making organizations in 
the business of providing community service·. They provide 
significant employment for qualified code enforcement professionals 
in the State, which makes it possible for small to medium sized 
municipalities to acquire the necessary personnel to accomplish 
their code enforcement goals in a cost effective manner. The 
Department, by way of this proposal, apparently wishes to eliminate 
private enterprise from code enforcement by decreasing revenue and 
increasing cost, thereby squeezing the profit margin to something 
less than zero. The DCA is a regulatory off ice for oversight of 
the UCC; not meant to be competitive nor sole proprietor. 

Additional Reporting Requirements Unreasonable. 

Stated in this proposal, is the Department's concurrence that 
the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of New Jersey may be 
placed in jeopardy should these amendments stand. To compensate 
for this threat to the public, the Department looks to further 
constrain the agencies by increasing reporting requirements which 
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.. will certainly escalate the expenses of third party inspection 
' agencies causing additional unwarranted administrative hardships 
,. both logistically and financially. It is acknowledged, at least 
• legislatively, that private industry can accomplish the code 

enforcement task at a lesser expense than can the state agency 
while maintaining the health, safety and welfare of the people. 
These directives malign the integrity of private agencies. 

The extraordinary DCA oversight . and monitoring efforts 
required as a consequence of the proposed amendments, will become 
so inflated as to incur additional cost to the citizens of New 
Jersey through the need for increased sta~f ing and its attendant 
costs. At present the Department has neither the funding nor the 
personnel requisite to fulfill the additional obligations which 
would be created by this action. Increasing staff by the DCA is in 
direct contravention of legislative edicts to divest itself of 
excess staff. 

Not only will there be a need to increase the Department's 
staff, but private enforcing agencies will find it necessary to 
employ additional staff and incur additional capital outlays to 
accumulate and report the plethora of data required by the proposed 
regulations. It is not reasonable for the Department to impose 
requirements which place an undue financial burden on private. 
enterprise for additional reporting and statistical gathering. It 
seems that the imposition of such requirements is designed to 
create more "busy work" to hinder the business operations of 
private enforcing agencies. Furthermore, the cavalier nature of 
proposal's economic impact statement and regulatory flexibility 
statement in this regard is indicative of the Department's desire 
to maximize any adverse economic impact on private industry to 
ensure its ultimate demise. 

Payment of Fees for Services Rendered Should be Uniform 

The Department is proposing that third party inspection 
agencies be paid for inspections even if the municipality in which 
the agency is acting as the subcode official has not received any 
inspection fees. While MDIA believes that payment should be 
received for services rendered, from a competitive standpoint the 
Department waives these fees which should otherwise be paid, 
placing private industry at a disadvantage. Any inspection 
performed should be funded by the applicant, whomever it may be. 

The Department is further imposing itself into the financial 
operations of municipal government. Over the course of time, 
practices and procedures have been developed to serve the 
municipalities and third party agencies. The regulations already 
provide for the requirement that a third party agency shall be 
responsible for and receive all fees for permits initiated during 
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the contract period. MDIA sees no reason for further Department 
tampering with, perhaps tortiously, the contractual arrangements 
currently in place and arrangements made in the future. 

Proposed Insurance Requirements are Deficient 

Another serious situation that the Department's proposal would 
perpetuate and exacerbate is the deficiency of insurance 
requirements for private enforcing agencies. The Department 
proposed a precisely contrary change to the Uniform Construction 
Code relative to insurance requirements in the New Jersey Register 
on July 1, 1991. The pre-proposal required finite limits of 
coverage for general liability as well as professional (errors and 
omissions) liability insurance. 

The 1991 text of the pre-proposal was not necessarily on 
target as to what type of insurance should be required to respond 
to professional liability exposure, however, MDIA indicated that 
the direction in which Department was heading was a positive one. 
The pre-proposal placed emphasis on the wrong type of policy to 
cover the professional exposure and MDIA suggested alternative 
requirements to correct the intent. on October 7, 1991 the 
Department published a notice indicating that the Department "has 
concluded that it is not necessary as a matter of public interest 
at this time to establish additional insurance requirements for the 
various types of private enforcing agencies" (emphasis added). The 
pre-proposal did contain additional insurance requirements. Had 
the Department considered the alternative provisions suggested by 
MDIA the Department would have discovered that there was a 
restatement of the insurance requirements already in place. 

The Department misinterpreted the input received and came to 
an improper conclusion resulting in non-publication of even an 
adjusted regulation. 

The primary rationale for not publishing a regulation wl th 
teeth in it was the perception that the cost of appropriate 
insurance (professional liability) would be prohibitive, whereby 
small firms would not be able to either to continue to operate or 
to enter the market in the first place thereby diminishing 
competition. The Department further implied that insurance to 
cover the professional liability exposure was not available. The 
type of insurance coverage necessary is available, with the cost 
for same being relative to the size of the operation being insured. 
Healthy competition in the market place should be a concern to the 
Department, but when the protection of the health, safety and 
welfare of the people is the primary focus, the rules governing the 
competition should be uniformly applied. 

Rather than emasculate the insurance requirements which 
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protect the public, the Department should enforce the current 
regulations with respect to the maintenance of appropriate 

- insurance. Despite receipt of advice that coverage for 
professional acts, errors or omissions is excluded from General 
Liability insurance contracts and that specific coverage for such 
exposure should be maintained, the Department being fully aware of 
this requirement continued with its posture of non-enforcement of 
a clearly written regulation. MDIA has always believed that the 
Uniform Construction Code required that not only General Liability 

.. insurance be maintained, but also, that Professional Liability 
(Errors and Omissions) insurance be provided by an authorized 
private ~nforcing agency. To further dilute the regulation will 
not be in the best interest of the people of New Jersey. 

Administrative Fee Limitation Unauthorized and Improper 

Another unwarranted intervention by the Department is the 
limitation placed on municipalities relative to the administrative 
charges permitted. Under the current regulations, a municipality 
is only permitted to charge an administrative fee up to fifteen 
percent (15%) of the permit fee to cover the operating cost of the 
construction code enforcement department when a third party onsite 
inspection agency is employed. The imposition of such a limitation 
on a municipality wrongly assumes that the Department has a 
complete understanding of the financial requirements of municipal 
construction code enforcement off ices and implies that all 
municipalities have identical overhead. To reach such a conclusion 
is certainly presumptuous, if not preposterous. Municipal 
governments are in place to serve their constituents and no two 
municipalities have the same geographic nor the same demographic 
characteristics. The financial needs of municipalities 
administering the requirements of the ucc are not universal. Local 
government should be permitted to determine revenue requirements 
and establish appropriate fee structures. ·A municipality should 
not be subjected to an arbitrary limitation on its ability to fund 
its code enforcement functions and obligations. To impose such 
limitations serves only to increase the degree of difficulty in 
achieving the goal of ensuring the health, safety and welfare of 
the people. 

The Department, by perpetuating the municipal administrative 
fee limitation is furthering its desire to eliminate private 
enforcing agencies from the State. Since private enforcing agency 
fees will almost always be less that the State's fee, this 
administrative fee limitation would result in lower revenue to the 
municipality. The real outcome, if not the Department's actual 
goal is to make municipal employment of private enforcing agencies 

"-so financially unattractive that .tpe only remaining options would 
to be employ their own subcode officials or to cede enforcement 
activities to the State. 

31 ;< 
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The imposition of any limitations on municipalities by rule 
should not continue inasmuch as by statute (52:27D-126a) a 
municipal governing body shall establish fees by ordinance. This 
section of the Uniform Construction Code Act indicates that such 
establishment shall be done in accordance with standards 
established by the Commissioner of Community Affairs. The 
standards should be working parameters to assist a municipality in 
the establishment of an appropriate municipal fee structure, not a 
mandated restriction. Such a limitation should be removed from the 
regulations to permit municipal governing bodies to comply with 
statutory requirements and establish fee structures based on 
individual revenue and expense allocations. 

Municipal Enforcing Agencies are Denied Necessary Flexibility 

By making private enforcing agencies ineligible to serve as 
acting subcode officials, a further disservice to the public is 
being perpetrated. The elimination of private enforcing agencies 
from providing interim inspection services limits the ability of a 
municipal code enforcement department to ensure the public health, 
safety and welfare. Code enforcement activities are dynamic to the 
extent that inspections must be performed on working permits. If 
a municipality finds itself in need of a subcode official, for 
whatever the reason, the elimination of private enforcing agencies 
from filling the gap further solidifies the competitive position of 
the Department of Community Affairs. If private enforcing agencies 
are prohibited from acting assignments, municipal options will be 
limited to hiring the Department outright or hiring subcode 
officials not employed by private agencies. 

Unreasonable Time Constraints Proposed 

A further issue in the proposal addresses the execution of 
contracts between municipalities and private enforcing agencies. 
The proposal requires executed contracts provided to the Department 
ten ( 10) days prior to the effective date by the. construction 
official as well as the private enforcing agency. This is 
virtually impossible. Neither a construction official nor a 
private enforcing agency is empowered to authorize the award of a 
contract to any party. The elected officials, however, are 
authorized to ·make such awards after an appropriately conducted 
public meeting. Depending upon the time constraints existing at 
the time of the award of a contract and the needs of the 
municipality, there may not be the 10 day window seemingly 
prescribed by the Department. If a requirement is imposed on,a 
construction official to provide copies of executed contracts to 
the Department, the requirement should be "as soon as practicable 
after the award of a contract is made by the governing body of the 
municipality." 
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Compensation Requirements for Employees of Private Enforcing 
Agencies Not Authorized 

The Department is overstepping the legislative authority 
granted by the legislature by imposing specific requirements 
regarding compensation of employees of private enforcing agencies. 
As a matter of fact, nowhere in the Uniform Construction Code Act 
is there authority granted to the Department to regulate the wages 
of subcode officials. The manner in which employees of private 
enforcing agencies are compensated should not be a concern of the 
Department. Quality of the subcode inspection services is ~hat 
should be paramount in the eyes of the Department. What a private 
enforcing agency expends to make a subcode official available is 
properly within the purview of the private enforcing agency and not 
the Department of Community Affairs. 

The Department of Community Affairs is charged with the 
responsibility of ensuring the health, safety and welfare of the 
people in the State of New Jersey. The Department must not use its 
authority to regulate private industry to the point of extinction. 

The Department has taken the legislation and its intent and 
defined it in its own interest, thereby ensuring its continued 
proliferation. In light of previous>and current judicial issues, 
the Department used the legislation as an impetus, via these 
proposed amendments, to shore up regulatory areas in which it found 
itself wanting. 

This proposal oversteps the bounds of Interstate Commerce. It 
is non-compliant with the Administrative Procedures Act. It is an 
invasion of privacy, not balanced by need to know. It exceeds 
regulatory and statutory authority. It denigrates the Construction 
Official's authority and municipal authority. 

We hereby petition that PRN 1993-296 be withdrawn, rewritten 
and republished. 

Sincerely, 

Al~~~ 
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NEW JERSEY GENERAL.ASSEMBLY 

COJmli•aioner Stephani• Bush 
Department of comnunity Attaira 
William Ash~Y BUildinq 
101 South Broad Streat 
Trenton, New Jersey 08625 

July 1, 1993 

P.1 

With the enactaent ot 1-1227 (A-1838) P.L. 1993 c. 47, th• 
Legislature intended to eliminate th• paat ~equirement that 
private agency f••• be identical ta DCA'a as it relate• to 
inapeoticn and plan review services. In ao doinq, we take into 
oonaideration the tact that tha ao•t• incurred by private 
inapection a;enoiaa and DCA are not the •am•. Thua, this 
healthy competition could potentially lower coats in aany 
inetanoea. 

we are writinq ta intora you that many members ot the 
Legislature have received oorr••pond•nce and/or have been 
oontaoted by the regulated public with concern• over the 
propo•ed raqulationa the Department of Co11J1unity Attaira isaued 
in the New Jeraey Raqi•t•r on June 7, 1993. In our own review 
of the propoaal, we are concerned with the aany new 
requirement• iapo••d on tho•• private agencies performing 
inapeotion and. plan review services such aa the detailed 
intor.ation requ•atad for monthly report•. W• are al•o 
oonoerned ~ith other requirement• that appear to ~ 
regulatorily overburdenaome, co•tly to bu•in••• operations, and 
an attempt to micro-manage private bu•in••••• parforminq these 
services. We believe that some ot the provi•ion• of NJAC 
5:23-4.4 et al, qo far beyond the law's intent and amplify the 
recurring problflD (across dap~rtments) of overexpansive . 
rQgulatory discretion into area• not nec•••arily es•ential in 
order to impleJaent the law's provisions. 
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(2) 

• At this juncture, we are more aonearnad with the ability ot the 
~ Department to account for its own productivity and e!tlcient 

procedures in ite inspections rather than 11yopi"c manaqamant of 
~ private businesses -- whose natural inolination is to keep its 

costs down (without impairinq service delivery) in order to 
survive in today's economy. 

W• ur;e you to take the time to wei9h all the tactor• that are 
belnq provided to you during the pUblio comment period under 
the Administrative Prooaduraa Act. W• also recommend that the 
Department be •low and deliberative in its revi•w ot all 
submitted •tat•nanta •o that the n•c•••ary modification• to the 
rules address the oonoerna expressed by the requlated public. 
we will be monitorinq this issue closely. Wa appraciata your 
attention ~o thi• matter and hope that we oa~ keep the 
communication open oonoerninq the atatu• and.direction ot these 
propoaed rul••· 

JR;SC/knb 
cc: Speaker Chuck Haytaian 

Michael Tioktin, DCA 

3S>< 

sincerely, 

St•ve Corodemus 
Aasemblyman 11th District 
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aball be ao 1epante fee cbafled for a certlftatt of compliance 
l11aed after a aucce11ful periodk ln1pectlon. 

viii.-ix. (No change.) 
4.-9. (No change.) 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
AND ENERGY 

(a) 
POLICY AND PLANNING 
Envlronmental Hazardous Substances Uat and 

Industrial Survey List 
Propoaed Amendments: N.J.A.C. 7:1F·2.2 and 

Appendix A, and 7: 1 G-2.1 and 6.4 
Authorized By: Scott A. Weiner, Commissioner, Department of 

Environmental Protection and Energy. 
Authority: N.J.S.A. 13:10-9, 34:5A-1 ct seq. and 26:2C-1 ct seq. 
DEPE Docket Number: 33-93-04. 
Proposal Number: PRN 1993-311. 

Submit written comments by July 7, 1993 to: 
Janis E. Hoagland, Esq. 
Office of Legal Affairs 
New Jersey Depanment of Environmental Protection 

and Energy 
CN 402 
Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0402 

The agency proposal follOW!: 

Summary 
The Department of Environmental Protection and Energy (Depan

ment) is proposing to delete three copper compounds from the reponing 
requirements of the Worker and Community Right to Know Regulations. 
NJAC. 7:1G. These rules specify reponing requirements for inven
tories, transfers or releases of certain hazardous substances designated 
as Environmental Hazardous Substances (EHSs) in N.J.A.C. 7:JG-2.1. 
These reporting requirements apply to New Jersey businesses having 
Standard Industrial Oassification codes specified in the Worker and 
Community Right to Know Act (hereafter, the Act), NJ.S.A. 34:.SA-l 
ct seq. 

On June 25, 1992, the Department received a petition from the Dry 
Color Manufacturers Association (DCMA), now known as the Color 
PigmcnlJ Manufacturers Association, to amend N.J.A.C. 7:1G-2.l to 
delete three copper phthalocyaninc compounds from the EHS list under 
the category "Copper and compounds." See 24 N.J.R. 2636(a). This 
exemption would eliminate the reporting requirements for these copper 
compounds under the Act. N.J.S.A. 34:5A-4. 

The petition was sent to the Department in response to a June 24, 
1991 decision by the United States Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA) 10 delete 1hese three copper compounds from the "Copper 
compounds" category list of toxic chemicals published pursuant to Title 
Ill of the Federal Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act 
(SARA) of 1986 because they were found to pose no threat to human 
health or the environment. The three compounds are: C.I. Pigment Blue 
1.5, Phthalocyanine Blue, CAS No. 147-14-8; C.I. Pigment Green 7, 
Phthalocyaninc Green, CAS No. 1328-.53-6; and C.I. Pigment Green 36, 
Phthaloeyaninc Green CAS No. 14302-13-7. 

The decision to delete the three copper compounds. published in the 
Federal Register at 56 fed. Reg. 23,6.50. was based upon EPA's invc~tiga
tion that concluded that the copper ion cannot reasonatlly be anticipated 
to become available from any of the pigments al a level which induces 
toxicity. EPA also determined thar rhere is no evidence rhal the three 
copper pigments cause or can reasonably be anticipated to cause en
vironmental effects as specified under Section 313(d) of the Federal 
SARA. The EPA based its decision on the evaluation of all chemical 
and biological transformation proccs.;cs that may generate copper ion 
from the phthalocyanine pigmenrs. These included. but were not limited 
to hydrolysis. photolysis. ahiot1c and biotic degradations. abiotic and 
hiotic anaerobic degradation~. bioavailabiliry of the ion when the com· 
pound~ are ingC!ted or inhaled. and bioaccumulation. 

PROPOSALS 

The Depanment reviewed the infonnation submitted by the DCMA 
and applied the EPA's analysis indicating that the levels at which copper 
ion exhibits toxicity far exceed the expected limited availability of copper 
ion for the phthalocyanine pigments, and thus warranting, as EPA 
concluded, a low level of concern about the pigments' potential toxicity. 
With the removal of these compounds from the SARA Section 313 list. 
the Department has decided that the three phthalocyanine pigments 
should be expressly exempted under the category "Copper and com
pounds" from the EHS list. Amendments to the New Jersey Worker 
and Community Right to Know Act were pas.sed in August 1991 (see 
N.J.S.A. 34:5A-4(a)) to incorporate the Federal SARA 313 list into the 
State's EHS list. At the same time, the Act was amended to require 
that the EHS list include all substances on the list developed and used 
by the Department in connection with the Industrial Survey Project. (See 
N.J.A.C. 7:1F, Appendix A.) This list includes copper and all chemical 
compounds and/or complexes containing copper. Therefore, in order to 
delete the phthalocyaninc pigments from the EHS list, the Department 
is also proposing to delete these pigments from the Industrial Survey 
P~cct~t . 

On September 21, 1992, at 24 N.J.R. 3440(c), the Dcpanment 
published a notice in the New Jersey Register acknowledging its decision 
to grant DCMA's petition for rulcmaking to delete the three copper 
pigments from the EHS list of chemicals subject to Right to Know 
reporting requirements. To reflect the August 1991 amendments to the 
Act concerning the EHS list, the Depanment is proposing to delete the 
three copper compounds from both the list of EHSs at NJAC. 7:1G-2.1 
and from the Industrial Survey list found in Appendix A of NJ.A.C. 
7:1F. The Depanment is proposing to amend NJ.AC. 7:1F-2.2 to clarify 
that if a substance is deleted &om Appendix A, all confidential infonna
tion pertaining to that substance that has been submitted to the Depart
ment shall continue to remain subje.ct to the confidentiality rules at 
NJ.AC. 7:1F-2. The Department is also proposing to add a similar 
requirement to NJ.AC. 7:1G-6.4(a) to continue the confidentiality of 
Right to Know information submitted for 1ubstances which have been 
deleted from the EHS lisl 

Social Imped 
The proposed amendments will have a negligible social impact. The 

elimination of reporting requirements for these pigments will not affect 
the general public since the three copper pigments pose no risk to human 
health or the environment. 

Economic Impact 
The proposed amendments will have a positive economic impact for 

companies using. storing or manufacturing these three compounds. These 
businesses will benefit from the reduction in costs associated with com· 
pleting the reporting forms required by the Department. The public may 
benefit if these businesses pass on any such cost savings in the finaJ cosl 
to consumcn of end-products. 

Eavtroameatal Impact 
The proposed amendments arc expected to have neither beneficial 

nor adverse environmental impacts. Due to the nature of the three 
phthalocyaninc compounds, there is no evidence of adverse effects to 
human health or to the environment. Therefore, the Department con
cludes that exempting the three compounds from the Dcpanmcnt's 
reporting requirements will have no environmental if!lpact. 

Replatory Flntblllty Analy1l1 
The proposed amendments will apply to all businesses covered under 

the Worker and Community Right to Know Act, many of which are small 
businesses as defined under the Regulatory Flexibility Act, NJ.S.A. 
.52: 148-16 et seq. The proposed amendments will decrease reporting and 
rccordkccping requirements for companies using thelic compounds. Be· 
cause these amendments will reduce recordkeeping and reporting re
quirements for all businesses using these compounds. le~ stringent 
requircme.nts for small businesses arc not necessary. 

Full text of the proposal follows (additions indicated in boldface 
thus; deletions indicated in brackets (thusj): 

7: I F-2.2 Accesll to information: non-disclosure: hearing before 
disclosure 

(a) {No change.) 
(b) Jnrormatlon ror which • conndenllallty claim has bffn u

serted !hall remain subjttt to the ronfidentiality requirements or 
this subchapttr ir the substance ror which the claim •as asserted 
Is subsequently deleted from Appendix A or this chapttr. 

(CITE 25 NJ.R. 2166) NEW JERSEY REGIJ't.XDAY, JUNE 7, 1993 



COMMUNITY AFFAIRS 

(a) 
DIVISION OF HOUSING AND DEVELOPMENT 
Uniform Conatructlon Code 
Private Enforcing Agencle• 
Propoaed Amendments: N.J.A.C. 5:23-4.4, 4.5, 4.SA, 

4.12, 4.14, 4.18 and 4.20 
Authorized By: Stephanie R. Bush, Commissioner, Department 

- of Community Affairs. 
.Authority: NJ.SA. 52:270-124. 
~·Proposal Number: PRN 1993-296. 

A pabllc beartn1 on this proposal will be held on Tuesday, June 22. 
1993, at 10:00 A.M., at: 

· William Ashby Department of Community Alfain Building 
101 South Broad Street 
Trenton, New Jersey 

Submit written comments by JuJy 7, 1993 to: 
Michael L T1ektin, Esq. 
Chief. Legislative Analysis 
Department of Community Affain 
Of 802 
Trenton. New Jersey ~25 
Fu No. (609) 633-6729 

The 1pncy propoa1 follows: 

s .... 17 
On February IS. .1993, Governor Florio aiped P.L 1993, c.47, which 

repealed tbe atatutory requirement that fees charaed by private on-site 
-.. haspectjoa qcnciel be identical to thOle charged by the Department of 

Community AtfaJn when it 1enes 11 a local enforcln1 apncy. Instead, 
, the Department ii authorized to adopt rules aettina the amounts of fees 
to be dwpd by tbe private aae1ICies. subject only to the condition that 
aada ._ pot be mog tbap thole dwaed bJ the Depanment 

n.e. propoeed amendments. which are intended, inler .U., to imple
mad P.L 1993, c.47, reintroduce the practice of bavin1 municipalities 
1eled printe on-Ute inspection qendel by competitive bidding. subject 
om, to determination by the peming body. after consultation with the 
oonslnlc:don ofticial, that the aaenc:y would be able to effectively enforce 
tbe aubcode(•) in the municipality. To make it possible for a municipality 
to determine which of several bidders is the low bidder, the proposed 
amendments require that the bid be e:tpreued in terms of a percentage 
of the fees charaed by the Department u enforcing qenc:y. Since the 
statute requires that the private on-site agencies not charge higher fees 
than the Department, the percentage bid may not exceed 100 percent. 

It should be noted that these propoeed amendments, if adopted, will 
be prospective only, and that existing contracts will continue in effect, 
with fees the same aa those charged by the Department, until the 
expiration date of the contract. 

The Department recopiza that competitive pressures could con
ceivably result in ncessive coet-a.ittin1 by private agenciet, with conse
quent harm to the health, safely ud welfare of the public. Accordingly, 
new work.load, staffina and opentional reporting requirementJ for 
private aaencies are establilhed at NJ.A.C. S:23-<t.12(f) and u•. so that 
the Department can ensure that the health, safety and welfare of the 
public are adequately protected. 

In addition, the proposed amendmentJ: 
1. Make it clear that contracts between municipalities and private 

enforcina agencies may be for one, two or three years, at the option 
of the municipality. 

2. Make it clear that municipalities must pay for inspections performed 
by private enforcing agencies, even if no inspection fee is received by 
the municipality. 

3. Establish a uniform procedure for municipalities to make payments 
to private enforcing agencies: 

4. Make it clear that the "designated represcntative!i" of a private 
enforcin1 agency in a municipality must be the penons actually serving 
u subcode officials there; 

S. Require monthly reports on an agency's average response time afrer 
inspection requests are made, workload per inspector, payments received 
from each municipality and rhe toral amounl billed to each municipaliry. 
a.s well as annual reports perraining to rhe finance!i and organizarion 
of lhe agency; 

PROPOSALS 

6. ~ake it cle~ that the liability Insurance that private enforcing 
agenc1~ ~re require~ to cany must be 1eneraJ liability insurance; 

1. Eliminate seemingly redundant language concerning administrative 
charge• of municipalities; 

8. Make employees of private enforcing agencies ineligible to serve 
as acting subcode officials; 

9. Make explicit the requirement, which the Department believes to 
be implicit in the current rules, that no separate charge is to be made 
for a certificate of compliance after a successful periodic inspection. The 
main relevance of this is to elevator inspections; 

10. Require construction offJCials to fa.le copies of executed contracu 
between private enforcing agencies and their municipalities with the 
Department at least 10 days prior to the effective date of the contrart; 

11. Establish procedures and requirements for soliciting bids from, and 
awarding contracts to, private enforcing agencies; 

12. Permit compensation of employees of private enforcing aaencies, 
whether full-time or part-time, only on a salaried or hourly basis; 

13. Prohibit all payments to private aaencies other than the fees set 
forth in NJAC. S:lJ-<4.20, multiplied by the percentage established by 
contract; 

14. Allow municipalities that use private agencies to include in their 
fees, for the purpose of COYerinl their adminiltntive expenaea, an 
amount not exceeding IS pen:ent of the amounts paid to the private 
agencies; and 

15. Establish a procedure for allocation of revenue from minimum 
fees and fees for certific:ata of occu.pucy and approval among officials 
(includina private agendes) enf°'*S. the building. fire protection, 
plumbing and electrical subcoda. . . . . : . 

SOcw .... d 
By allowing private on-site aaeacia lo c.bup lower feet than thOle 

cbuaed by the Department, the propoeed amendments will allow those 
aaeoda to compete more effectively for the bmiaesa of municipllities 
that mipt othenrile hire aubcode olfidala or have tbe Department aerw 
as the enforciq llCIKY· · · · ~· 

The other amendments are intended to further uniformil)' in 
adherence to the Nia,. fac:ilitate Department monitoring of private 
enforcina aaencies_ and otherwise ensure that procedures are followed 
that· are in the public interest 

The elilnination of the practice of compensating employees'of private 
enforcing agencies on a piece-work basis will be particularly benerJCial, 
since it will eliminate an obvious incentive to the inspector to do as many 
inspections as possible in the least amount of time. If inspections are 
rushed, they cannot be u thorough as is necessary in the interest of 
public safety. 

Economic Impact 
Property owners who undertake construction in municipalities that 

contract with private on-site agencies may pay reduced fees for construc
tion code services, if the private agencies see fit to compete for the riaht 
to provide subcode services in those municipalities. 

Private enforcing agencies wm no longer be able to profit through 
the appointment, outside of the prescribed contract procedure, of their 
employees u actina subcode offJCials. 

To the extent that private enforcing agencies may have been acting 
in the mistaken belief that it was necessary for them to obtain more 
expensive forms of insunnce, they may now be able to reduce their 
insurance costs, in accordance with NJ.A.C. S:~.14(e)5. 

Since private enforcing aaencies are required to use the Department's 
fee schedule, whether at 100 percent or at some lesser percentage. any 
separate charaing for certificates of compliance after successful periodic 
inspections that they may be doing, without authorization under existing 
rules, will have to be discontinued. . 

Private enforcing agencies are likely to have to incur addirionaJ costs 
in order to comply with Department reporting requiremenls. The extent 
or such additional costs will depend on whether or not the agency already 
prepares reports for irs own purposes that contain 1he required in
formation. 

Rqulatory Flulblllty An'alysls 
Private on-sire agencies, which may or may not be "small businesses" 

as defined in the New Jersey Regulatory Flexibility Act. N.J.S.A. 
52: 148-16 et seq .. will be able to compete more effeclively for business 
than they would be if their fees were the same as tho~ of the Depart
ment. either hy statute or hy rule. The fees will be allowed to be set 
by each municipaliry, so long as rhe recs are les.'i rhan tho'ie charged 
by the Department. Both small businesses and ochers will t'ienefit from 
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. ea, ·a.., wtUch will allow private on-site inspection a1encies to be 
ielected bf competitive bidding. The new ftling. bidding. reporting. 
reeordbePinl and other obligations that are imposed on private on-site 
aaendel are necessary in order to protect the public interest in the 
~tepity of the code enforcement system, a matter directly related to 
public health. safety and welfare. The Department has detcnnined that 
it ii appropriate that these requirements be imposed unifonnly, regard
lell of size or form of organization of the individual private enforcing 
qeoc:ies. and that no differentiation based upon business size be 
provided in these roles. 

hit tat of the proposal follows (additions indicated in boldface 
a..; deletions indicated in brackets (thus)): 

S:23-4.4 Municipal enforcing agencies-organization 
(a) 1be municipality shall organize its enforcing agency in ac

cordaDce with the ordinance adopted pursuant to NJ.A.C. 5:23-4.3 
and ID meet the following additional requirements: 

.. 1.-5. (No change.) 
; 6. Acting appointments: A municipality shall appoint an acting 

construction official or subcode official any time the absence of such 
officUJ (will] would impede orderfy administration of the Uniform 
Comtruction Code and other duties mandated by the municipality(; 
bat in no event may the time period exceed the statutory period 
ot.20 business days]. Acting appointments shall be accomplished by 
aay, ~•nism acceptable to the municipality; providing. however, 
~--~ ~ ~~n ~ shall be kept. N~tice to the Department shall 
be ~ within seven days any bJDe an appointment is made 
~ more than 30 days. Acting appointments may not be made for 
lonpr dwl 60 days, nor may they be extended or renewed beyond 

. 60 da7s unless specific authority to do so is granted in writing by 
the-:·(clepartment) Department. 

L Only an ind~al licensed u a construction official may be 
.ppofnted as an acting construction official and only an individual 
licemed is a auba>de official in a particular subcode may be ap
pointed u an acting subcode official for that suba>de. The technical 
~ level of an acting construction or subcode official shall be 
supenor or parallel to the enforcing agency classification of the 
municipality or such municipal classification shall be downgraded to 
~ ~hnical l!c:ense level of the acting official for the period of 
time m the pos1t1on. Employees of private on-site inspection agencies 
shall not serve as acting construction officials or actln1 subcocle 
ollldab. 

ii.-iv. (No change.) 
7.-8. (No change.) 
(b)-(d) (No change.) 

5:23-4.S Municipal enforcing agencies; administration and 
enforcement 

(a)-(g) (No change.) 
(h) Duties of construction officials: 
~· The construction official shall enforce the regulations and: 
1.-xix. (No change.) 
xx. Comply with any local procedures which may be established 

!'>' the governing body to provide the municipal search officer with 
mfonnation concerning construction permits and certificates of oc· 
cupancy[.]; and 

Di. File with the Department any executed contnct with a private 
on-site Inspection a1ency at least 10 days prior to tht effective date 
of the contnct. 

2. (No change.) 
(i)-(j) (No change.) 

5:23-4.5A Selection of private on·site inspection and plan review 
agencies 

(a) (No change.) 
(b) Prior to t~e selection of an [onsitel on-site inspection agency, 

the local enforcing agency shall notify each private (onsite) on-site 
agency authorized by the Department to serve as a subcode official 
for the subcode(s) to be contracted. The notification, which shall 
~pec:i~ the !'nn or tht propostd contract, shall be delivered by 
cert1f1ed mail. return receipt reque~ted. No other notice ~hall be 

. t. The noti~ shall specify that a written, sealed (proposal I bid 
as requested, (1n accordance with) toaether wUb a quallftcatlo• 
statement con~lnl~I the Information set forth In N.J.A.C. S:23-
4.5A(d), shall 1dent1fy the subcode(s) for which a [proposal) bid is 
requested, shall state the date and time by which [proposals) bldt 
an~ accompanytn1 quallftcatlon statements must be submitted. 
which shall not be less than 30 days following the date of mailing 
of the request for [proposals) bids, and shall state the name and 
address of the penon to whom [proposals) bids and att0mpanyln1 
quallfkatlon 1tatemenu shall be mailed or delivered. 

2. All bids shall set forth the ftt1 which the pmate on-site qenq 
proposes lo cbarae for work done by It In the munldpallty. Sucb 
ftt1 shall be npre11ed u a uniform percentage, by subcode, wblcb 
shall not nceed 100 percen~ of the ftt1 charaed, as of the date 
on wbkb tbe bid• are opened, by the Department when It senet 
as an enfordn1 apncy, which fees are set forth at NJ.A.C. 5:13~.20. 

3. The contnd 1ball be awarded to the bidder that offen to 
charae tbe lowest percentap of the Department's fees and ls de
termined by the IOTernln1 body, after consultation with tbe con
stnactlon oflldal, to be able to effectlnly enforce the subcode(s) for 
wblcb the bid wu submitted. 

4. The amounu to be charaed by a prlnte on-site agency awarded 
a contnd panuant to this sectJon shall be the arnoanu Mt forth 
In NJ.A.C. 5:23-t.20 and/or 5:.23-12.6(a) and (b) as of the date or 
the open.Ina of the blcls, multJplled by the percentqe set forth la 
the bid. Such amoanll shall be ln effect for the entire coab"8ct 
period and shall not be affected by any subsequent lncraa la the 
fee9 Mt forth la N.J.A C. 5:234.20 or 5:13.12.6(•) and (b). 

(c) Written, sealed (proposaJs) bids, toeetJaer with 1e,.,.te1y 
sealed quall.llcadon 1tatemenll contalnln1 the information reqalnd 
by (d) below, shall be submitted to the municipal officer responsible 
for receiving bids at or before the date and time established in the 
original notice of request for proposals. The said municipal officer 
shall forward all such (proposals) qualllkatlon 1tatement1 received 
to the construction official, wbo shall naluate acb qualJftadoll 
statement and 8dftle the pernlna body, ha wr111n., u to wlaetlter, 
In the eo111tl1ldlon oftldal's judplent. each prfnlte apaC)' A1bmlt· 
tln1 • propoaal would be able to etrectlTely enforce the 1ubcode(1) 
for which the proposal Is beln1 submitted In the munldpaJlty. 

( d_) All [pr~als] 'uallftcat~n statements submitted by private 
[ons1te] on-site inspection agenCles to serve as subcode officials shall 
be. in writin.g and shall ':°~tain all of the information required by 
this subsection. Any om1ss1on of required information shall allow 
the local governing body the option to automatically disqualify the 
proposal. No additional information shall be required. The required 
information is as follows: 

1.-5. (No change.) 
6. The manner in which the agency compensates each class of 

employees [(for example,), which shall be one of the followin1 only: 
full-time salaried, part-time salaried, full-time hourly(,) or part-time 
hourly(, piece work}). Where employees of a given class are com
pensated in more than one way, a percentage breakdown shall be 
provided: 

7.-13. (No change.) 
(e) When considering (proposals] quallftcatlon statemenb sub

mitted by authorized [onsite) on-site inspection agencies seekJn1 to 
act as a subcode official, (local enforcing agencies] construction 
oftklals and governing bodies shall base their [selection) determina-
tion as to whether an authorized on-site inspection a1ency would 
be able to tfftttlvely enrorce the subcode on the following criteria: 

I 6 (No change.) 
( 0 IJt IS recognized that the Criteria set forth in (C) above arc 

"iut'l1ect1ve and cannot be readily quantified. Inspection services being 
e'\Cnt1ally technical and professional in nature, an agency cannot 
~ cho~en on a quantitative basis. These criteria arc intended to 
set forth a framework within which the construction official can 
exercise his professional judgment and determine which among 
several agencies is most likely to provide the highest quality. and 
mo~t responsive. code enforcement services. I After tht gonrnin1 
body, h1vin1 consult~ with tht construction omcial, dtttnnlnts 3 

8 
~ wh•thtr ucb prhat• •&••CJ' that has submittod a bid and quallll<a· 
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doa 1t.tement would be able lo dfrctfnly enforce the subcode(s) llL The gme Information u required la (f)ll and 11 above r. 
for which code enforcement servke1 are required In the munldpall· any subsidiary or pmrent company or any company In which 1 

ty, It 1ball, at a ncularly scheduled or special mtttln1, Jnseal and omcer, partner or penoa witb at least a 10 percent ownersh 
receive the bids of tbe privmtr qrncles that have been found to be Interest In the a1ency Is an omcer, partner or holder of at lea 
able to effectlvrly enforce such subrodes and shall accrpl lhr bid a 10 percent ownership Interest; 
amon1 such bids that HU forth the lowest percen1a1e of the fees Iv. Det.lled lnfonnatlon on any distribution of profttl, stoc 
cbarsed by the DepartmenL dividend or other removal of asseu. from the asency or trom u 

(g) (The construction official shall, within 15 days of receipt of subsidiary or parent company or any company in which an omct 
the proposals, recommend to the governing body ha ... ing jurisdiction partner or person with at least a 10 percent ownership Interest I 
the acceptance of one of the proposals. The recommendation shall the agency Is an omcer, partner or holder of at least a 10 percer 
be in writing.) The 1ovemin1 body shall accept the successful low ownership Interest; 
bid. or reject all bids, within JO days of the bid openin1 and shall •· Detailed lafonnatlon on any outstandlna secured or uasecutt 
enter Into a contnd wttb any successful bidder not less than JO debt of the a1ency or of any subsidiary or parent company or an 
days prior to tbe bqlnnln1 of the contnct period. company In which an omcer, partner or person wttb at least a I 

(h) (If the governing body accepts the recommendation of the percent ownenhlp Interest In the aaency Is an omcer, partner o 
construction official, it shall enter into a contract with the agency bolder of at lust a 10 percent ownenhlp Interest; and 
that submitted the recommended proposal in the manner prescribed ~- Detailed lnfonnatlon on any outsta.ndln1 loans or Investment 
by law.] The municipality shall have the option of enterina into a made by the qenq or by any subsidiary or parent company orb: 
contnct for one year, rwo yun or three years. any company In whkh an omc:er, partner or penon with at leas 

(i) (If the governing body does not accept the recommendation a 10 ·percent ownenhlp Interest In the aaenq Is an omc:er, part.nt 
of the construction official and decides instead to award the contract or bolder of at lust a 10 percent ownenhlp Interest. 
to another agency, then the governing body shall advise each agency 3. The application shall be accc:ompanied by the fee establishel 
that submitted a proposal of this decision and of the reasons for by (this chapter) N.J.A.C. 5:23-4.21. 
rejecting the construction official's recommendation. Each agency 4. The Department may conduct such additional investigations o 
shall be given an opportunity to comment before the governing body the applicant as it may deem necessary. 
at a public hearing. At least seven days' prior notice of this public Reoodify existing 1. and 2. as 5. and 6. (No change in text.) 

hearin1 shall be given to each agency by certified mail. After the 5:23-4.14 Private enforcing agencies-administration and 
condusion of the hearing. the governing body, if it does not choose enforcement 
to reconsider the matter, shall enter into a contract with the agency (a) (No chanae.) 
which it has selected in the manner prescnbed by law.) The coatnct (b) The on-site inspection agency shall provide the Department 
shall set forth tbe spedllc amount.I to be P91d by the munldpallty with the following: 
lo the pmate enlorcln1 qency for alCb code enforcement serrice. t. A copy of each executed contract and all amendments (pursuant 
Sada amounts shall, In all caaa, be the amounts Ht fortb in 
NJ.A.C. 5:23-4.20, as or tbe date of the opealn1 of the bids. times to subparagraph ili of this paragraph.) tllento, to be iabmJtted at 

lust 10 days prior to their effecttn date; 
the perceatase bid by tbe pmate qenq. Sacb amountl shall con- 2 A list of the municipalities served, and a current list of names, 
daae In effect, witboat any chance, for tbe dandoa of tbe contncL addresses and telephone numbers of the [agencies.) apnq's 

(J) The contnct shall provide tbat amoanu due to the pmate designated representatives adually sentnc a1 1ubcocle. oflldals in 
qeacy shall be paid as follows, If applicable, and shall be billed each municipality, who may be contacted in connection with routine 
within JO days of comlna due and paid within JO days of billing: matten during normal working houn(;J and, in the event of 

I. llrenty percent due upon Issuance of the construction permit; emergency, during other than normal working houn(.); 
2. Sixty percent due within 30 days thereafter; 3. A list of names, certification numbers. addresses and telephone 
3. llrenty percent due upon completion, as endenced by Issuance numbers of all technical penonnel employed(.); and 

of Inspection sticker approval for the subcode; 4. Monthly reports, due on the 15th or every month covertn1 tbe 
4. Certlncate or ottUpancy or certlncate or approval cbal"Jts due period or the previous month, settln1 fortb the followtna: 

on Issuance or the certincate; and i. Tbe·a1eacy's median response time, defined as the elapsed time 
S. Elevator Inspection charges due on Issuance of certlncale of between the receipt of an Inspection request by the construction 

compliance or notice of unsafe structure. omctal or subcode omdal, wblchner occun ftrst, and the time at 
5:23-4.12 Private on-site in!'ipection and plan review agencies: which the ln1pectlon Is perfonnecf. expressed to the nearest whole 

establishment hour. For purposes of this report, the 24 hour periods of Saturday, 
(a)-(e) (No change.) Sunday or any oflklal holiday 1hall not be counted u elapsed time, 
(f) Applications for reauthorization shall be filed with the Depart- but all other time shall be counted; 

ment at least 60 days prior to the scheduled expiration (for) of the II. The number of Inspections performed In each munldpallty, 
current authorization from the Department. and tbe number of Inspections performed la each maaldpallty more 

I. The on-site inspection agency shall make current the inforrna- than 72 houn after the receipt of an Inspection request by the 
tion previously submitted to the Department. construction omclal or the subcode omclal, wblchner occurs firs~ 

2. The on-site inspection agency shall provide such additional 111. The tot.I number of Inspections, broken down by subcode 
information as the Department may request, and In such detail as dlsclpllne, perfonned by the private a1ency durln1 the reportln1 
tbe Department may require In order to have a complete under- period and the total number of subcode omdals and lnspHton 

. standln1 of the opentlons of the a1ency and any related companies, available durln1 the reportln1 period, expressed as full-lime 
lncludln1, wtthoul limitation, an audlled ftnancial statement for the equivalent (YfE). For purposes of this report, one FTE shall ~ 
preceding ftscal yur or 1he agency, prtpartd and allesled to by a the total number or subcode omclal and Inspector houn worked 
Nnr Jeney-licensed certined public accountant. including the durina the rtportln1 period divided by el1ht, times the num~r or 
followin1: working days In the reportln1 period. All days other than Saturdays, 

I. A detailed income and uf>en~e statement. fncludina. without Sundays and omclal holidays shall be considered workJng day~: 
llmlt.tlon, a pront and Ion stalrment, for all operations in N" iv. The total payments received from each municlpallty durina 
Jen~y. wtth those operations suhjecl lo lhe Uniform Construction the rtportlna period; and 
Code and those o~ntlons nol so subject broken out separately: v. The total amount billed to each municipality durin1 the report-

11. A detailed income and npense statemtnt. Including, wt1hout ing ~riod. 
llmltallon,- a pront and loss statement, for the rntlrt o~ratlon~ of (cHd) (No change.) 
the company, both in and out of New Jeney: (e) Each on-site inspection agency shall have the following 
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: ;.i~ -tA: (No change.) which are charged by the Department u set forth at NJ.A.C. 
· ,. 5. To carry pnenl liability insurance, at least in the amount of 5:23-4.20. 
St 000,000 for each penon and each occurrence, to satisfy claims iii. Electrical subcode: Where a private onsite agency performs 
or'judgments for property damage and/or personal injury arising out electrical subcode services, the fees charged to the municipaJity by 
of the failwe of its employees to properly discharge their duties and the private agency shall be the fees for electrical fixtures and devices 
responsibilities. which are charged by the Department set forth at N.J.A.C. 5:23-4.20. 

6.-15. (No change.) iv. Fire subcode: Where a private onsite agency performs fire 
(f) (No change.) subcode services, the fees charged to the municipality by the private 
(J) ne amount charsed to a municipality by a private apac:y agency shall be the sprinltler, standpipe, fire detector (smoke and 

for work sabject to a minimum ftt under NJ.A.C. 5:23-4.lO(c)l or heat), premanufactured fire suppression system, gas or oil fired 
rw anHlcat. of occupancy, certlftcates or appronl and certlftcates appliances not connected to the plumbing system, kitchen exhaust 
of ceatmaed occupancy shall be the pen:eataat set forth In • system, incinerator and crematorium fees which are charged by the 
CIMltnd eatered Into In accordance with NJ.A.C. 5:23-4.SA, times Department as set forth at NJ.AC. S:23-4.20. 
die amoaat of the mlalmum fee or fee for • certiftcate of occupancy v. Elevator safety subcode: Fees charged to the municipality when 
• certlllcate of appronl, times the amount dttermlned ln ac- a private on-site agency performs inspections and witnesses tests 
eontaace wttll tilt• 1absectlon. shall be identical to the fees established by the Department at 

L Ia tbe cue of work requiring Inspections by four 1ubcode NJ.AC. S:23-12.6(a) and (b). · 
ollldall or tbetr dalpea, lbe allocation of the fee rnenue 1ball vi. Administrative surcharge: Municipalities using private on.site 
be u lollowr. inspection and plan review agencies may add to the above fees an 
· t- llldldlal nbcode: 40 perant; administrative surcharge of up to lS percent of the relevant sub-

H. Pin protection nbcodr. 20 percent; code(s) permit fee(s). The surcharge shall apply only to subcode 
Ut Plambfna 1abcocle: 21 pen:ent; and areas for which the municipality hu a contract with an onsite agency. 
If. l.lectrtcal sabcode: 20 pen:eat. In lieu of an administrative surcharge to fees charged by an on.site 

"'2. la tlte cue of work nqulrta1 Inspections by fewer than four agency, a municipality may adjust its fee schedule up to 15 percent 
.._. ollldall or tbeir detlpees, the allocation shall be amon1 higher for this purpose. • 
·w IMlWeea tH sabcodn lnTohed ln the proportion• Id fortll In 2. Demolition and removal· fees shall be charged as follows: 
· (i)1' .... ('111u, for a.ample, In work lnToMq only the balldJn1 i. Where a private onsite agency performs one or more subcode 
· ... ;,.e..hlnc .. ~ two-thirds of the fee (<t0,'60) woalcl be services for demolitions or removals, the amount charged to the 
~a I 1tai • ... ballcllq sabcocle and one-thlnl of tbe fee (20/60) municipality by the private apncy shall be a portion of the demoli-
ia .. piamMna nbcode.) tion or removal fees which are set forth at NJ.AC. 5:23 ..... 20 as 
·. ()I). lften plan rntew II performed more than one moatb befon Departmental fees and which shall be u follows: 
... camtndloll permit II Issued. or where a project doa not ., ( 1) Building subcode: 40 percent 
ftlnrud after a prhate on-site qency bu perfonaed plaD rntew, (2) Fire subcode: 20 percent 
am Ch •uldp.tlty slaall pay to the pmate qency 20 percent (3) Plumbing suba>de: 20 percent 
of die UIOUt tbat. woaJcl otherwise be dae, wblda amoaat tllall ( 4) Electrical subcode: 20 percent 
.. ..._..eel bJ maltiplylna tbe relnaat fee Id fortll la N.J.A.C. 3. Sign fees shall be charged u follows: 
5;23--UI bJ the perceatap set forth In the coatnct between the i. Where a private onsite agenc., performs one or more subcode 

_ maaldpallty and tbe pmate qeacy entered Into ID accordance with services for signs or billboards, the amount charged ·to the 
N.J.A.C. 5:23-4..SA. municipality by the private agency shall be as follows: 

(I) Prhate on-site a1endes shall blll for their services at least (1) Building subcode: The sign fees set forth at NJ.AC. 5:23-4.20 
once monthly. Each bUI shall specify the blllln1 period and the as Departmental fees. · • 
amoant carrendy due, amounts already paid, and any remalnlna (2) Electrial subcode: The fees for electrical fixtures and devices 
balances, lcleatlfted by permit number and totalled for the blllln1 set forth at NJ.A.C. 5:23-4.20 as Departmental fees. 
pertocl. 4. Fees for certificates of occupancy and certificates of continued 

(J) De pmate qency shall be paid for work performed nen If occupancy charged to the municipality by the private agency shall 
tbe mll.aldpallty recetns no Inspection fee for such work. be the following portions of the fees for a certificate of occupancy 

(k) Prhate enfordaa acendes shall charst no fees other than the and certificate of continued occupancy set forth at NJ.AC. 5:23-4.20 
fees let forth la NJ.A.C. 5:23-4.20 multlplled by the pen:entap set as Departmental fees: 
forth In tbe coatnct between the prtvatt aaency and tbe muaklpall- i. Building subcode: 40 percent; 
t)'. Prhate enforctn1 qendes shall furnish no serYlce1 other tbaa ii. Fire subcode: 20 percent; 
subcocle enfon:emeat senlces to muaklpalllles and shall not recetve iii. Plumbing subcode: 20 percent; and 
any payments from munlctpalltles for any other pods or serTkes iv. Electrical subcode: 20 percent. 
wbaboner. S. Where plan review is performed more than one month before 

the construction permit is issued, or where a project does not go 
5:23-4.18 Standards for municipal fees forward after a private onsite inspection and plan review agency has 

(a)-(j) (No change.) 
(k) Fees to be charged [to] by municipalities (by) where private performed plan review, then the municipality shall pay to the private 

agency 20 percent of the amount that would otherwise be due 
(onsite] on-site inspection and plan review agencies [are as follows: pursuant to this section.) carry out subcocle omclal ~sponslbllltles 

I. Where the local enforcing agency uses the services of a private shall nol exceed the amounts to be paid to those prlvatt apacles 
onsite inspection and plan review agency to enforce one or more for those semces, punuant to the coatnct between the private -4" 

subcodes, then the fees charged to the municipality by the private aatacy and the munlclpallty, by more than 15 percent. 
onsite agency shall be identical to those charged by the Department 
pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:23-4.W and as provided in this paragraph. 5:23-4.20 Departmental fees 

i. Building subcode: Where a private onsite agency performs (a)-(b) (No change.) 
building subcode services, the fees charged to the municipality by (c) Departmental (enforcing agency) fees shall be as follows: 
the private agency shall be either the volume-based or cost-based l.·2. (No change.) 
fee, whichever type is appropriate, which are charged by the Depart· 3. (Certificates! Fees for certlncates and other permits[: The fees) 
ment as set forth at N.J.A.C. 5:23-4.20. are as follows: 

ii. Plumbing subcode: Where a private onsite agency performs i.-vi. (Nu change.) 
plumbing subcode services, the fees charged to the municipality by vii. The fee for a certificate of approval or certificate of com-
the private agency shall be the fees for plumbing fixtures and stacks pliance certifying that the work done under a construction permit IJ(). ~ has been satisfactorily completed shall be $28.00, ucept that there 
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECOON 

1ball be no 1ep•rate fee cbaratd for a c:ertlftcate of compliance 
l11atd after • 1ucc:e11ful pertodk ln1pectloa. 

viii.-ix. (No change.) 
4.-9. (No change.) 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
AND ENERGY 

(a) 
POLICY AND PLANNING 
Envlronmental Hazardous Substances Uat and 

lndustrtal Survey Uat 
Proposed Amendments: N.J.A.C. 7:1F·2.2 and 

Appendix A, and 7:1G-2.1and6.4 
Authorized By: Scott A. Weiner, Commissioner, Department of 

Environmental Protection and Energy. 
Authority: N.J.S.A. 13:10-9, 34:5A-l ct seq. and 26:2C-1 et seq. 
DEPE Docket Number: 33-93-04. 
Proposal Number: PRN 1993-311. 

Submit written comments by July 7, 1993 to: 
Janis E. Hoagland. Esq. 
OffJCe of Legal Affain 
New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection 

and Energy 
CN 402 
Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0402 

The agency proJ>OSl:I follows: 

Summary 
The Department of Environmental Protection and Energy (Depart

ment) is proposing to delete three copper compounds from the reponing 
requirements of the Worker and Community Right to Know Regulations. 
NJ.AC. 7:10. These rules specify reponing requirements for inven
tories, transfers or releases of cenain hazardous substances designated 
u Environmental Hazardous Substances (EHSs) in N.J.A.C. 7:10-2.1. 
These reponing requirements apply to New Jersey businesses having 
Standard Industrial Oas.sification codes specified in the Worker and 
Community Right to Know Act (hereafter, the Act), NJ.S.A. 34:.5A-I 
et seq. 

On June 2S, 1992, the Depanment received a petition from the Dry 
Color Manufacturers Association (DCMA), now known as the Color 
Pigments Manufacturers AMociation, to amend N.J.A.C. 7:10-2.1 to 
delete three copper phthalocyanine compounds from the EHS list under 
the category "Copper and compounds." Sec 24 N.J.R. 2636(1). Thi.~ 
exemption would eliminate the reponing requirements for these copper 
compounds under the Act. N.J.S.A. 34:.5A-4. 

The petition was sent to the Department in response to a June 24, 
1991 decision by the United States Environmental Protection A&ency 
(EPA) to delete these three copper compounds from the "Copper 
compounds" category list of toxic chemicals published pursuant to Title 
Ill of the Federal Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act 
(SARA) of 1986 because they were found to pose no threar to human 
health or the environment. The three compounds are: C.I. Pigment Blue 
1.5, Phthalocyanine Blue, CAS No. 147-14-8; C.I. Pigment Green 7, 
Phthalocyanine Green, CAS No. 1328-53-6; and C.I. Pigmenr Green 36. 
Phthalocyanine Green CAS No. 14302-13· 7. 

The decision to delete the three copper compounds. puhh\hed 1n rhe 
Federal Register at .56 Fed. Reg. 23,650, was based upon EPA'' 1n1•e\t1ga-
1ion that concluded that rhe copper ion cannot reasonably ~ 1n11c1pa1ed 
to become available from any of the pigments at a level whteh induces 
toxicity. EPA also determined 1hat lhere is no evidence 1har lhe three 
copper pigment" cau~ or can reasonably be an1icipaled to cause en· 
vironmental effects as specified under Section 313(d) or lhe Federal 
SARA. The EPA based its decision on the evalualion or aJI chemical 
and biological transformation processes that may generate copper ion 
from rhe phthalocyanine pigments. These included. but were not limired 
to hydrolysis. photol~i~. al'liolic and biolic degradations, al'lmllc and 
biotic anaerobic degrada1ions. bioavailability of the ion when lhe com
pounds are in[Ee~ted or inhaled. and bioaccumulalion. 4/J ~ 
(CITE 25 NJ.R. 2166) NEW JERSEY REll~~l 

PROPOSAl 

The ~panment reviewed the information submitted by the DC~ 
~nd ap~h~d th~ ~PA's analysis indicating that the levels at which copr 
~on exh1b1ts to.uaty far exceed the expected limited availability of copr 
ion for the phthalocyanine pigments, and thus warranting. as Ef 
co~cluded, a low level or concern abou1 the pigments' po1en1iaJ toxic1 
W11h lhe removal or these compounds from the SARA Section 313 Ii 
the Department has decided that the three phthalocyaninc pigmer 
should be expressly exempted under the category "Copper and cor 
pounds" from the EHS list. Amendments to the New Jersey Work 
and Community Right to Know Act were passed in August 19Ql (s' 
N.J.S.A. 34:5A-4(a)) to incorporate the Federal SARA 313 list into tl 
State's EHS list. At the same time, the Act was amended to requ1 
that the EHS list include all substances on the li~t developed and use 
by the Department in connection with the Industrial Survey Project. (S< 
N.J.A.C. 7:1F, Appendix A.) This list includes copper and all chemic 
compounds and/or complexes containing copper. Therefore. in order 
delete the phthalocyanine pigments from the EHS list. the Departme 
is also proposing to delete these pigments from the Industrial Surv1 
Project list. 

On September 21, 1992, at 24 N.J.R. 3440(c), the Departme: 
published a notice in the New Jersey Register acknowledging its decisic 
to grant DCMA's petition for ruJemaking to delete the three copp< 
pigments from the EHS list of chemicals subject to Right to Kno 
reponing requirements. To reflect the August 1991 amendments to r~ 
Act concerning the EHS list. the Department is proposing to delete 1~ 
three copper compounds from both the list of EHSs at NJ.A.C. 7:10-2 
and from the Industrial Survey list found in Appendix A of NJ.A.< 
7:1F. The Depamnent is proposing to amend NJ.A.C. 7:1F-2.2 to clari~ 
that if a substance is deleted from Appendix A. all confidential inform; 
tion penainin1 to that substance that has been submitted to the Depar 
ment shall a>ntinue to remain subject to the confidentiality rules ' 
NJ.AC. 7:1F-2. The Department ii also proposing to add a simil< 
requirement to NJ.A.C. 7:1G-6.4(a) to continue the confidentiality c 
Right to Know information submitted for substances which have bee 
deleted from the EHS list 

Social Impact 
The proposed amendments will have a negligible social impact. Th 

elimination of reponing requirements for these pigments will not affec 
the general public since the three copper pigments pose no risk to huma 
health or the environment. 

Economic rm,.ct 
The proposed amendments will have a positive economic impact fr 

companies using. storing or manufacturing these three compounds. Thes 
businesses will benefit from the reduction in costs associated with con 
pleting the reporting forms required by the Department. The public m2 
benefit if these businesses pass on any such cost savings in the final co· 
to consumers of end-products. 

EaYlroamntal Impact 
The proposed amendments arc expected to have neither benefici< 

nor adverse environmental impacts. Due to the nature of the thre 
phthalocyanine compounds, there is no evidence of adverse effects t< 
human health or to the environment Therefore, the Depanment con 
eludes that exempting the three compounds from the Department' 
reporting requirements will have no environmental impact. 

Repl•tory flalblllty An•ly1l1 
The proposed amendments will apply to all businesses covered unde 

the Worker and Community Right to Know Act, many of which ue smal 
businesses as defined under the Regulatory Flexibility Act, NJ.S.A 
S2: 148-16 et seq. The proposed amendments will decrease reponing ant 
recordkeeping requirements for companies using these compound!i. Be 
cause these amendments will reduce recordkeeping and reporting re 
quirements for all businesses using these compounds, less stringen 
requirements for small bu~ine~es are not necessary. 

Full tut of the proposal follows (addirions indicated in boldface 
thus; deletions indicated in brackets lthusj): 

7: 1 F-2.2 Access to information; non-di!iclosure: hearing before 
disclosure 

(a) (No change.) 
(b) fnfonn8tlon for which I conndentl11ity dalm hl9 bttn U· 

sutC'd shall rtm•in subject to thr conndentlallty rrqulremrnts of 

this subch•pter if thr substancr ror which thr claim wms assrrtrd 
is subsrqurnlly drletrd frt1m Appendix A or this chaptrr. 

MONDAY, JUNE 7, 1993 
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P.L.1993, CHAPTER 47, approved February 18, 1993 

1992 Senate No. 1227 

AN ACT concerning inspection and plan review fees charged by 
2 private inspection agencies and amending P.L.1975, c.217. 
3 
4 BE IT ENACTED by the Senate and General Assembly of the 
5 State of New Jersey: 
6 1. Section 6 of P.L.1975, c.217 (C.52:270-124) is amended to 
7 read as follows: 
8 6. The commissioner shall have all the powers necessary or 
9 convenient to effectuate the purposes of this act, including. but 

10 not limited to, the following powers in addition to all othP.rs 
11 granted by this act: 
12 a. To adopt, amend and repeal, after consultation with the 
13 code advisory board, rules: (1) relating to the administration and 
14 enforcement of this act and (2) the qualifications or licensing, or 
15 both, of all persons employed by enforcing agencies of the State 
16 to enforce this act or the code, except that, plumbing inspectors 
17 shall be subject to the rules adopted by the commissioner only 
18 insofar as such rules are compatible with such rules and 
19 regulations, regarding health and plumbing for public and private 
20 buildings, as may be promulgated by the Public Health CoWlcil in 
21 accordance with Title 26 of the Revised Statutes. 
22 b. To enter into agreements with federal and State of New 
23 Jersey agencies, after consultation with the code advisory board, 
24 to provide insofar as practicable (1) single-agency review of 
25 construction plans and inspection of construction and (2) 
26 intergovernmental acceptance of such review and inspection to 
27 avoid wmecessary duplication of effort and fees. The 
28 commissioner shall have the power to enter into such agreements 
29 although the federal standards are not identical with State 
30 standards; provided that the same basic objectives are met. The 
31 commissioner shall have the power through such agreements to 
32 bind the State of New Jersey and all governmental entities 
33 deriving authority therefrom. 
34 c. To take testimony and hold hearings relating to any aspect 
35 of or matter relating to the administration or enforcement of this 
36 act, including but not limited to prospective interpretation of the 
37 code so as to resolve inconsistent or conflicting code 
38 interpretations, and, in coMection therewith, issue subpenas to 
39 compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of 
40 evidence. The commissioner may designate one or more hearing 
41 examiners to hold public hearings and report on such hearings to 
42 th:: commissioner. 

EXPLANATION--Hatler· enclosed ;n bold-f1ced br1ckels (thus) ;n the 
1bove b;11 is not en1cted ind is intended lo be Ollitted ;n the l1v. 

Halter underlined 1hYs is new .. tter. 

I I ... •• 
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2 

L To encourage. support or conduct, after consultation with 
2 the code advisory board, educational and training programs for 
3 employees, agents and inspectors of enforcing agencies, either 
4 through the Department of CommWlity Affairs or in cooperation 
5 with other departments of State government, enforcing agencies, 
6 educational institutions, or associations of code officials. 
7 e. To study the effect of this act and the code to ascertain 
8 their effect upon the cost of building construction and 
9 maintenance, and the effectiveness of their provisions for 

10 insuring the health, safety, and welfare of the people or the State 
11 of New Jersey. 
12 r. To make, establish 'and amend, after consultation with the 
13 code advisory board. such rules as may be necessary, desirable or 
14 proper to carry out his powers and duties under this act. 
15 g. To adopt, amend, and repeal rules and regulations providing 
16 for the charging of and setting the amount of fees for the 
17 following code enforcement services, licenses or approvals 
18 performed or issued by the department, pursuant to the "State 
19 Uniform Construction Code Act:" 
20 (1) Plan review, construction permits, certificates or 
21 occupancy, demolition pennits,· moving of building pennits, 
22 elevator permits and sign pennits; and 
23 (2) Review of applications for and the issuance of licenses 
24 certifying an individual's qualifications to act as a construction 
25 code official. subcode official or assistant under this act. 
26 (3) (Deleted by amendment, P.L.1983, c.338). 
27 h. To adopt, amend and repeal rules and regulations providing 
28 for the charging of and setting the amount of construction permit 
29 surcharge fees to be collected by the enforcing agency and 
30 remitted to the department to support those activities which may 
31 be undertaken with moneys credited to the Unifonn Construction 
32 Code Revolving Fund. 
33 i. To adopt, amend and repeal rules and regulations providing 
34 for: 
35 (1) Setting the amount of and the charging of fees to be paid 
36 to the department by a private agency for the review of 
37 applications for and the issuance of approvals authorizing a 
38 private agency to act as an on-site inspection and plan review 
39 agency or an in-plant inspection agency; 
40 (2) The setting of the amounts of fees to be charged by a 
41 private agency for inspection and plan review services; provided, 
42 however. that such fees shall [be identical to] not be more than 
43 those adopted and charged by the department when it serves as a 
44 local enforcement agency pursuant to section 10 of P.L.1975, 
45 c.217 (C.52:270-128); and 
46 (3) The fonnulation of standards to be observed by a 
47 municipality in the evaluation of a proposal submitted by a 
48 private agency to provide inspection or plan review services 
49 within a municipality. 
50 j. To enforce and administer the provisions of the "State 
51 Unifonn Construction Code Act," P.L.1975, c.217 (C.52:270-119 
52 et seq.) and the code promulgated theremder, and to prosecute or 
53 cause to be prosecuted violators of the provisions of that act or 
54 the code promulgated theremder in administrative hearings and 
55 in civil proceedings in State and local courts. 

</3 "f . ·- .. 
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1 k. To monitor the compliance of local enforcing agencies with 
2 the provisions of the "State Uniform Construction Code Act." 
3 P. L.1975, c.217 (C.52:270-119 et seq.), to order. corrective action 
4 as may be necessary where a local enforcing agency is found to 
5 be failing to carry out its responsibilities under that act, to 
6 supplant or replace the local enforcing agency for a specific 
7 project, and to order it dissolved and replaced by the department 
8 where the local enforcing agency repeatedly or habitually fails to 
9 enforce the provisions of the "State Uniform Construction Code 

10 Act." 
11 (cf: P.L.1985. c.21, s.1) 
12 2. This act shall take effect immediately. 
13 
14 

15 STATEMENT 
16 
17 This bill amends the State Uniform Construction Code Act to 
18 eliminate the requirement that fees charged by private insper.tion 
19 agencies be identical to those charged by the Department of 
20 Community Affairs (DCA) when it is the enforcing agency. The 
21 bill limits the fees at the level charged by DCA. 
22 Costs incurred by private inspection agencies and DCA are not 
23 the same. Therefore, private inspection agencies should be 
24 permitted to compete with DCA by charging lower fees. In 
25 addition, the higher fees for private inspection agencies have not 
26 necessarily benefitted the private agencies because of the lack of 
27 competition. 
28 While private agency fees should be subject to regulation in 
29 order to prevent price-cutting at the expense of quality, the 
30 detennination of fair and reasonable rates for private agencies 
31 should be a matter separate from the charging of fees necessary 
32 to cover the department's costs. 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 Eliminates requirement that private agency inspection and plan 
38 review fees be identical to DCA 's under Unifonn Construction 
39 Code. 
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STA1-·E OF f\JEW JERSEY 

AN Ac-r In :i111011rl Ilic "81.aln lT11ir11rn1 ('1111.,.frnclio11 C:ode Ar.t.," 

1q1pri1v1•d October 7, rn7:i (I'. L. 1!1;;,, c. :!17). 

, 1 B1; IT ENACTED by the Senate°'"' (;r111Tril .lssr111hly n/ lhc Stnte 

2 of Nc1u .Jersey: 

1. 8echo11 G of P. L. la75, c. 217 ( C. ;,2 :27 D-1~,l) is amcndccl to 

2 rcncl ns follows : 

J I . 

.4 

(j 

u. Powr.rs of the commissioner. Tiu~ co111111is.-io11er shall have 

all the powers ncc<'~sary or co11vcnic11( lo effecl uatc t.ue purposei:i 

of 1 liis act, i11c111cli11g, but not limited lo, I lie following powers in 

n<ldition tu nil others. granted by this ad: 

. 7 a. 'l'o adopt, nmcnd nncl repeal, after ronsullation with I.be rode 

8 advisory hoanl, rules: (1) relali11:; lo Ilic a1lruinislralion and 

9 cnforccllll'llt of this act nncl (2) the 'lll:llilicalions or licensing, or 

10 bolu, of all 11crso11s employed by c11forci11.~ •i: . .:e111!il's of tlic State to 

11 enforce tLis act or the cocle, exceµt llml, pli1111bi11g i11speclors shall 

12 be sulijcct lo the rules n<loplc<l by the comrni~si111ir'r only i11sofar :i~ 

J::J such rules are compatible witlJ such rnlcs anti rc~ulalioni-, rcgnrcl-

14 ing hcaltl1 a11d plu111bi11g for public and private buildings, as may 

15 . be promulgale<l liy lhc Public IIe~1.lth t'u1111cil in accor<luncc with 

lG Tille 26 of the B.eviscd Statutes. 

17 h. To cul.er into agreements wilu fedPral and ~:Hnle of New Jer-

, 18 scy n~cncies, nfler ,<'011sultnlio11 with 111<• code :id..-isory board, to 

l!J provide insofar as ptaclicaLh• (1) si11i:;lc--a:.;.r>111·y !:~vi~~\· of c<m~tru~-

20 lion plans nnd inspection of constrnclion 111111 (2) intergovern-

21 menl.nl nccC'pt:rncc oi such review and insp<'rlion lo a\·oid u1111cccs-

. 22 sary duplication of effort nrul foes. 'l'hP r·o111111issioner shnll have 

EXl'l.Al'IA1I01'1-l\ln1trr c·nrl11•1·1I i11 l111ltl.ra~r1I ltrn..t ... 111 [1lsu,] in Iii• abo•• llill 
11 nnl 1·11nclf'1l n111I i• i111rn1l .. 1I lo hr c1111illrd 111 Ille law. 

l\lnllf'r 11rinlr•I in i1nlir11 111111 i111 111"\l' mnllrr. 
lllath·r ru1·ln•c·1I in n,h·1·i•lu 01· 11l11r11 1111• llf'rn 1ulo111t·1I 1111 lollcHUI 

•-,\•••·111111) rcu11111i111•r nnu·r11l111en1 adv1~1eJ Ucrrmltrr 13, l'JUZ. 
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~I 11f1111il111d" '""' 11111 id1:11lil'11I will1 :~11111• ... 1111111111.!· 1 ; 11r11vid,.d 111111 

~;, 1111' Hllllll' l111'1i1· 1il1j1•1•fiv1111 Ill ' 111111. '1'111' 1·11111111iHHi11111•r 1;!11111 1111\'11 

~f; 1111! 1•11111·1 ll1r1111;:li f:114·~1i 11gtlH':111~1t1~ l11 l1i11il 1111' ~l;dt• 111' N1•\\' .JonH',\' 

2i 1111d 1111t.;11\'Pri11w11tat'1•t1lilics1J.~ri,·i111-!' 1111ll1111i1.'· lllf'r<'fro111. 

2~ L'. To f:il;c l1·sfi111011y a11d l111ld l1••:11i11:.:' 11•l:iti11;: In a11y n!'IJ•Ccl 

:.!!J of or 111:111.·r relating" lo tl1e 11d111i11i~frati1111 11r l'11forr<'111e11t of tliii; 

:~n 11el, i111·lt1di11g- hut. 111i~ limitrd lo prosp<'t·ti\'f• i11tPrpn•fafio11 of lho 

;11 l't1tll' so as lo n~solva i11co11i:;i:-lc11l or 1·111illi..ti11:.:· ''"d" i11INprcl11-

:l:l lio11s, 11nd, in 1~1111111'C'~io11 llien~\\'illt, j.,.s11f' s11hp1•11:1~ lo e11111pcl llio 

:1:1 11ftc11da11l'f' of wif1ws:-;cs a11d tire prod11ctin11 nf 1•vidr·11c<'. 'l'lic com

:H 111ii-~io11n 111:iy dcsig11ilt~ one or llHH~ lll'a1 in!!. e\a111i11rrs to hold 

:i:> p1il1li1· l1cari11gR :111d report Oil f;t1Ch l1f'arin!!.s to t Ii•· co111111i!'\sio11er. 

:ir; d. 'l'o Pn1·011rage, support or co11dlll'I, art .. r. 1·011~11lt:it.io11 wilh 

:li the 1·odt! advisory hoard, e<lucalio11:d a11d I r:1i11i11g- prn~T11111.o; for 

:H~ c·111ployces, a~c11ls an<l iui;pedor~ of' 1•11f11rt'i11g· ag1•11cici:;, either 

3!) tlirongh Ilic Department of C~1i111111111it:· .\ ffairs or in coopernlion 

40 with ullicr c.lcparlmonls of State Guvcr111111•1tl, r11forci11g· agencies, 

41 ccJucatio11al i11stitutions, or nssociatio11s of' l'odn oflicials. 

42 e. To st111ly Urn effect of this act :wd I lir ('ode lo nscertnin their 

~:l cfJecl upn11 the cost of buil<ling c011~f rnl'I ion a11cl 111ai11t.ennncc, nnd 

44 the effedivcness of l~eir provisions for i11s11ri11g Lhc liealth, snfely, 

45 nnd welfare of the people of the Stnte of NC'w .Ter~ey. 

46 f. To make, establish and nmencl, aff<'r 1·011!i11ltntion with the 

47 code ndYisory bonrd, Rueb rules a1' 111:1~· he n1•rco::i:;ary, desirnble or 

4R prop<'r to carry out his powers nncl dul iC'o:: 1111drr I Iii~ act. 

49 g. To ndopt, amend, and repeal rnlc!i :i11d '"·~ulalion~ pro,·itling 

50 for the cliarging of and setli11g the a11101111I 111' t'rc!i for t )I(' following 

51 code cuforl.'ement i:;ervices, licens<.'s or appro,·nli:; )IC'rfonncd or 

52 issued by tue department, pursuant lo tl1e "~I.ale Uniform Con-

53 strnctio11 Code Act": 

54 (1) Plan review, construction pl'n11if~, C'l'rfilicafC'~ of occnpnnry, 

55 clcmolilio11 permits, moving of buildi11g: pen11its, cle,·ntor permits 

5fi and sign permits; and, 

57 (2) Hcvicw of applit·nlions for nnd t hP. iss11a11ce of licc11scs ccrti-

58 fyiug Oil individual's qualifications to act as a r.011strnction code 

59 officinl, i-111'cocfo offici:il or assii:;tanl 1111tl1•r I his ad [: an<l]. 

60 (:1) [Hc,·iew of appticaliom; for and t lte iss11a11ce of nppro,·nls 

61 nutboriziug 11 µrivatc agency to net as :111 011~itP. in~pection ancl plnn 

· 62 review ngency or ns nn inplant i11spectio11 agc11cy under this net] 

(iJ (Deleted by t1111c11d,,umt P. L. 198.2, c . .. ). 

li4 h. To adupl, antc!tHI and repeal rnlrs a11d n•gulatiom1 pruviding 

ti~ for the cha 1~i11g of and scltiug tht! i1111u111il of const rucliuu pcnuit 
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1;1; 111111·!11111·.1• 1'1·1"1 !11 111• ,:,oll1•1•l1•d lo.\ 1111' 1·1i1'1111'111" :1",•'111',I 111111 I f'tt1il 11•,j 

Iii 1111111· d··1·:11l1111•11I 111 '!''l'I'"" 11111.,1• :1··li1i1i, .. 11l1i1·l1 111:1.1 111• 1111d1·r. 

Ii~ l1tl<1·11 11ill111111111'.1·:~1·n·dil"d 111 111<' ll11i1'111111 1'••11'-11'111'111111 1'11111· )(,._ 

1;!1 \'ol \'i 111~ l1'1111d. 

iO 1. '/'11 1d111•I, t11111·n11·11111I 1 ''l'"1tl 111/,., 11/I·' • , •111!111/1111., l'' 11ui1li11.11 

71 for: 

~ (1) sl'ff111r; IJ11' 11111n1111f of 11111/ t/11· 1)1,,1111111.1 11i !1·,·s /11 fir ,,,,;:;-'\ 

In flu· i/1'/'"11111nil /1,i~ rt 1ni1·11!1• 11,rJ1·111.11 /111 l/11· 11·1i111· 11/ 11111ilir.11- \ 

i4 c11fin11., fur r111d /he LS.\IUlllrC nf 1111111111 iii, r111tl1111i7i1111 11 z11 i1·11fr. 

i:i a.1r111·.11 In fld n.' rm 01.1sifc ins1>rdio11 1111,/ 1•lu11 '' 1•i1·11• "!Jr11r.71 nr nu 

71i i1111l1111f i11.~11cdirrn "!l<'llC.'Ji 

11 ( 2) 1111· sl'fli119 of Ilic 1111101111/s o/ /1.,.s !11 /,,· 1 "'".'11·,/ ln111.11riJJnlr. 

iH ar11·1w11 f,,, "''/"·1·!11111 1111d 1il1111 11·1·i1·11· ,1·11·i1·1·.,'; 1111111df'll, l111//'

iHA 1·1·1·1, !11111 ,,,,/1 {1·1·, ,/11111111• l(f1·11fi111I (11 !1111,1· 11il111d1•d 111"/ ,./1111 !/t'il 

iHn l1y lli1• r/1·11111/1111·11! ,,.,,,.,,it S('/'/'('S (I.~ n !11111! 1·11(1111·1•111('1/f O.'fl'HO/ 

iHc 11111.,111111( (n s1•1 l11111 /rl 11( /'. /,, !!!'ii, 1. :!/; ((', .i:!:'!t/J .. /:JS}•: 011rl, 

i~I (.1) Ilic fnn1111lrrlio>i of stanrlards lo /1(' 11/1s1•11·11/ /11111 1111111icipolily 

81 11ro1.:idr wspccfiou or IJlan review sc11·11 ,.,, 1nl/1111 " m1111icipnlity. 

~O 111 the crnluntion of a 11roz1osal s11ln111ffr 1 l 1111 11 111 ir11lr a,qc11ry fol 
~ :!. Tl1is :icl shall take effect immcdial1·I.'-. __ 




